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Strategic Report
Welcome

St. Modwen is the UK’s

leading regeneration specialist.

We operate across the ful
spectrum of the property
industry from a network
of seven regional offices,
a residential business and
through joint ventures
with public sector and
industry-leading partners.

For further information Non-statutory information

please visit our website As the Group utlises & number of joint ventura
arrangemants, additonal disclosures are
www.stmodwen.co.uk provided to glve a better undersianding o
our business These incl rmation
the Group including its s nt vant
togethar with non-statutory ras su
as trading profit and all tax
reconciliation of such me. provided
note 2 roups Finan erments




Strategic Report
Our performance

Financial highlights

56% Increase in profit
before all tax to £82.2m
(2012 £52 8m)

Shareholders’ NAV up 11%
to 279p per share (2012
251p per share), and EPRA
NAV up 10% to 288p per
share (2012 272p per share)

Reahsed property profits up
37% to £40m (2012 £29m)

Successful completion of

a £49m equity placing to
support redevelopment of
New Covent Garden Market

20% decrease In loan-to-
value to 33% (2012 41%)

Final dividend for the year
increased by 10% to 2.67p
per share, providing a total
didend for 2013 of 4.00p
per share (2012 3 63p)

PROFIT BEFORE ALL TAX £m EQUITY NET ASSETS PER SHARE p
CHART CHART
REMOVED REMOVED

improved by 560/ 0

improved by 1 1 0/0

TRADING PROFIT £m SEE-THROUGH LOAN-TO-VALUE %
CHART CHART
REMOVED REMOVED

morovetty 3 1 /0

Operational highlights

improved by 200/ 0

[ ]

Overall net valuation
Increase of £42m (2012
£28m), compnsing gains

of £28m (2012 £48m)asa
result of planning gain asset
management and £14m
market-dnven valuation gain
(2012: £20m loss)

Elephant & Castle Shopping
Centre sold for £80m

s Significant milestones
completed across all major
projects.

Longbridge - 150,000 sq ft
pre-let secured to Marks &
Spencer which will anchor
the second phase of the
new Town Centre

Swansea University,

Bay Campus — first phase
of works on schedule with
student accommodation
now underway
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On track to deliver New
Covent Garden Market
with planning approval
anticipated in 2015
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What we do

Commercial land
and development

Our commercial land portfolio makes
up 13% of our land bank by value,
We acquire this land in its raw state
at low cost and then manage its
development through the remediation
and planning process, taking
advantage of local market conditions
to release the land for development at
the most appropnate time.

-

See page 22
for more detail

IMAGE
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Residential

We acqurre sites wath opportunity for
residential development and maximise
their potential through the develepment
process, realising value through three
routes to market:

* residential land sales
= St. Medwen Homes
* Persimmon joint venture

Our residential portfolio makes up 42%
of our land bank by value Across the
entre portfolio we have planning
permussion or allocatons within local
plans for over 21,800 plots

IMAGE
REMOVED

-

See page 28
for more detail

IMAGE
REMOVED

Income producing
properties

Compnsing industnal, retall and office
assets, our iIncome producing portfolio
makes up 45% of our land bank

by value. All assets in this portfolto

are he!d with a view to generating
significant future value but we do make
sure that a major proporton produces
income pnor to development which
typically covers the running costs of
the Group's bustness
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Strategic Report
Where we operate

Strategically positioned

Qur diverse UK-wide portfolio and our 5,900 acre land bank are
controlled by highly-skilled professionals from a network of seven
regional offices and a residential business. This provides us with
local knowledge and expertise that keeps us in tune with the needs
of the local community and ensures that we remain politically and

economically sensitive to each individual area.

For further information
about our projects visit
www.stmodwen co.uk

regional offices

_)
See page 20

Major project progress

We have made good progress with all of
our major projects, all at varying stages
of development.

IMAGE
REMOVED

30%

of gross portfolio located In
London and the South East

_)
See pages 22-37

Divarsa UK-wide portfolio

Our dverse UK-wide portfolio, which

now includes a five megawatt Solar Park,
means we are not overexposed to a single
scheme, tenant or sector

IMAGE
REMOVED
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Of our gross portfolio, 30% is in London and the South East
where around 50% by value of our residential assets are also located.

uoday oifisieng
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Qur extensive national portfolio includes four flagship projects: k)
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New Covent Garden Market, Swansea University, Longbridge s
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Strategic Report
Our business model

What makes St. Modwen the UK’s leading
regeneration specialist?

IMAGE
REMOVED
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The land
bank

IMAGE
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Cur long-term view allows us to acquire assets at low

cost and then maximise therr potential by steadily adding
value to thern over tme through remediation and planning
Then at the appropnate tme we either dispose of the asset
to reabse any Increase In value or release 1t for development
ourselves or in joint venture

What differentiates us?

The diverse and extensive nature of our £1 1bn land bank
provides us with the flexibility to move with market demands
and, coupled with our local expertise, means we can pursue
value-creating opportunities A considerable proportion of
our land bank 1s held at relatively low value, gving us access
to a wide vanety of development opportuniies without the
need for significant financing

=) See pages 08-09

Recurring
income

IMAGE
REMOVED

Whilst all of our assets are ultimately held with a view to
generating significant future value, some also produce

a steady income stream prior to development which
underpins the running costs of the business This ensures
that commutments can be met f development profits fall and
enables us to extract the maxymum value from our land bank
in the short-term

What differentrates us?

We employ locally-based asset management capability to
manage the assets as efficiently as possible We typically offer
low affordable rents on relatively short tenancies which ensure
that vaids remamn at their lowest possible level as we prepara
sites for development The diversity of occupiers in our
income producing properties helps us to avoid overexposure
to a single scheme, sector or tenant

=> See pages 10-11

Asset
management

IMAGE
REMOVED

We Increase the value of our land bank over time using our
expertise in and hands-on approach to remediation and
regeneration, managmng sites, public consultation and the
planning process Our skills can be applied effectively to
small developments or be used to navigate complex and
long-term projects
What differentiates us?
Our ability to progress our land bank successfully through
_ the planning process and our expertise in brownfield land
remediation and other aspects of regeneration make us an
attractive partner to both landowners and public bodies
The skill and expenence of our people 1s fundamental to
the success of our asset management actmties and we
continue to retamn, develop and incentivise them.

=» See pages 12-13

IMAGE
REMOVED

Delivery

When we are unable to add any further significant value to an
asset, we seek market-dnven opportunties to dispose of it,
either through the delivery of pre-let and pre-sold buildings or
the sale of land Cash generated on the sale provides recycled
capital to invest in the business and supports the delivery of
long-term shareholder value creation through a progressive
dadend policy

What differentrates us?

We continue to find good development opportunities that are
not rehant on speculative development Where industnal and
commercial cccupiers have immediate requirements for new
premises, we are able to react quickly to meet thetrr demands
with sites that already benefit from planning Our regeneration
projects continue to serve as catalysts for change, mpacting
positively on the local economy and attracting a variety

of occcupiers

=>» See pages 14-15
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Strategic Report
Our business model

The
land bank

IMAGE
REMOVED

Our actively managed,
£1.1bn UK-wide land bank of
development opportunities
comprises over 5,900 acres.
Made up of predominantly
brownfield land and held

at relatively low value,

it provides us with a firm
foundation from which

to generate value.

At any point in time, our skilled tearns
are erther actively building, remediating
Or pursuing planning permissions
which allow us to transform this land
into thriving communities or business
destinations that will encourage growth
right across the country

Pictured Glan Liyn, Newport This 600 acre
former Llanwern steefworks site forms part
of our extensive regenerative work across
South Wales Translated as ‘Lakeside’, Glan
Liyn will provida three new lakes and a
parkland setting for 4,000 homes, as well as
1 5m sq ft of employment space, educational
facilties, and leisure and retall accommodation
Persimmon 1s now on site with the first phase
of 307 homes as part of our joint venture
partnership St Modwen Homes will also

be building properties on this srte In 2014

5,943

developable acres

2%

of land bank 1s wholly owned

08 St Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013
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Strategic Report
Our business model

Recurring
income

IMAGE
REMOVED

The stream of rental and
other recurring income
generated by our portiolio
of Income producing assets
covers the running costs of
the business and enables
us to extract maximum
value from our land bank in
the short-term as we work
towards development.

Representing 45% of our £1 1bn
portfolio by value, this is the largest part
of our business and 1s made up of a
dverse asset base ranging from Town
Centres to business and retail parks,
and leisure destinations

Pictured Famborough Town Centra,
Hampshire Works to the first two phases

of this 280m regeneration project are now
complete and are being actively managed for
income by our regional team of professionals
The schemae currently compnses a 62,000

sq ft Sansbury’s, a 77-bedroom Travelodge,
J D Wetherspoon, a gym and the creatron of
retail space for major brands including
Starbucks and New Look. In May 2013, we
started on site with the transformation of
Kingsmead Shopping Centra which 1s

baing overhauled to accommodats a new
seven-screen VUE Cinema and new
restaurants, this latest phase of the scheme
15 due for completion in summer 2014

£36.3m

net rental Income

£9m

of new lettings

10 St. Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013
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Strategic Report
Our business model

Asset
management

IMAGE
REMOVED

Our strong asset
management capabilities

are fundamental in enabling
us to realise maximum

value from our portfolio of
retained assets and are a key
component for the successful
delivery of new commercial
environments.

By creating attractive commercial spaces
we encourage and retain a vanety of
occupiers into our schemes across the
country In doing so, we can support

the surrounding community through the
creation of jobs and restonng confidence
in the local economy

Pictured Longbndge, Birmingham The first
phase of the new Town Centre opened in
August 2013 and comprises an 80,000 sq ft
Sainsbury’s, a 75-bedroom Prameer |nn, 24
shops, restaurants, 35,000 sq ft of offices and
the £2m Austin Park. It forms the heart of this
£1bn regeneration programme  Together with
more than 150,000 sq ft of office and
industnal space, which is over 85% occupied,
other features of this extensive brownfield
regeneration project include the 250,000 sq ft
Bournwville College which opened i1 2011 and
the £5m youth centre known as ‘The Factory’

9%

hke-for-like rent roll growth

£28m

added value gains

12 St Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013
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Strategic Report
Our business model

Delivery

IMAGE
REMOVED

Our development pipeline
continues to grow with

a number of major
opportunities across

the country.

Occupiers continue to be attracted by
our lease terms, which we are able to
offer at competitive levels as a result
of the location of ocur developments,
often in run-down areas undergoing
regeneration They also recognise the
positive long-term economic Impact
that our schemes deliver

Our strategy to pnme our sites for
development places us in a strong
position to meet immediate occupier
demand for new premises across
the country

Pictured Dunelm, Doncaster This 22,000
sq ft store started on site In summer 2013
and opened in time for Chnstmas trading
It is situated on a 13 acre brownfield site
and additional development here includes
a Marston's public house and new
community sports facilihes

25 year

track record

100+

development projects

14 St Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013
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Strategic Report
Our strategy

Strategically agile to take advantage
of opportunities...

As the UK'’s leading regeneration specialist, our expertise in remediation, planning, asset
management and construction supports our strategy of securing excellent returns through
a focus on long-term significant added value while protecting existing assets.

Strategy

2013 Outcomes

secure excellent
returns...

through a focus on
long-term significant
added value...

while protecting
existing assets

Pnorty

Key performance indicators applied

Invest at a point n the property lifecycle
from where maximum development
returns can be extracted

Maximise individual asset values through
our locally-based expertise

Recycle assets whera significant
opportunities are exhausted

PROFIT BEFORE ALL TAX Em

CHART
REMQVED

EQUITY NET ASSETS PER SHARE p

CHART
REMOVED

Build land bank to bring through future
opportunities and secure planning gain

Continued programme of recycling
and reinvestment

Create predictable, dependable and
cash-backed income streams

Have highly-skilled and motivated people
in place to delver our asset strategies
and future growth

Focus on brownfield renewal and
sustainable development

LAND BANK developable acres

CHART
REMOVED

PROPORTION OF ASSETS AT THE START
OF THE YEAR RECYCLED BY THE END
OF THE YEAR %

CHART
REMOVED

Mamntain sufficient income to
substantially cover business
running costs.

Mantain an appropnate capital structure
to meet future development and
funding needs

Manage debt ratios whilst continuing
to invest

RATIO OF RENTAL AND OTHER INCCME TO
OPERATING COSTS INCLUDING INTEREST %

CHART
REMOVED

GEARING %

CHART
REMOVED
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Priorities for 2014

Targets

Principal nsks

DIVIDEND PAID p

CHART
REMOVED

Continue to grow development profits
and create valuation gains, particularly
in residential

Strve to demonstrate and grow the
Group's mherent value and
long-term prospects

Grow net assets so that dwidends can
also grow Conlinue to secure profitable
development to generate consistent
future returns

Wider economic 1ssues affect property
values and equity valuations

The management of developments 1s
a complex process with successful
delivery depending on continued
excellence in the application of

our expertise

MANAGEMENT WITH MORE THAN
3 YEARS® SERVICE %

CHART
REMOVED

Selective and capital efficient
acquistions

Continued recycling of assets
with Iimited opportunity for further
significant added value

Continue to retain, recruit and motvate
highly-skilled people throughout
the business

As our work 1s conducted i a complex
legal and regulatory environment we
need to be able to successfully adapt
our asset strategies over the long-term

Supplier and tenant carbon footpnnt 1s
not under our operational control

SEE-THROUGH LOAN-TO-VALUE %

CHART
REMOVED

COMMITTED FACILITIES TO COVER
DRAWN DEBET months

CHART
REMOVED

Effective asset management to
maximise returns

Put in place further extended finance
facilities to support ongoing growth

Continued management of investment
and development programme to
maintain appropnate debt ratios

Significant contractton in available debt
faciitres reduces the opportunity for
strategic investment.

St Medwen Properties PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013 17
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Strategic Report

Chairman’s
Statement
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‘Challenges still
exist but the
Company

is already busier
than it was

12 months ago
and there is a
greater sense

of optimism across
our portfolio and
momentum in the
market place.’

It has been another very good year for
the Company, with excellent growth
resulting In a significant nise in profits
across the Group Profit before all

tax increased by 56% to £82 2m

{2012 £52 8m}with shareholders’ equrty
net asset value per share growing 11%
to 279p per share (2012 251p per
share), after paying dvidends of 3 75p
dunng the year (2012 3 41p)

Wea have made gocd progress with all of
our major schemes across the country
over the last 12 months, each one
lustrating a key facet of our business
model and demonstrating its strength

We completed a successful equity
placing in March 2013, which raised
gross proceeds of £49m The funds will
be used to maximise the potential of the
development of the New Covent Garden
Market [and n the medium-term without
increasing our debt levels

18 St Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013

£82.2m

profit before all tax

+10%

increase in final dividend

Works to the first phase of Swansea
University’s £450m Bay Campus project
commenced in May 2013 and are well
advanced We are extremely proud to
be worlkang with the University on such
a prestigious project, which forms part
of our extensive regenerative work In
South Wales

In November, Key Property Investments
(KPD, our 50/50 jont venture with Salhla
Real Estate Co K S C, disposed of the
Elephant & Castle Shopping Centre for
£80m The sale, which was achieved well
above book value, crystallised significant
profits for our sharehclders whilst freeing
up our people and capital resources to
focus on other significant regeneration
and development projects in London
and across the regions

After a year of exceptional delivery

at Longbndge, we were dehghted to
announce in December 2013 the pre-let
of a 150,000 sq ft Marks & Spencer
store on the second phase of the Town
Centre This project Is a testament to
how our transformational developments
serva as true catalysts for change and
breathe new Iife into areas in need of
regeneration across the UK

The improvement in the residential
market continued dunng the year,
with profits and sales rates from our
residential operations reflecting this
upward trend




DIVIDEND

In recent years, we have raised our
dwidends broadly in line with the
increases In net asset value and to reflect
the strong results This 1s again the case
for the year ended 30% November 2013
with your Board recommending a 10%
increase in the final dividend for the year
to 2 67p per share (2012 2 42p}, making
a total distribution for the year of 4 00p
(2012 3 63p) The final dmdend will be
pad on 4™ Apnl 2014 to shareholders on
the register at 7* March 2014

We intend for this dividend policy to
continue, subject to considenng the
impact of one-off events in the year,
positive or negative, as they occur

STRATEGY

Through our market-leading expertise,
we add value through remediation,
progressing assets through the
planning process and proactive asset
management and development.
Spectfically, our regional teams

focus on opportunihes where our

skill in regenerabion enables us to
add significant long-term value and
generate profits in both commercial
and residentral development

As shown by this year’s strong set

of results, and our proven abilty to
deliver good returns across the cycle,
oLr strategy i1s working We expect
this success to continue into 2014

as the property market steadily
gathers momentum

Our decision to aliocate addittonal
resource to the residential sector
- secunng predommantly residential-led

planning permussions across our portfolio

while continuing to grow our own

housebullding brand St Modwen Homes

and progressing our Persimimon jomt
venture — has proved successful as the
regional market place is now showing
meanngful signs of improvement

In addition, the improved market
conditions In the Londen and South East
property market ars ongoing

BOARD CHANGES

We have continued to strengthen the
property expertise on the Board and
were delighted to welcome Richard
Mully as a non-executive director in
September 2013 Richard bnngs with
him a wealth of expenence inreal estate
nvestment, having spent almost 30
years In Investment banking, caprtal
markets and real estate private equity
Investing Richard was appointed Senior
Independent Director in December 2013

PEOPLE

Despite the challenges of the last few
years, St Modwen IS now strongly
posttiened to take advantage of the
upturn that 1s making its way across
the UK commercial and residential
markets This would not have been
possible without the energy, skill and
dedication of our people Therefore,

I would like to take this opportunity on
behalf of the Board to say thank you
to all employees for their hard work
and determination in continuing to
deliver strong performance and create
long-term value for our shareholders

St Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013 19

PROSPECTS

Even at the height of the recession, we
remained confident of the prospects

for the Company Whilst we still remain
cautious about the overall economic
outlook in the UK and Europe, we

have a long track record of successful
regeneration, strong asset management
and creating value from our extensive
land bank This track record, combined
with our robust business model and
strategy to deliver strong returns, puts
us in an excellent position to remain
restlient against continued economic
and market challenges whilst benefitting
strongly from the improving residential
and commercial markets

With this increased optimism in the
market place, we are expanding our
development pipeline to capture value
across the UK This year we expect
the regional residential market place
to continue to recover gradually and
[.ondon and the South East to remain
robust We will therefore maintan our
focus on this sector throughout 2014
to capitalise on the strong returns that
we believe are avallable Similarly, we
are witnessing a cautious recovery In
commercial property and consequently,
will also be focusing on progressing
oppaortunities in this market durnng

the year

Challenges still exist but the Company

is already buster than it was 12 months
ago and there is a greater sense of
optimism across our portfolio and
momentum in the market place With our
strong financial base, we look forward to
growing the business steadily throughout
2014 and beyond to generate further
value for our shareholders

Bill Shannon
Charman

34 February 2014
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Strategic Report

Chief
Executive’s
Review

IMAGE
REMOVED

‘The recovery has gathered momentum
in 2013 and, against this improving
backdrop, we achieved a number of
important milestones across our
business. This has been illustrated
by another strong set of results.’

It has been a very busy and successful
year defined by three key areas of activity

+ we have continued to unlock value
across our 5,900 acre UK land bank
through remedhation and planning,

* we have scught to maximise
prospects from our residential
portfolio, and

* we have pursued opportunities
ansing from the London and South
East market

| am very pleased to say that our
decision to fecus on these three areas
has culminated in an excelient set of
results with a 56% Iincrease in profit
before all tax to £82 2m (2012 £52 8m)

The most significant transaction of

the year was the sale of the Elephant

& Castle Shopping Centre which
demonstrated clearly how our exposure
to the London and South East market
has enabled us to capitalise on the
growing Investor interest in this area
Having acquired the asset, through

our 50 50 KPI joint venture, for £29m

in 2002, we added significant value

to the property dunng our ownership,
whilst also benefitting from the income 1t
delivered, finally achieving an attractive
sale pnce of £80m compared to £52 5m
book value at the start of the period

20 St Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013

Our other major projects have
progressed well in the penod In May
2013, we started on site with works

to the first phase of the £450m Bay
Campus for Swansea University and this
15 now well on schedule for completion
in September 2015 Qur Longbridge
development in Birmingham remains

a regional success story with the
completion of the fust phase of the

Town Centre in the surmmer and the
subsequent 150,000 sq ft pre-let

to Marks & Spencer as the second
phase anchor tenant, announced just
after our year end Furthermore, good
progress has been made with the public
consultation process for the New Covent
Garden Market redevelopment at Nine
Elms in Londeon and we expect to submit
a planning application during the first half
of this year

Overall, our wide and diverse pipeline of
commercial development opportunities
located throughout the UK continues

to gather momentum, reflecting the
upturn in that market, and we have made
excellent progress with our schemes
across the country Demonstrating our
ability to extract maximum value from
our land bank and explore a vanety of
new opportuntties, we hava recently
completed a five megawatt Solar Park
at our Baglan Bay site in South Wales
We expect to continue to explore
energy-related opportunmies across the
land bank dunng the course of 2014

Across the country, we have been busy
prepanng our land bank for development
through remediation and achieving
predominantly residential-led planning
permissions Housebuider appetite

for our land 1s increasing and we are
expenencing good housing sales

rates across all of our residential
schemes, whether delivered in joint
venture with Persimmon or through

our own housebuilding brand,

St Modwen Homes




STRATEGY OVERVIEW

Supported by our fong-term approach
to development, cur adherence to a
robust and proven business model has
delivered a track record of over 25 years
of successful regeneration schemes

Dunng the recession, we continued to
add value to our £1 1bn land bank of
assets We achieved this by creating
maximum value from our iIncome
preducing properties through asset
management intiatives, whilst preparing
sites for redevelopment through
remediatton and secunng planning
permissions In doing so, we laid down
strong foundations for growth to take
immediate advantage of any market
recovery, whilst underpinning our
business activities with a steady income
stream At the same time, we disposed of
assets to which we could add no further
value and reinvested the capital back into
the business

By taking this long-term view and relying
on our own efforts to create value, we
have remained resilient to challenging
economic hmes and our efforts are
already being rewarded as momentum
in the residential market grows across
the UK and as the regional commercial
property market gradually starts

to improve

MARKET OVERVIEW

There is a tangible increase in activity
in the residential market place, with
the recovery that started in 2012

on the back of nsing consumer

and housebuilder sentiment being
further augmented by the success of
Government schemes such as Help to
Buy Momentum continues to gather
pace n London and the South East
with confidence now spreading into
the regrons This improved outlook
has already had a positive impact

on our jeint venture with Persimmon
which 1s now building and selling

all eight schemes under the onginal
agreement to deliver over 2,300 homes
Furthermore, our own housebuilding
brand, St. Modwen Homes, 1s performing
very well in its second full year of
operations, it has continued to expand
dunng 2013 and I1s now operational on
eight developments

As the year has progressed, we have
kept under close review the increased
optmism In the commercial property
market, dnven predominantly by a
strong increase in investor appetite
The recovery 13 now visibly starting to

take hold but a wholesale improvement
in commercial property 1s still being
restricted by an improving but
inconsistent level of tenant demand

Against this backdrop, our
comprehensive regeneration schemes
serve as posttive catalysts for change
and are encouraging renewed tenant
demand Qur regeneration of the
Longbndge site in Birmingham is

a good example Here, we have
successfully created the centrepiece to
this important project by buillding and
secunng important retall tenants for
the new Town Centre which opened in
August In doing so, we have boosted
the community significantly by creating
I1obs and restonng confidence in the local
economy which 1$ a key component

of the successiul delivery of new
commercial environments We have
recently submitted planming for the
second phase of the Town Centre which
includes a 150,000 sq ft full-offer store
pre-let to Marks & Spencer, further
testament to the attractive commercial
environment that we continue to
create here

Next year, there 1s a General Election

on the honzon Whether this benefits
development or not remains to be seen
Recent comments from politicians
accusing developers and landowners of
hoarding land are misleading It does not
make commercial sense to sit on land
and do nothing with 1t, especially in areas
where land values are not appreciating
St. Modwen 1s in the business of
development and our UK land bank of
over 5,900 acres s owned specifically
wrth a view to developing it out to create
homes and commurities tn which people
can lve and work At any point In time we
are either actively buillding, remediating
ar pursuing planning permissions

which allow us to transform this land

into thrving communities or bustness
destinations that will encourage growth
nght across the country

Notwithstanding inconsistent tenant
dernand in the regions, it 15 clear that

the UK property market 1s improving

We continue to be successful in secunng
planning permisstons but it is taking
much fonger than it should do, which 1s
having a knock-on effect on delivery

BUSINESS OUTLCOK

Our major projects at Longbndge,
Swansea University and New Covent
Garden Market, are all at varying stages
of developrment, with each having an
active year to lock forward to, which
should add value to the Group

The disposal of the Elephant & Castle
Shopping Centre makes way for Project
MoDEL" to become our fourth major
project This consists of the two former
RAF sites at Uxbndge and Mill Hil which
are now being developed into two new
communities, together compnsing

over 3,500 homes Given therr Londen
location and the residential-led nature
of each development, we are already
expenencing excellent returns and
expect this only to improve in line with
the buoyant London property market

We expect to further capitalise on the
improving residential market place which
will remain a dominant force in our
portfelio In terms of land and housing
sales We ara already looking for new
opportunities both from within our own
land bank and more generally in the
market place where we can identify
opportunities at the nght pnce to apply
our proven skiils to create value

Having spent the last five years prepanng
our commercial land in readiness for this
market to improve, we anticipate more
opportunities to start coming through in
2014, enabhng us to add to our pipeline
of development projects

With a successful 2013 behind us, this
year will be one of continued delvery,
adding value to our portfolio of assets
and a renewed focus on business
areas where we can deliver realised
development profits We are not yet
completely free of the overhang of the
recession, and there 1s no room for
complacency, but there 1S certainly a
maore pesitive outlock on the honzon and
we are already well placed to capitalise
on this opportunity

*See glossary
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Strategic Report
Chief Executive's Review

Commercial
land and
development

With our sites primed for
development, we are well
placed to caprtalise on

the improving commercial
property market and

are already growing our
pipeline of development
opportunities.

Pictured Swansea Unwversity's Bay Campus.

The first phase is on track to wefcome
students in September 2015

£146m

commercial land value

2,997

commercial land acreage

IMAGE ->
REMOVED The tand bank
See pages 24-25

IMAGE -
REM Asset management
See page 25
IMAGE ->
REMGVED Recurring income

See pages 26-27

IMAGE -
REMOVED

Delivary
See pages 26-27
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Strategic Report

land and

(continued)

Chief Executive's Review

Commercial

development

STRATEGY

Our long-term approach to regeneration
helps us to weather economic cycles
Over the last five years we have
focused on pnming our land bank for
development through remediation and
planning which has ulmately put us in
a goed position to benefit from current
market improvements

Through our network of regional

offices, we remain in tune with local
requremnents and any new opparfunities
Thus local knowledge has enabled us

to stay opportunistically acquisitive

over this penod, secunng land and
commercial assets with latent value that
can be realised at the nght time

Furthermore, our highly-skilled in-house
team of construction professionals
oversees the delvery of all our projects
and works closely with clients and
partners to ensure the end product
matches ther needs Responsible for
our ‘shop window’ they are a valued
and important part of the business that
safeguards the Company’s pnnciples

of delivering high-qualty, sustainable
developments as a legacy for businesses
and communities to enoy for years

to come.

MARKET COMMENTARY

Our strategy to pnme our land for
development has borne fruit durnng 2013
Demand for design and build projects
on our ‘ready to go' employment sites
has grown as businesses are feeling
more confident to expand and seek

new premises, and occuplers recegnise
we can deliver on ther requirements
quickly In those areas where we are
expenencing an mncreasing number

of tangible enquines coming through,
such as London and the South East, the
Midlands and the South West, we are
submitting detalled planning applications
for commercial-led developments on our
existing land bank.

24 St Modwen Propertles PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013

Our secondary shopping centres
continue to expenence good take-up of
space from occuplers Here, our ongoing
regeneration activities and favourable
lease terms are attracting new retalers
who recognise the positive, long-term
economic impact that our schemes are
set to have as we transform any given
area A good example is our £80m
regeneration of Farnborough Town
Centre, where works are now complete
on the first two phases including a
62,000 sq ft Sainsbury's, Travelodge,

J D Wetherspoon, a gym and the
creation of retall space for major brands
including Starbucks and New Look

in May 2013, we started on site with the
transformation of Kingsmead Shopping
Centre which 1s being extensively rebuilt
to accommodate a new seven-screen
VUE Cinema and restaurants, which 1s
due for completion in summer 2014

Commercia land

During the penod, with a view to
augmenting and adding value to our
commercial development pipeline, we
have continued to secure sites and
prepare them for development through
remediation and planning

We have secured a significant number
of commercial-led brownfield land
opportunities over the last 12 months
with highlights including

» Wellingborough - formerly
owned by Whitworth Bakery, we
acquired this 3 5 acre site with a
view to transforming it into a retai
park compnsing 35,000 sq ft of
accommedaticn for which we will
submit a planning application in
February 2014

.

The regeneration of Famborough Town Centra
18 gathernng momentum and now includes

a Samnsbury's, New Look, Starbucks and

VUE Cinema

IMAGE
REMOVED




v

An indicative image of the 150,000 sq ft
full-offer store pra-let to Marks & Spencer
at Longbriddge, Birmingham

IMAGE
REMOVED

* Tamworth, Staffordshire — we have
signed a development agreement to
regenerate this 240 acre site into a
high-quality mixed-use scheme

» Derby Gateway, Chaddesden Thangle,
Derby - a 70 acre brownfield site, the
largest in Derby, to compnse 700,000
sq ft of commercial accommodation
which will be developed in partnership
with Network Ral A masterplan
application is currently being prepared
and will be submitted in spnng 2014

* Clay Cross, Derbyshire —a 204 acre
site benefitting from outline planning
consent to create a mixed-use
scheme that includes up to 250,000
sq ft of employment space

We have also made good progress in
converting planning applicatons to
approval and delivery Highlights include

s Rugby, Warwickshire - we have
recently submitted a planning
application to deliver a 100,000
sq ft retzul park at this former
Alstom industnal site which is being
redeveloped into a mixed-use scheme
that sits alongside the 150,000 sq ft
Warwickshire College completed in
2010 Currently on site, Greene King 1s
constructing a ‘Hungry Horse' public
house and St Medwen Homes s
developing a scheme of 175 homes

» Worcestershire Fire Station,
Worcester - we secured planning
permission for a 20,000 sq ft faciity
on behalf of Hereford & Worcester
Fire Authonty as part of the second
phase of development at our Great
Western Business Park where
the fully occupied phase one
compnses 125,000 sq ft of office and
industnal accommeodation

Branston, Burton upon Trent -
planning for 770,000 sq ft of industnal
space has now been secured on

part of this 175 acre site on which

we expect to commence with site
nfrastructure 1in 2014

¥

Works at Castledown Business Park, where
wa are delivenng 33,650 sq ft of employment
space for Wiltshie Council

IMAGE
REMOVED

In addition to the ongoing residential
developrnent at Locking Parklands,
Weston-super-Mare, we have also developed
5,800 sq ft of first phase office space

IMAGE
REMOVED
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Strategic Report
Chief Executive's Review

Commercial
land and
development
(continued)

Commercial development progress

(major projects)

» Bay Campus, Swansea University
—we continue to progress well with
the delivery of the first phase of
works at the £450m Bay Campus for
Swansea University Steelworks and
superstructure are advancing and
the construction of the student
accommodation i3 now underway
We remain on track to welcome
new students to the scheme in
September 2015

g

We are currently on site with over 75,000 sq ft
of design and build space at Quedgeley West
Business Park, Gloucestershire

IMAGE
REMOVED

s Longbndge - we completed phase
one of the Longbndge Town Centra
in August 2013 which 1s anchored
by an 80,000 sq ft Sainsbury’s and
comprises 24 shops, Beefeater
and Hungry Horse restaurants, a
Premier Inn and the £2m Austin Park.
Following the year end, we completed
the pre-let of a 150,000 sq ft Marks
& Spencer full-offer store that will
anchor the second phase of the new
Town Centre A planning application
for this second phase was submitted
in December 2013 together with an
application to build a 30,000 sq ft
specialist Construction Centre for
Bournwville College

¥

At Skypark, Exeter, we are neanng completion
of a 24,100 sq ft facility for ASOC

IMAGE
REMOVED

>

Public consultation for the redevelopment
of the New Covent Garden Market sites
1s progressing well and we are on track to
secure planning permission in early 2015

IMAGE
REMOVED
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» New Covertt Garden Market sites —

we have just completed the second
tranche of public consuftation

and expect to submit a planning
application for this major regeneration
project dunng the first half of 2014
Under a 50/50 VINCI St Modwen joint
venture, our plans are to consolidate
the current market, which covers a 57
acre site, nto a more efficient 37 acre,
550,000 sq ft scheme The 20 acres
freed up by the new development will
be redeveloped into a residential-led
mixed-use regeneration scheme,
providing over 2,500 homes and
115,000 sq ft of commercial
accommaedation and community
facilihes This 1s a significant project
which is set to deliver excellent returns
once planning consent I1s granted,
which we expect in 2015

Development progress (other key sites)
» Skypark, Exeter — developed in

joint venture with Devon Gounty
Councll, momentumn is building on

the redevelopment of this 110 acre
former arport complex into a major
employment centre and business
park for Exeter and East Devon
Having completed the 30,000 sq ft
energy centre for EON in 2012, we are
now neanng completion of a 24,100
sq ft purpose-buit faciity for tha Scuth
Western Ambulance Service NHS
Foundation Trust, having started on
site in spring 2013

s Quedgeley West, Gloucestershire
—there is currently over 125,000
sq ft of space under construction
at this Business Park This includes
Gardiner Bros & Co (Leathers) LLtd
which has agreed to purchase a
34,700 sq ft design and build unit
which [s in addition to rts 30,000
sq ft headquarters also located at
Quedgeley West Engineenng firm,
Lister Petter, will be relocating from our
nearby scheme in Litlecombe, Dursley
to a 35,000 sq ft purpose-buitt facility
at the Business Park Both occupiers
will move into their new premises in
spring 2014

+ Dunelm Mill, Wheatfey Hall Road
—we completed a 22,000 sq ft store
for Bunelm Mill on this brownfield
site The site also now comprises
anaw Marston's public house and
community sports facilities

OUTLOOK

We anticipate the commercial property
market will continue to improve at a
steady rate throughout 2014. This will
impact positively on our pipeline of
delivery where we are gradually recening
an increased amount of enquines

The retail market will remain challenging
but the location of our portfolio provides
us with firm foundations to continue to
secure tenants at compehitive rents and
create new retal environments

uoday oiBeens
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Developable acres Nov 2013 Now 2012
Retail 337 342
Industnal and commercial 2,097 2,859
Residential 1,893 1,804
Use not yet specified 716 796
Total 5,943 5,801
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Chief Executive’s Review

Residential

There is a tangible increase
in activity In the residential
market place. Momentum
continues to gather pace

in London and the South
East with confidence now
spreading into the regions.

Pictured St Mocdwen Homes' award-
winning Locking Parldands development,
Weston-super-Mars

£482m

value of residential porifclio

21,900+

plots with planning status
IMAGE >
REMOVED The land bank
See page 30
IMAGE ->
REMOVED Asset managernent
See page 31
IMAGE -
REMOVED Delivery
See page 32
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Strategic Report
Chief Executive’s Review

Residential
(continued)

1%

of residential portfolio with planning

m

value added to residential land

STRATEGY

Cur land strategy continues to be to ‘buy
wholesale' and 'sell retal’ Essentially,
we buy land, predominantly brownfield,
at a low cost and maximise its value
over time through intensive asset
management, remediation and planning
We then realise that value through one of
the followtng threa routes to market

s residential land sales
s 5t Modwen Homes

* Persimmon joint venture

MARKET COMMENTARY

Residential output has nsen

significantly over the last 12 months,
with many housebuilders, including

St Modwen Homes and Persimman,
reporting a healthy increase In sales
Improving consumer sentiment,
supportive Government schemes such
as ‘Help to Buy’ and an increasingly
stable economy have all contnbuted to a
more positive outlock for the residential
market as a whole These aspects are
playing a central role in boosting the
regions while London and the South East
continue te perform strongly
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RESIDENTIAL LAND

We remam successful in our abiiity to
secure residential-led planning consents
acrass our land bank, regardless of the
conyinued challenges with the ptanning
regme As a result, 81% of our portfolio
(over 21,900 plots) has erther planning
permissions or allocations within

local plans

In line with our business model, we
continue to top up our land bank with
future residential-led opportunihes

to ensure that we are constantly

In a position to create value In the
last 12 months we have increased
our land bank to over 27,000 plots
Recent highlights nclude

* Clay Cross, Derbyshire — a 204 acre
brownfield site acquired in September
2013 It already benefits from outline
planning consent for the creation of
a high-quality mixed-use regional
regeneration scheme that includes
up to 600 homes !t is designated as
a key development area within the
distnct of North East Derbyshire

» Eastwood, Nottinghamshire - 17
acres acquired in Novermmber 2013
Currently compnsing circa 280,000
sq ft of unoccupied buldings, this site
will be redeveloped to create a new,
residential-ded, mixed-use community

As the market continues to improve,
competition from the mayor national
housebuilders for land pnmed for
residential development is intensifying
This translates into greater land values
and sales achieved above book

value Throughout the year, we have
expenenced growing demand for our
land across the country as housebuilders
replerush their stocks to meet increasing
demand As a resutt, in the penod, we
have sold or committed for sale 57 acres
of land, totalling £58m




Significant residential land transactions

* RAF Mill Hifl - the sale of seven
acres to Gallford Try for £25 5m and
contracts exchanged on circa three
acres with Cala Homes for £13m

* Rugby - the sale of 10 acres to Taylor
Wimpey for £6 7m

+ TJaunton - the sale of 4 7 acres to
Dawid Wilson Homes for £4 2m and
6 1 acres to Taylor Wimpey for £5 5m

Planning consents achieved

s Branston, Burton upon Trent - for
660 homes and new employment
space on this 280 acre site, including
manufactusng, storage and
distnbution units

Prrell, Burton upon Trent — for 289
homes, a hote), restaurants, public
house, offices and commercial units
on disused parts of the Pirell Factory

s Edison Place, Rugby —for 175
homes on part of this 50 acre site of
which 32 acres are earmarked for
residential development

Hartshill, Stoke-on-Trent —for 111
homes, along with a restaurant,
public house and a parade of shops
on this 11 acre site owned by
Dyson Industnes

Applications subrmitted

s Uttoxeter, Staffordshire — for 700
homes, employment space, new
school, sports and recreational
facilities, a local retall centre and the
provision of open green space

» Eiesmere Porl, Cheshire — for 350
homes, cpen publc space, footpath
and cycle links on this 29 acre site

» Wigan Enterpnse Park, Manchester
—for 325 homnes as part of the
redevelopment of the cldest parts
of this commercial site

Future opportunities

=+ New Covent Garden Market — over
2,900 apartments to be delivered
as part of this major regeneration
project situated in the Nine Elms area
of London, for which we anticipate
achieving a planning consent in 2015

» Faverdale Garden Village, Darlington
- a scheme of 600 homes plus open
space and improvement of bus, cycle
and walking links

» Hiton, South Derbyshire — a new
mixed-use development at this former
MoD site which currently compnses
a mux of ndustnal and open storage
to provide 485 homes, a new primary
school and employment opportunities

¥

Over 2,900 apartments will be delivered
as part of the redevelopment of the 57
acre Mew Covent Garden Market site in
Nine Elms, London

IMAGE
REMOVED

¥

Persimmon started on site with 284 homes at

Meon Vale, Long Marston, Warwickshire, one

of the eight sites being delivered as part of the
Joint venture

IMAGE
REMOVED
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¥

St Modwen Homes ts progressing well with
its first phase developmerit of 94 homes at
Lsttlecombe, Dursley

IMAGE
REMOVED
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Strategic Report
Chief Executive’s Review

Residential
(continued)

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

In ine with the improving market place
over the last 12 months, residential
development and sales have gathered
pace, resutting in an overall profit
increased by 33% to £8m (2012 £6m)
which provides an exceflent platform
from which to grow this area of the
business further

St Modwen Homes

In its second full year of bullding,

St Modwen Homes has continued to
grow from its base at Longbridge and 1t
has opened a second office in Bnstol to

support the delivery of current and future

St Modwen Homes' sites across the
South West and South Wales

At present, St Modwen Homes i1s on
site with eight schemes at vanous
stages of delivery across the country
and totalling around 1,000 new homes
As we continue to build the brand,

St Modwen Homes will continue to
focus on delivering around 200 to 300
units per year

St Modwen Homes benefits from our
extensive land bank providing it with a
competrive advantage in terms of being
able to use our considerable expertise
in planming and select sites that are
best suited to the brand In turn, it can
focus on providing a higher quality ang
bespoke product Future opportunities
currently include two schemes In

South Wales compnsing a total of 460
homes and an Inttial phase of a 660
home development in Branston, Burton
upon Trent
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Persimmon joint venture

Our Joint venture with Persimmon,
established in 2010, continues to
perform well and we are now building

or selling on all eight sites that were
planned under the agreement. This will
see over 2,300 residential plots delvered
by 2017 Scheme highlights include

* RAF Uxbndge, London - delivery of
the first 453 homes 1s progressing well
as part of this 110 acre mixed-use
scheme which has planning for 1,340
homes, 200,000 sq ft of commercial
office and retail development, a new
pnmary school, theatre, community
facilities, hotel and a 40 acre
public park

Meon Vale, L.ong Marston,
Warwickshire = Persimmon started
on site with 284 homes this year
at this former MoD site which

is being transformed into a
mixed-use community

» Coed Darcy, South Wales —
Persimmon has experienced excellent
sales rates for its scheme of 300
homes which forms part of a broader
1,063 acre regeneration project that is
transforming thus former BP ol refinery
into a new sustamable community of
4,000 homes, with 440,000 sq fi of
commercial accormnmodation

RESIDENTIAL LAND BANK £m

CHART
REMOVED

H Under management — Regions

H Under managerment - London and SE
I Persimmon jont venturs

H St Modwen Homes

l Exchanged for sale




Residential development sales

Albert impacted by delayed site starts
dunng the first six months of the year
due to continued challenges with the
planning system, sales rates achieved
for the entire year have been steady

In the financial year we have achieved
385 house sale completions (2012 259)
compnsing 128 for St Modwen Homes
(2012 158) and 230 for the Persmmon
joint venture (2012 101)

Residential land bank at 30" November 2013

OUTLOOK

As demand from house buyers continues
to improve and housebuilders continue
1o seek attractive land to replenish ther
stocks, we expect greater levels of
activity In the residential market but at

a stable pace Momentum is already
starting to build in the regions and this 1s
expected to continue throughout 2014
whilst activity in London and the South
East will remamn considerably more
buoyant With our sites now pnmed

for residential development, we expect
to take advantage of the increased
appetre for residential land and are in 2
good position to exploit this throughout
2014 Mwroring this upturn, we expect
St Modwen Homes and the Persimmon
joint venture to continue to grow during
2014, both in terms of profit delivery and
sales volumes

November 2013 Novermber 2012
Acres Unris Acres Urits

With planning recognition allocated within the
local plan or similar

Resalution to grant
Qutline permission
Detalled permission

238 3,669 178 3,396
105 1,470 M0 1942
892 14,191 794 13175
180 2,579 169 2337

No planning recognition

1,425 21,909 1281 20,850
468 5114 523 5694

Total residential land

1,893 27,023 1,804 26,544

Residential development as at 30% November 2013

St Modwen Persimmon
Homes joint venture

Actve and

completed Actve  TOTAL
Number of sites 8 8 16
Units 1,236 2323 3,559
Units completed 299 340 639
Land revenue received (£Em) 7 4 48
Future land revenue (estimate £m) 26 62 88
Potential 5t Modwen share of future
development profits £m 29 45 74
Total 55 107 162
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Strategic Report
Chtef Executive’s Review

Income
producing
properties

The backbone of our
long-term business,

our income producing
properties ensure we
extract the maximum value
from our land bank in the
short-term by working hard
those assets that generate
a steady income stream
prior to development.

Pictured The five megawatt Solar Park at
Baglan Bay

£514m

value of income producing properties

1,700+

tenants
IMAGE =4
REMOVED The land bank
See page 36
IMAGE ->
REMOVED Asset management
See page 37
IMAGE -2
REMOVED Recurring income
See page 37
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Income
producing
properties
(continued)

¥

The Trentham Estate generated £1 25m of
incoma dunng the pencd and welcomed over
425,000 vistors

IMAGE
REMOVED

STRATEGY We currently manage a diverse base
P of over 1,700 occupiers that cover a
wide vanety of sectors with a broad
range of requirements The diversity

of our tenant base mitigates our nsk
against any administrations and specific
sector challenges

Our income producing assets now
make up 45% of our property portfolio
Regeneration and development 1s

a long-term business producing
significant future value and we extract
the maximum value from our tand
bank in the short-term by working hard PERFORMANGCE

those assets that generate a steady —_—

income stream prior to development At the year end our income producing
Furthermare, we employ tocally-based properties were valued at £514m

asset management teams to (2012 £562m) and represent the largest
manage these assets as efficlently as tranche of our portfolio Providing further
possible and typically offer affordable evidence of the gradual recovery of the
rents on relatrvely short tenancies, commercial property market and the
ensurng that voids remain at ther strength of our tenant portfolio, we have
lowest possible level as we work expenenced very few administrations
towards redevelopment dunng tha year and occupancy levels
reman steady at 88% (2012 88%)

Similarly, once a site 1s developed, we Wa have managed the churn in our
will retain it f0r Income unlil we fee! we portfoho by secunng caom Of new
can no longer add any further value, at lettings, equivalent to 20% of our gross

which point we will dispose of the asset rent roll dunng the year (2012 £9 7m)
and renvest the capital raised back into
the business

Partfolio yield analysis

Equrvalent Net rubal Value &m

Mov2(H3  Nov20712  MNov2M3  Nov20'2  Nov20i3  Nov20i2

Retail 9.2% 90% 17.7% 76% 201 240
Office 9.7% 94% 7.0% 70% 59 61
Industnal 9 2% 92% 8.0% 79% 254 261
Portfolio 9 2% 92% 7.8% 77% 514 562
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Highlights mclude

Income

s Heartlands Park, Washwood Heath
- this 55 acre business park 1s now
approaching 100% occupancy
following a letting In August 2013 to
Network Rail on a five year lease for
38,000 sq ft of warehouse and office
accommodation Ths [alest letting
brings the rental ncome of the site to
£1 6m per annum

The Trentharn Estate, Stoke-on-Trent

- attracted over 425,000 visitors in

the penod (2012 403,954), and this
725 acre leisure destination generated
£1 23m of cperational income

(2012 £1 0m), with the shopping willage
remaning 100% occupled

Solar Park, Baglan Bay, South Wales

- we have now completed work to

the Solar Park at Baglan Bay which
comprises 20,000 photovoltaic panels
Once live in March 2014, it will generate
five megawatts of electricity sufficient
to supply over 1,200 homes and
provide an annual Incoma of around
£600,000

Disposals

We disposed of several assets dunng the
year to which we could add no further
value All capital raised from the sale

of these assets has been reinvested m
the business and will be used to fund
new cpportunities

The most significant disposal, complated
at the end of the year, was of the Elephant
& Castle Shopping Centre We acquired
the property in 2002 for £29m and

since then, through our skilful asset
management capabilities, have added
significant value which is reflected in the
£80m sale price versus a book value

of £52 5m.

Acquisitrons

Ensunng that our property portfolio
remamns topped up with opportunities
that provide short-term income and
leng-term development potenhal, we
acquired the Waterdale Shopping Centre
in Doncaster in October 2013 for £3 6m
Immediately secunng rental Income

and icreasing its value to £4 Om,

we have already secured three new
lettings to local retallers and discussions
are underway with other nterested
occupiers Currently, the centre produces
a gross rent of over £900,000 Dunng the
course of 2014 we will work on the
extensive refurbishment of the centre to
provide a more moedern, attractive space
for both retallers and customers

OUTLOOK

As occupler confidence grows and
companies start to think about
expansion and diversification, we expect
this area of the business to continue to
provide us with a sigrificant and secure
source of ncome that underpins our
running costs

Reflected in our market valuations,
pressure on yields 1s easing and will
continue to do so, but at a steady pace
as this market slowly starts to improve
In ine wrth the gradual improvement

in the commerctal property market, we
will continue fo grow our development
pipeline not only from within our existing
portfolio but as new opportunities with
the potential to add value come through

Bill Oliver
Chief Executive

3™ February 2014

¥

The 125,000 sq ft phase one of Great Westem
Business Park 1s now fully let and provides an
annual ncome of £0 4m

IMAGE
REMOVED

¥

The first phase of the new Town Centre
at Longbndge opened in August 2013

IMAGE
REMOVED
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Strategic Report

Financial

Review

IMAGE
REMOVED

‘Our ability to
generate strong
returns across
the cycle, driven
by the underlying
quality of the
business, is now
very apparent.’

INCOME STATEMENT

St Modwen is a proactive company
focused on creating long-term

value through our own efforts

We take a pragmatic approach,

making investments to which we add
and realise value through planning,
asset management, remediation and
development over tme Qur continued
success of delivery Is a testament to this
long-term view

38 St Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013

£40m

property profits

+31%

trading profit increase

A core part of our business medel is
ensunng that a major proportion of

our assets generate income prior to
development This consists of core rental
income and other revenus deriving from
our £514m portfolio of income producing
properties, compnsing more than 100
commetctal properties and making up
45% of our total portfolio These cash
streams underpin the running costs

of the business and prowvide frm
foundations from which we can add
value to our portfolio through planning
and asset management activiies with
the aim of realising profits from our
development activities

As we use a number of joint venture
arrangements, the statutory Financial
Staternent disclosures do not always
provide a straightforward way of
understanding our business To enable
a better understanding, we have also
provided information including the
Group's share of joint ventures and a full
reconciliation is provided in note 2 to the
Group Financial Statements




PROFITS

Rental and recumng income

Thus core part of our business continues
to perform well Even taking into account
asset sales in the year | can once agamn
report a marginal increase in the Group's
share of net rental income to £36 3m
(2012 £36 2m), achieved as a result

of our successful asset management
capabilibes The excess of new lettings
and rent reviews over churn and
admiristrations has increased to £3 8m
(2012 £2 0m) and we anticipate our

net rental Income remaining steady
throughout 2014 as we replace income
sold during the course of 2013

Occupancy levels remain stable at

88% (2012 88%) and our average

lease length has been held at 5 0 years
(2012 5 0vyears) Due to the nature of
our business, where we retain assets for
income pnor to development, we tend to
rmamtain voids at a reasonably high leve!
as we reguire properties to be vacant
whilst we prepare them for development
Therefore, our void levels remamn in ling
with our expectations

Property profits

We have achieved a 37 % increase

in realised property profits to £40m
(2012 £29 0m) from development

This includes significant contnbutions
from our development of the Bay
Campus for Swansea University and
the sale of the Elephant & Castle
Shopping Centre by our KPI joint
venture Both these transactions
highlight the value of the St Modwen
long-term business model In particular,
the Elephant & Castle transaction
demonstrates our ability to add value
to our retained assets The joint venture
acquired the asset for £29m 1n 2002,
significantly increased the income
generated by it and then sold the asset
for £80m, representing a yield of 4 25%

Residential housing sales have
coninbuted over £8m The residential
contnbution reflects how this area of
the business has grown throughout
the year and hughhghts the success
we have achieved in setting up our
St. Modwen Homes business and
the development of our Persimmaon
joint venture

Overheads

Our cost base ts dnven by the
employment of skilled teams of
professionals to manage existing and
potential assets Our UK-wide land bank
allows us the flexibility to adapt to market
demands and conseguently pursue

only those opportunities that generate
the greatest value at any tme We have
continued to expand our residential team
and this, together with the bonuses pard
for successful business delivery, means
that administrative expenses for 2013
{including the Group’s shara of joint
ventures and associates) has increased
to £20 2m (2012 £18 6m)
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Strategic Report
Financial Review

TRADING PROFIT £m

CHART
REMOVED

ADDED VALUE VALUATION
GAINS £m

CHART
REMOVED

Property portfolio - valuation movements in the year

2013 2012
Value Value
Market value added by Market vake added by
r ents  St. Modh Total movwements St Modwen Totad
Residential 21 22 43 8 38 44
Commercial fand 4) - 5] ) - ]
Income producing
Retail ) 4 3 (23] 7 (1)
Office () - ()] © m M
Industnial (4] 2 1 (13) 5] 1]
Total 14 28 42 {20) 48 28
PROFITS (CONTINUED) PROPERTY VALUATION

Finance costs and income

As we have become more active on the
development of our schemes throughout
the year, this has been reflected ina
slhight increase, after allowing for the
equity placing, in net debt and higher
average borrowing levels for the perod
An increased proportion of the debt

1s fixed cost, erther on our retad bond

or our hedging arrangements The full
year of fixed cost on the retall bond has
resulted n a slight increase in finance
costs in the penod

Trading profit

Overall trading profit has therefore
increased agam this year by 31% to
£33 3m (2012 £25 5m), an extremely
posthve result We will continue to
focus on generating value across our
land bank and ensunng that our rental
income and recumng other income
underpins the running costs of the
business Supported by our firm financal
footing, with key projects wathin cur
development pipeline (such as the

Bay Campus, Swansea University and
the Marks & Spencer development

at Longbndge), along with our other
majer schemes, we expecttobeina
good position to continue to take on an
increase in workload as the econormic
environment improves
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Property portfolio

Cur praperty portfolio 1s worth £1 1bn
(2012 £1 1bn) Dunng the pencd, we
have continued to actively manage

our portfolio, spending £177m on
acquistions and caprital expenditure and
realising £172m from asset disposals
As the UK economy becomes more
active, we expect these numbers to
remain significant

Movements in the year

Property valuation movements are
made up of two man elements thosa
resutting from actions that we undertake
specffically to add value to our assets,
and those resulting from changes in the
overall property market Jones Lang
LaSalle LLP provides this valuation split
for us




£14m

market-dnven valuation increase

LTV (ON BALANCE SHEET) %

CHART
REMOVED

LTV (INCLUDING JV DEBT) %

CHART
REMOVED

Market-dnven valuation movements

In kne with market movements, yields
over the last 12 months have been
broadly steady with value reduchons
in the first half of the year offset by
improvements in the second half
valuations of our ncome producing
portfolo There has been a matenal
increase in the value of our residential
portfolio, notably in the South East
(although residential land 1S Increasing
in value across England and Wales), of
£21m (2012 £8m) which has resulted
in an overall net market-driven increase
in the value of our property partfolio of
£14m (2012 £20m decrease)

Valuation improvements as a result of
St Modwen actions
Our ability to add value to our existing

portfolio by actively managing our asset

base Is a crucial part of our business

mode! and this year has again delivered

some very good results This success
comes from managing commercial and

residenttal land through planning, despite

the difficulties of this process

Based on independent valuations from
Jones Lang LaSalle, we have been
able to generate revaluation gains of

£28m in the year (2012 £48m including

a significant contnbution from RAF
Uxbndge) We expect to continue to

generate significant value improvements

given the increased activity across
our portfolio, and our expertise in
asset management

Basis of property valuation

All our investment properties are
independently valued every six months
by Jones Lang LaSalle LLF, a global
real estate professional services
business Jones Lang LaSalle based
its valuations upon an open market
transaction between a willing buyer

and a willing seller at the Balance Sheat
date Therefore, no value 1s taken for any

future expectations of value increases
but discounts are applied to reflect
future uncertamties Where appropnate
we supplement our intemal procedures

with an independent assessment of our

work in progress for any impairment
1Issues In accordance with accounting
standards, valuation movements are
put through the Income Statement as
gains or losses Valuations in all our
asset classes have been substantiated
by open market transactions dunng the
course of the year

PROFIT BEFORE ALL TAX

Cur profit before all tax Is stated before
tax on joint venture income and after
movements in the market value of our
interest rate denvatives (hedges and
swaps). The valuations are based on

the financial market’s forward prediction
curves for interest rates At the end of the
financial reporting pencd and together
with other finance charges, this caused

a credit of £6 7m (2012 £06m debit)

Profit before all tax increased
substantially by 56% to £82 2m
(2012 £52 8m), an extremely positive
result for the year
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Strategic Report
Financial Review

EQUITY NET ASSET PER SHARE p

CHART
REMOVED

EPRA NET ASSET
VALUE PER SHARE p

CHART
REMOVED

TAXATION AND PROFITS AFTER TAX

A lower level of valuation gains
attnbutable to our joint venture assets
has led to a reduced tax charge in

the year of £8 3m (2012 £10 5m)

After allowang for this, we have achieved
a very strong result for the year with
profits after tax of £73 Sm, a 75%
increase compared with 2012 (€42 3m)

BALANCE SHEET

In the first half of the year we
successfully completed an equity
placing, raising gross proceeds of £49m
at a pnce of 245p per share which was
closely aligned with the shareholders’
equity net asset value per share of 251p
at Novemnber 2012

The funds from the placing will be

used to exploit the potential of the
development at the New Covent Garden
Market (NCGM) sites in Nine Elms,
London The equity funds mean that

we ¢can enter discussions with potential
partners for NCGM knowing that we
have sufficient resources to delver our
other major projects

The assets and liabilites of the NCGM
contract will only be recognised on
our Balance Sheet once detailed
planning consent i1s achieved and the
contract becomes fully uncondional
Our expectation remains that this will
happen dunng our 2015 financial year
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Net assets

At the year end, the shareholders'
equity value of net assets was £614m
or 279p per share This represents an
11% increase over the year (2012 251p
per share) In addrtion to this increase
dividends of £8 2m (3 75p per share)
were paid dunng 2013 (2012 £6 8mor
3 41p per share)

EPRA net asset value

In ine with industry best practice we
also report net assets per share using
the EPRA (European Public Real Estate
Association) methodology* Our diluted
EPRA net asset value rose 10% 1o 298p
from 272p per share A full reconciliation
of our net assets 1s provided in note 2 to
the Group Financial Statements

PENSION SCHEME

Our defined benefit pension scheme
continues to be fully funded on an IAS19
basis With the scheme being closed

to new entrants and closed to future
accruzl we do not currently expect any
significant matenal future increase In
scheme contnbutions

“ Note as adevelopment business many of the
EPRA metncs are mappropnate as they are geared
to property mvestment




CORPORATE FACILITIES

We have ample headroom within our
corporate facilities allowing us to meet
future development and funding needs
At the year end we had £479m of
facilitres agatnst drawn debt of £341m

Hedging and cost of debt

We hedge the majority of our interest rate
nsk as we aim to have predictable costs
attached to our borrowing At the year
end we were 86% hedged against our
corporate debt (2012 93%) We expect
this proportion to reduce in future as
our hedging slowly drops away As any
new financing is put in place we will
ensure that our hedging posttions are
appropnate for our future development

Curent banking factlites

Corporate funding covenants

We are operating well within the
covenants that apply to both our
corporate banking facilities and to
the retail bond These are

Bank

+ Net assets must be greater than
£250m (actual £627m)

* Gearng must not exceed 175%
(actual 54%)

» |nterest cover ratic (that excludes
non-cash items such as revaluation
movements) must be greater than
1 25x (actual 2 9%}

Bond

= See-through loan-to-value ratio must
not exceed 75% (actual 33%)

» Interest cover ratio must be greater
than 1 5x (actual 3 1x)

Although the cumment economic
environment still has an element of
uncertainty, we have considered
available market information, consulted
with our advisers and applied our

own knowledge and expenence
Consequently, we believe that covenant
levels are adequate for our possible
negative scenancs

CHART
REMOVED
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Strategic Report
Financial Review

£139m

undrawn facility headroom

£49m

raised from equity placing

Joint venture facilites

Our two joint venture facilites are VINCI
St Modwen (VSM) and Key Property
Investments (KPI)

+ VSM Uxbndge - our 50 50 joint
venture with VINCI PLC has grown
out of Project MoDEL, whereby we
acquired and developed a portfolio
of sites in North London which were
formerly owned by the Ministry of
Defence Land receipts are rapidly
reducing the debt which was £40m
at the year end (St Modwen share

£20m) {2012 £50m, St Modwen share

£25m) We expect this debt reduction
to accelerate in 2014

We are also now working together
with VINCI in joint venture on the New

Covent Garden Market sites We are In
continua! dialogue with our partners on

the appropnate ownership structures
for these joint ventures and as has
happened previously, these ownership

shares may change moving debt on or

off Balance Sheet
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+ KPl-our 50 50 joint venture with
Salhia Real Estate Company KS C
holds significant retail and commercial
assets with long-term development
potential Dunng the year the joint
venture sold the Elephant & Castle
Shopping Centre in London for £80m
Thus disposal, together with other
asset sales, significantly reduced the
debt in the joint venture to £28m at the
year end, with the St Modwen share
representing £14 5m (2012 £115m,
St Modwen share E57 5my)

Since the year end dvidends pad to
shareholders have increased the debt
levels We are reviewing the financing
arrangements for this joint venture

to ensure that they are appropnately
matched for our future requirements

Funding levels

We have n¢ corporate or joint venture
facilities that require renewal before
November 2014, when our £100m
Lioyds facility matures

We have existing offers for the renewal

and extension of this and other debt

faciities and continue to consider

options to increase the diversity and
longewity of our facilites We are well
positioned to move forward with
sufficient facilities of the right type to
support further growth in the business




As we evaluate the vanous routes for our
major projects it might be appropriate for
us to consider funding that 1s designed
specifically for each opportunity

In the secend half of the year, the
improving economy has meant that

we have invested in our business and
increased the value of our assets
Consequently, although there has been a
slight increase in equivalent on Balance
Sheet debt {£341m) (2012 £318m after
adjusting for the equity placing) our
geanng and loan-to-value ratios have
continued to fall This is particularty
noticeable once the significant reduction
n joint venture debt 1s considered with
the see-through loan-to-value ratio falling
to 33% (2012 41%)

Gwven the improving economic
environment we will continue to

invest to generate future returns
Throughout the next year, on a
see-through basis, we expect both

the geanng and loan-to-value ratios

to remain broadly consistent although
changes In joint venture structures rmay
affect the on Balance Sheet ratios

Pnncipal nsks and uncertainties

The pnncipal nsks and uncertanties
which could have a matenal impact
on the Group and the corresponding
mitigating actions that are in place are
set out on pages 46 to 49

Gwen the progress of the business and
the increased optimism for the economy
we consider that the overall position
continues to improve

OUTLOOK

Qur abilty to generate strong returns
across the cycle, dnven by the
underlying quality of the business, is
now very apparent Throughout the
year and against the backdrop of the
changing economic environment, we
have continued tc maximise and grow
our income and we continue to invest

in the business whilst maintaining a
prudent financlal structure We also look
forward to secunng planning permission
for the New Covent Garden Market land
which is not yet accounted for within
our financial results These factors
combined provide us with a sound
financial platform from which we can
continue to add value and dnve the
business forward

Mrchael Dunn
Group Finance Director

3 February 2014
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Strategic Report

Principal nsks and uncertainties

How we manage our risks

Economic and
market risk

Uncertainty in the economic
and market environment
increases the risk attached
to property valuation and
development returns

Financial risk

Our geared financial structure
means that there are
Inevitable nsks attached to the
avallability of funding and the
management of fluctuations

in our cash flows

Risk and
potential impact

Market/economic changes such as higher
Interest rates, reduced demand for land
and new properties (e g residential),
reduced avallability of credit and declinng
Investment yields restnct business
development and cause valuation falls

Failure to dentify a pipeline of future
residential sites reduces our supply of
homes or reduced avalabilty of mortgage
finance adversely impacts demand for
hames In our residential business

Poor market intellgence (i e falure to
anticipate market changes) leads to
selection of Inappropnate and, uttimately,
unprofitable schemes

Financial collapse of, or disputa with, a key
joint venture partner leads to financial loss

Avallabilty of funding reduces, causing
a lack of iquidity that impacts bomowing
capacity and reduces the saleabilty

of assets

Unforeseen significant changes to cash
flow requirernents (e g operating cost
increases, pension fund shortfall it the
ability of the business to meet its ongoing
commitments
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Mitigation

Regronal spread and portiolio diversity mitgates
sector or location-specific nsks

Active portfolio management achieves a better
than market utiisation of assets
Hedging policy reduces nterest rate nsk.

Tearn of professionals with residential expenence
and expertise

Extensive land bank with a continueng stream

of planrung applicabons

Flexible approach to mortgage financing

{e g shared equity schemes)

Use of JV parners with residential expertise

{e 9 Persmmon)

Regional offices in touch with ther local market
Dedicated central resource supportng regonal teams
Flexible and movatve approach to acqusitions
and schemes in order to adapt to market changes
Projects, acguistions and disposals are reviewed

{and financially appraised) within clearty defined
authonty Imits

Monthly review of performance to identify if servor
management intervention 1s required
Flexible but legally secure contracts with partners

Recumng ncome from rents provides funding for
a large percentage of overhead and interest costs

* Strong relationships with key banks

Fnancial headroom matntained to

provide flexibility

Aternative sources of funding (e g retail bond in
2012, equity placing in 2013)

Waeighted average expiry of faciiies 1s 2 5 years at
30" November 2013

Reguiar and detaled cash flow forecasting
enables monitonng of performance and
management of future cash flows




Commentary

Wa chcose to operate only in the UK, which is subject to relatively low nsk and low returns from a
stable and mature, albert cyclical, economy and property market By involvernent with all sectors of
that economy and property market, we are as diversified as possible, without ventunng overseas
QOur land bank of over 5,800 acras provides us with the flexibility to move wath market demands and
pursue those opportunities that generate the greatest value at any one time

Over the course of the last year, the continuing {albert mproving) sovereign debt problems within the
Eurazone means that the overall market positon continues {o represent a high nsk.

The planning environment 15 becorming more difficutt with an ncreased fikelihoed of delays in the
planning process However, our scale and experbse means that we are still beng successiul in this
area, although ndividual schemes may suffer delay Demand for new homes remains strong and has
heen boosted by an increase in the avallabilty of new mortgage financs which is due at least in part
to the Government’s Help to Buy scheme

The excellent reputation and financal capactty of the Company has enabled us to continue to win
schemes and grow the land bank to record levels, n an improving but still challenging market and
economy In this ervironment, with a reduced number of active compstitors, we expect to be able to
continue to source attractive acquisiions

Qur key partners are Persimmon PLC, VINCI PLC and Salhia Real Estate KS C of Kuwat These
are financially skong partners with good prospects and strong balance sheets Where we have
financially weaker partners, we are exiing from these arrangements, meaning that the overall nsk has
reduced year-on-year

Our prudent approach to forward commitments, speculative development and asset disposals has
enabled us to optmise operational cash flows and ofiset the mpact of fluctuating market condrions
Furthermore, we have once again recorded a trading profit in the year, demonstrating our ability to
succeed in varyng markets The success of our first retall bond (October 2012) and an equity
placing (March 2013} has further dversified our debt financing profile by prowiding access to
unsecured funding

QOur cash flow is closely monitored throughout the year and the year end position in ine with the
gudelnes that we sat at the start of the year
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Strategic Report

Principal nsks and uncertainties

Construction
risk
The management of

developments s a
complex process

Regulatory and
compliance risk

Our work 1s undertaken in a
complex environment with
consequent comphance nsks

Human
resources and
organisational
risk

Our activities require
highly-skilled and motivated

people in order to deliver
consistently and effectively

Risk and
potential impact

inadequate due diigence on major new
scheames leads to unforeseen exposures,
costs and liabilses, which prevent effectve
delivery and resutt in financial loss

Inadequate construchon delivery and
procurement leads to qualty issues
and cost overruns causng customer
dissatsfaction and/or financial damage

National Planning Policy Framework
changes adversely impact on our business
strategy by limiting our ability to secure
viable permissions and/or by remowving

our competrive advantage

Failure to manage long-tenm environmental
1ssUes relating to brownfield and
contaminzted sites leads to a major
environmental incident, resuting In financial
and/or reputational damage

Lack of sucoession plannuing and/or over
rellance on key people causes loss
offfalure to attract good people and/or
significant disruptionoss of intellectual
property

HS&E cuiture leads to a major incident
{e g senous nyury to, or death of, an
employese, client, contractor or mermber
of the public) or non-compliance with
legistation, resuling 1n financial penattes
and/or reputational damage

Inadequate Business Continuity Planning
(BCP) for operabons and [T, leading to
sgnificant business disnuption, financialAP
loss and/or reputatonal damaga in the
event of an acadent, act of terronsm or
cyber cnme
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Mitigation

Use and dose supervision of a preferred

supply chain of high-qualty trusted suppliers

and professionals

Projects, acquistions and disposals are reviewed
and financialy appraised in detail, with clearly
defined authonty fimits

Contractual ability clearly defined

Strong nternal construction management team
Clearly defined formal tender process that
evaluates qualtative and quantitative factors

in bid assessment

Use and dlose supervision of a preferred
supply chain of high-quality trusted suppliers
and professionals

* Use of high—quality professional advisers \

Active involvernent in public consultation

* Constant monitonng of all aspects of the planning

process by expenenced In-house experts
Contacts in place with central and
local government

Usa of high-quality external advisors

Hghly qualifisd and expenenced intemal staff
Risk assessments conducted as part of due
diigence process

Full warranties from professional consultants and
remediation contractors

Defined businass processes to proactvely
manage Issues

Annual independent audit of ervronmental nsk
Reputaton managed by a core team of skilled
PR professionals

Succession planning monitored at Board level
and below

Targeted recrutment with competitive,
performance-dnven remuneration packages

Performance indicators are reviewed at
Board levet

Usa of high-qualty external HS&E adwsers
Defined business processes to proactively
manage ISsues.

Documented BCP and crsis management plans
covering T and operations

Dedicated IT team monitors perforrmance of all
infomation systems




Commentary

Our programme for the year has been delivered successiully and we have conducted robust
processes In selecting contractors for futura projects

Dunryg the year, all our developments have been completed on tme and withm budget

Our contractor selechon processes are ngorous, whilst the improving UK economy has reduced
the nsk overall, we continue to favour financially stable and robust contractors, and we are mndfud
of contractors’ cash flows becoming siretched in a nsing market

QOur dally exposure to all aspects of the planning process, and internal procedures for spreading

best practice, ensure we remain abreast of most developments Furthermore, we continue our
efforts to influence public policy debate  Although the current fluctuations in proposed planning
legislation mean that future nules are uncertain, with an Increased proportion of planring applications
going to appeal, our expertiss should enable us to prosper relatve to our competitors, rrespectve of
the planning ernronrment

We ara wiling to accet a degree of emaronmental nsk, enabling higher retums to be made
The nherent nsks are passed on or minimised whers possibls but cannot be elminated, although
the residual nskes have been acceptably low in recent years

We continue to offer attractve and competitive remuneration packages as 1s evidenced by the lack
of vacancies and chum We continue to adapt our recrutment strategy to source the skalls that wal

support the Company’s long-term business objectives

Health and safety continues to be a hugh pronty The assessment of environmental costs

(and the subsequent oplimesing of remediation solutions) s an integral part of our acquistion and
post-acqusiion process Wa seek to minmise or pass on any such emaronmental nsks, and befieve
that the residual risk rernains acceplably low In other social and sethical areas, our operations are
underpinned by a simple but ngorous set of operating commitments

Whike the business does not internally rely on IT as a business process for s success, our relance
on these areas is Increasing Conseguently, we are Increasing our preventative secunty and the
rabustness of our reactive procedures in order to address this
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Key
. Risk exposure increase
. Risk exposure reduced

WP No signficant change
in nsk exposure

Change since 2012
Annual Report
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Strategic Report

Corporate
Social
Responsibility

Acquinng brownfield sites
and breathing new life into
areas that need it the most
is at the heart of who we are
and what we do.

Pictured The Trentham Estate celebrates
10 years of being open to the pubhc n 2014

90%+

of our developable portfolic with
specified use is brownfield
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IMAGE
REMOVED

St. Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013 51

poday oifiejeng

8OUBLWIBAOY) SjRlodIC)

SWSLWSIEIS [BIDURUY

UOIBLLLIOJ| [BLONPPY



Strategic Report
Corporate social responsibility

8%

of remediated matenals are
recycled or reused

We are committed to improving the built
emvirenment through our regeneration
projects, all of which seek to transform
run-down areas and disused sites

into inspirational and thrving business
and residential communittes In doing
s0, we aim to ensure that community,
envircnmental and social considerations
are integrated within our day-to-day
waorking practices and at all stages

of the project hifecycle.

SUSTAINABILITY

The principles of sustamnable
development are integral to our
business and they form the basis

of our envirenmental policy which
demonstrates our commatment to
improving the environment To this am
we seek to

s be continually mindful of the impact
of our developments on the local and
wider environments,

protect and enhance the environment,
transforming run-down areas and
disused sites by developing them to
the highest possible standards,

continue to engage regularty with
statutory and non-statutory bodies,
with the local communrty and through
the planning and environmental
regulatory framework,

* conserve energy, reduce censumption
of raw materials and minimise waste
production, and

adopt practices which lead to
improvements in environmental
performance, for example
sustainable design of sites and
bulldings and the use of sustainable
construction techniques

Recycling/ remediation on site

As part of this commitment, we seek
to ensure the following principles are
adhered to across the Company

= ensure all buldings occupied by
the Group are managed efficiently
by its facilites team and the
budding surveyor,

* encourage all employees to
conserve energy

« promote recycling by negotiating
contracts and providing facilihes to
enable employees to recycle office
waste and other used products,

» control business travel and provide
opportunities for employees to travel
to work In various ways, such as
providing cycle racks and showers,

+ consult with the local community
on our proposed schemes,

ensure that all fluorescent light
tubes are disposed of In a safe
manner, compliant with appropnate
regulations, and

+ gnsure that we employ
considerate constructors

We also pay particular attention to
recyclhing matenals on site, using
sustainable matenals, conserving
energy, reducing our consumption
of raw matenals and minimising
waste production

The results below demonstrate our
commitment to reusing and recycling
matenials on site and in all instances we
have met or over-achieved our targets
for the year The slight decline inthe
percentage of remediated matenals
reused or recycled on site i1s attnbutable
to us having to dispose of some matenal
to landfill because they were unitt for
recyciing or reuse elsewhere

2013 2012 201
Target  achieved achieved

Percantage of remediated matenals
reused or recycled

Percentage of demolition products
reclaimed or retaned on site or recycled
Percentage of construction waste reused
or recycled

98% 98% 99% 99%
90% 93% 23% 96%

80% 1% 90% 88%
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GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS

We are conscious of our carbon footpnnt
and below have reported emissions for
those sources we deem ourselves to be
directly responsible

Total purchased gas and electnoity

s This represents the gas and elecincity
which has been consumed at
properties under our operational
control — Head Office, certalin regional
offices, including St Modwen Homes'
offices, sales offtces occupied by
St Modwen Homes and vacant space

Petrol and diesetl

* Petrol and diesel from all company
cars in use across the Group
Cars avallable to certain employees
as part of the Company’s car scheme
are restncted to CO, emussions of
130 g/km or less

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Organisation boundary and responsibility
Wa do not have responsibility for
emission sources that are beyond the
boundary of our cperational control
Conseqguently, not all gas and glectneity
purchased 1s included within Scope

1 and 2 as our tenanis’ consumption

15 not under our operattonal control
Furthermore, the data excludes
consumption from those sites which fall
within the joint venture with Persimmon
as itis our joint venture partner that
controls the procurement of utilities to
these sites For all other joint ventures,
100% of the data is included in our
emissions table as we are wholly
responsible for the emissions sources

Intensity ratio
10O, 100,
CO, emssons’  emssony
emissions fulame  £mproperty
ftonnes) empioyeas! portioio?

Scope 1

Total purchased gas 225

Petrol and diesel 495

TOTAL SCOPE 1 720 2.8 06
Scope 2.

Total purchased electnerty 961

TOTAL SCOPE 2 961 38 0.8
TOTAL SCOPE 1 and 2 1,681 66 1.4

1 Equivalent COz emissions per ful-time employee

2 Equrvalent CO: per £m of property portfolic held by the Company

Reporting year

Our reporting year for greenhouse gas
emisstons is the same as our financial
reporting year, being 1% December 2012
to 30" November 2013

Methodology

We have reported on all of the emussion
sources required under the Companies
Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors’
Reports) Regulations 2013 To calculate
emissions from gas and electricity
consumption, we have used the mam
requirements of the GHG Protocol
Standard (revised edition) and emission
factors from UK Government's GHG
Canversion Facters for Company

Reporting 2014

To measure emissions from company
cars, we have based this on the
‘Environmental Reporting Guidelines
Including mandatory greenhouse gas
ermissions reporting guidance’ (June
2013) issued by the Department for
Environment, Food and Rural Affarrs
(DEFRA) We have also utilised DEFRA's
2013 conversion factors wrthin our
reporting methodology

This is the first year for which we have
reported our greenhouse gas emissions
and this will form the baseline data for
subsequent Annual Reports As part

of our ongoing commitment to reduce
our carhon footprnt, we will continually
endeavour to improve on the way we
capture data for future reports
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Strategic Report
Corporate social responsibility

EMPLOYEE DIVERSITY

Our employees are mstrumental to our

business success and we respect and

value the ndmduality and diversity that
each one bnngs

The Company adheres to a clear equality
policy which sets out individuals' nghts
and obligations as defined by the
Equality Act 2010 This policy covers

the responsibilities and approach we
have to our employees and our duty

to avoid discrimination in all aspects

of recrutment and employment

A breakdown by gender of the number
of persons who were directors of the
Company, senior managers and other
employees (both full and part time) as
at 30" November 2013 15 set out here.

In considenng appointments to the
Board and to senior executive positions,
it 1s our policy to evaluate the skills,
knowledge and expenence required

by a particular rele with due regard for
the benefit of diversity and to make an
appontment accordingly
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BOARD DIVERSITY

CHART
REMOVED

W Male (78%)
B Female (22%)

SENIOR MANAGER DIVERSITY

CHART
REMOVED

W Mak 87%)
B Femala (13%)

ALL EMPLOYEE DIVERSITY

CHART
REMOVED

W Mals (53%)
B Female (47%)




TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

The motivation of our employees is
important to us as it mantains a good
level of staff retention which 15 key for
ensuring stabilty across the business
and in turn, ensures our long-term
projects are managed effectively In the
penod, 82% of management had served
over three years of service (2012 78%)

During 2013 we improved our appraisal
system which 13 designed to assist
employees In developing therr careers,
identify and provide appropntata tramning
and support the Company’s succession
planning ebjectives

Senior management also participated in
a Leadership Development Programme
duning the year The programme
compnsed a senes of individual
workshops that were designed to
enhance effective business skills and
entrepreneunal thinking Cver the next
12 months, the programme will be rolled
out at an appropnate level to all other
professional staff and tarlored to their
indvidual needs

HUMAN RIGHTS

Whilst we do not have a specific human
nghts policy at present, we do have
policies that adhere to internationally
proclaimed human nghts prnciples

We will give carsful consideration to
whether a specific human nghts policy 15
needed n the future over and above our
existing polictes

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Company gives high pnonty to
safeguarding the health and safety of the
public and its employees by pursuing a
policy which ensures that

« s business 15 conducted in
accordance with standards that are
in compliance with relevant statutory
provisions for health and safety
of staff and any other persons on
Company premises,

a safe and healthy working
environment i1s established
and maintained at all of the
Company's locaticns,

* managers at all levels regard healtth
and safety matters as a pnme
managerment responsibility,

sufficient financial resources are
provided to ensure that pohcies can
be implemented effectively,

good standards of training and
mstruction in matters of health and
safety are provided and mantamned
at all levels of employment,

* nisk assessments are camed out where
appropriate, and

a surtable advisory service in matters
of health and safety 1s provided
and mamtained

The Company’s health and safety
performance continues to be very goed,
with no enforcement notices 1ssued, no
prasecutions for breaches of health and
safely, and no fatalities
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CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

Affihated to the Government’s

Landfill Tax Credit Scheme and
regulated by ENTRUST, the

8t. Modwen Environmental Trust seeks
to support projects where alternative
funding 1s unlikely to be available,
targeting not-for-profit organisations
such as community groups and chanties

Established i 2008, the Trust has funded
over £250,000 of community projects
and in 2013, it reached the end of its
Iifecycle We are now working to renew
our strategy for chantable support which
will be aligned with our business strategy
and have both local and national focus

APPROVAL OF STRATEGIC REPORT

The Strategic Report for the year ended
30" November 2013, which 1s set out
from this annual report to page 55, has
been approved by the Board and was
signed on its behalf by

Bl Oliver
Chief Executive

3" February 2014
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Corporate Governance

The Board

IMAGE
REMOVED

BILL SHANNON

Non-executve Chairman

Appointed to the Board as non-executve
director and Chaiman Designate m November
2010 and became non-executve Charrrman in
March 2011

Committee membership
Chars the Nomination Committee and ts a
member of the Remuneraton Committee

BExpenence

A 30 year caresr at Whitbread plc which
culminated i his appointment as a man Board
director for 10 years until hus retrement in 2004
Former Charman of AEGON UK pkc {previously
Scottish Equitable), Gaucho Gril Holdings Ltd
and Peza Hut (UK) Ltd, and former
non-aexecutive director of The Rank Group plc,
Barratt Developments pc and Matalan plc
Currently a non-executive director of Johnson
Service Group ple and Trustes of the Royal
Voluntary Service A qualfied Chartered

Accountant (Scotland)

IMAGE
REMOVED

BILL OLIVER

Chief Executve
Appoainted to the Board In January 2000

Committee membership
None

Expenence

Has over 30 years' experience in the property
industry with residential and commercial
davelopment companies such as Alfred
McAlpine, Barratt and The Rutland Group
Finance Director of Dwyer Estates plc from
1984 to 2000 Joined St Modwen In 2000
as Finance Director, and was subsequenthy
appointed Managing Director in 2003 and
Chief Executve in 2004 A member of the
advisory board of the Govermment's
Rageneration Investment Organisation

A qualified Charterad Accountant

IMAGE
REMOVED

MICHAEL DUNN

Group Finance Director
Apponted to the Board n December 2010

Committee membershep
None

A 20 year career n finance, ncluding as
Finance Director of both Private Finance and
Buikding at Canlion plc Joned St Modwen in
2010 from May Gumey Integrated Servces pic
whera he spent five years as Group Finance
Owector A non-executve director of
Metropoiitan Housing Association and

a qualfied Chartered Accountant
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IMAGE
REMOVED

STEVE BURKE

Constructon Dwector
Appointed to the Board n Novernber 2006

Committee membership

None

Bxpenence

Joned St Modwen in 1995 as a Contracts
Sunvayor after a number of years' construchon
expenences In senior roles with national
contracting companies nciuding Batfour
Beatty and Clarke Construction

Appointed Construction Director it 1988

and joined the Board as a drector n 2006

IMAGE
REMOVED

RICHARD MULLY

Senior Independent Cirector

Appointed to the Board in Septernber 2013
and becarme Senior Independent Director in
December 2013

Commuttee membership
Member of the Audit, Remuneration
and Nomination Committees

Expenance

A 30 year career in investment bankang and real
estate prvate equity mvesting, including as
co-founder and managng partner of Grove
Intemational Partners LLP (formerly Soros Real
Estata Partners LLC) Currently Sanior
Independent Director of Hansteen Holdings plc
and ISG phe, non-executve director of Aberdeen
Assst Management plc and Supenvsory Board
mermber of Alstna Office REIT-AG




IMAGE
REMOVED

KAY CHALDECOTT

Independent non-executive director
Apponted o the Board m October 2012

Commuttea membership
Member of the Audrt, Remuneration
and Nominaton Committees

Bpenence

Joined Capital Shopping Cenires Group plc
{now Intu Properties plc) on graduating ankd held
anurmber of senior management postions,
mciuding Managing Director, dunng a career
spanning 27 years Also served as a man

Board director from 2005 until leaving the Group
1 2011 Currently a non-exacutive director of
NewRnwer Retall lmited A member of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors

IMAGE
REMOVED

JOHN SALMON

Independent non-executive director
Apponted to the Board in October 2005
Intenm Senior Independent Director from
March 2013 to November 2013

Committee membershp
Chars the Audit Commuttee and 1s a member of
the Remuneration and Nommation Commitiees

Expenence

Admitted to partnershp of Pnoe Waterhouse
in 1976 and was a senkx client partner at
ProgwaterhouseCoopers LLP with lead
responsibility for a range of major sted
companies unti his retrement in 2005

A former member and Deputy Chaman of
PwC's Supervisory Board and former Trustee
and Counci Member of the Bnish Heart
Foundabon A qualified Chartered Accountant.

IMAGE
REMOVED

SIMON CLARKE

Non-executive director
Appanted to the Board in October 2004

Committee membership
None

Expenence

Former Deputy Chaimman of Northern Raaing
ple and director and Vice-Chairman of The
Racecourse Association Ltd Cunmently
Charman of Dunstall Holdings Ltd The son
of Sr Stanley Clarka, the founder and former
Chamman of St Modwen, and represents the
interests of the Clarke and Leavesley famikes,
the Company’s largest shareholders, on

tha Board
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IMAGE
REMOVED

LESLEY JAMES, CBE

Independent non-executve director
Appointed to the Board In October 2009

Commites membership

Chairs the Remuneration Committee
and 15 a member of the Audit and
Nomination Commiitees

Expenence

HR Drrector for Tesco plc from 1985 to 1999
and a man Board director from 1994
Former non-executve director for a number
of companies including Care UK plc, Alpha
Airports Group ple, Inspicio ple, Liberty
Intemational pic arx the West Bromwich
Building Society Former Trustee of the chanty
J1GAN Cunently a non-executnve director of
Anchor Trust A Companen of the Chartered
Instriute of Parsonned and Development

IMAGE
REMOVED

TANYA STOTE

Company Secretary

Jomed St Modwen as Company Secretary
in March 2012 Has held senior Company
Secretary roles in a number of FTSE listed
companes including Taylor Woodrow pic,
Traus Perlans phc and, most recently, GKN ple
whers she was Deputy Company Secretary
and Head of Secretanal Department

A Fellow of thae Institute of Chartersd
Secretanes and Admunstrators
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Corporate Govemance

Regional Directors

IMAGE
REMOVED

JOHN DODDS, FRICS

Regional Director
Midlands

IMAGE
REMOVED

STEPHEN PROSSER, MRICS

Regional Director
North

IMAGE
REMOVED

GUY GUSTERSON, MBA
Residential Director

IMAGE
REMOVED

MIKE HERBERT

Regional Director
The Trentham Estate

IMAGE
REMOVED

TIM SEDDON, MRICS

Regional Director
London and South East
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IMAGE
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RUPERT JOSELAND, MRICS

Regional Director
South West and South Wales

IMAGE
REMOVED

RUPERT WOOCD, MRICS

Regional Director
Northem Home Counties




Corporate Governance Report

Chairman'’s Overview

As a Board, we are responsible for the The performance evaluation review
stewardship of the business and are undertaken at the end of the year
committed to maintaining high standards huighlighted the posrtive and open culture
of corporate governance across the on the Beard The results of this review
Group We believe good governance are bemng analysed as this report 1s
enhances business performance as finalised, details of the actions identified
well as our reputation within our market and progress towards achleving these
place and across relattonships with will be disclosed in next year's report
our stakeholders Our Board Committees have also
Our approach to governance i1s continued to perform effectively dunng
outlined In the following report, which the year The focus of the Nommation
descnbes how we Integrate into our Committee included the leadership
business the main pnnciples of the five needs and succession planning at both
sections of the 2012 UK Corporate Board and senior management level,
Governance Code {the Code}, namely including the recruitment of Richard
leadership, effectiveness, accountability, Mully The Rermuneration Committes
remuneration and relations with reviewed the policy for executive director
shareholders | am pleased to report that, remuneratron and worked to ensure that
throughout the financtal year ended 30™ remuneration arrangements continue to
November 2013, the Company complied support the Company’'s strategy As part
m full with the Code of its remit the Audit Committee reviewed
In bne with the development of cur the resuits of the valuation process of
P the Company’s property portfolio and
business, our governance framework
considered the accourting treatment to
is kept under close review In order to
R apply In respect of the developments at
ensure that shareholders’ interests are
New Covent Garden Market and the Bay
safeguarded and to sustain the success
Campus for Swansea University You will
of the Company over the longer-
find more on the work of the Committees
term As reported in my statement on
n the corporate governance section of
page 19, we have deepened further this Annual Report
the expertise on the Board by the P
appomtment of Richard Mully, who has At this year's AGM resolutions will be
spent almost 30 years in investmant proposed to renew the Company's
banking, capital markets and real estate existing Saving Related Share
private equity investing, as Senior Opticn Scheme and to approve the
Independent Director remuneration policy for directors which

will take effect from 1% December 2014
It is proposed that all votes on the
resolutions at the AGM will be taken

by way of a poll rather than a show of
hands This reflects current best practice
and ensures that votng intentions of aff
shareholders, including those who are
not able to attend the AGM but who
have appointed proxies, are taken into
account The notice of meeting, which
includes the special business to be
transacted and an explanation of all the
resolutons to be considered at the AGM,
1s set out on pages 155 to 164,

I hope that you find the corporate

governance section of this report
informative and 1 look forward to seeing
IMAGE you at our AGM in March
REMOVED
Bil! Shannon
Ghairrman
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Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

LEADERSHIP

The Board

The Board provides leadership of the
Company and direction for management
It 1s collectively responsible and
accountable to shareholders for the
long-term success of the Company.
It sets the strategy, oversees
implementation and reviews
performance, ensunng that only
acceptable nsks are taken and the
appropriate pecple and resources
are in place to deliver long-term value
to shareholders and benefits to the
wider community

To help retain control of key decisions,
the Board has put in place a formal
schedule of reserved matters that require
its approval The pnncipal reserved
matters include

* strategy,
* new husiness or geographical areas,

» authonsation of fransactions in
excess of £10m and those which are
otherwise significant,

» nsk management and internal control,
* dmdend policy,

e documents to shareholders and
the annual and half year report and
financial statements,

» matters relating to share capial, such
as share issues or buybacks, and

* the appomtment/removal of dlrectors
and the Company Secretary

The Board
{Chairman, non-executve and executive directors)

BOARD-LEVEL COMMITTEES

Audit Committee
(Independent
non-executive directors)

Remuneratton Committee  Nomination Committee
{Chairman and independent (Chairman and independent
non-executive directors)

non-executive directors)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEES
Executive Team Property Board Health and Safety
(executive directors and (executive directors, Steenng Group
Company Secretary) regional directors and {Sentor management)

Company Secretary

The Board delegates responsibiiity for
the implementation of strategy to the
executive directors,

The Executive Tearn, comprising the
executive directors and the Company
Secretary, meets weekly to discuss key
operational matters

The Property Board meets monthly
to review parformance and consider
Group-wide issues and iniiatives

The Health and Safety Steenng Group,
led by the Construction Director,

has oversight of the formulation

and mplementation of the Group's
approach to health and safety and
montors performance

The Board also delegates certain
responsibilities to a number of Board
Commuttees (membership of these
Committees is set out on pages 568
and 57)

60 St Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013

The Audit Comrnittee monitors the
integnty of the financial reporting and
audtt processes, reviews external
valuations of the property portfolio

and assesses the Company’s nsk
management and internal control
systems A report on its activities dunng
the year is given on pages 68 to 73

The Remuneration Commutfee
determines and agrees with the Board
the Group's general policy on executive
and senior management remuneration
and designs the Company’s share
incentive schemes The Directors’
Remuneration Report 1s set out on
pages 76 to 97

The Nomination Committee
recommends Board and Board
Committee appointments which
ensure an appropnate mix of skifls and
expenence and reviews Succession
planning against the leadership needs
of the Group A repart on its actiities
dunng the year is given on pages 74
and 75




Each Committee has written terms of
reference which have been approved by
the Board and are reviewed perniodically
to ensure that they continue to comply
with legal and regulatory requirements
and best practice guidance

Board roles

The Board compnses the Charrman,
the executive directors, a Senlor
Independent Director and four
non-executive directors

The Chairman

As Chairman, Bill Shannon’s role is to
lead the Board He i1s responsible for
ensunng both an effective Board and
effective contnbution from the directors
based on a culture of openness, debate
and constructive challenge

The Chairman sets the Board's agenda
and chairs Board meetings, ensunng
that adequate time is available for
discusslon of all agenda tems,
particularly strategic 1ssues He also
ensures that directors receive accurate,
timely and clear information o enable
themn to carry out therr duties effectively
The Charrman takes the lead in providing
a comprehensive, formal and tallored
induction programme for new directors
and regularty reviews and agrees

with each director any training and
development needs He leads on Board
performance evaluation and ensures that
effective communication occurs between
the Company and its shareholders

The Chief Executve

Bill Oliver, the Chief Executive, 1s
responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group's business,
for recommending the Group's strategy
to the Board and for implementing the
strateqy agreed by the Board

Role profiles setting out the dnision

of responsibilities between both the
Charman and the Chief Executive have
been approved by the Board

Executve directors

Mhichael Dunn, Group Finance Director,
and Steve Burke, Construction Director,
support Bill Olver in devising and
implementing strategy and in the
management of the business

Non-executive directors

The non-executive directors, who

have a range of complementary skills,
constructively challenge the executive
directors, help to develop the Company’s
strategy and monitor delivery of the
agreed strategy within the nsk and
control framework set by the Board

With the exception of Simon Clarke, who
represents the interests of the Clarke and
Leavesley families which together hold
19 4% of the Company’s issued share
capital, all non-executive directors are
deemed to be independent
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Senar Independent Director

Richard Mully, as Senior Independent
Directer, I1s responsible for ensunng

that the views of each non-executive
director are given due consideration and
to provide an additional communication
channel for shareholders

Board actnty

The Board discharges its responsibilities
through an annual programme of Beard
and Committee meetings Typically the
Board meets formally nine times a

year, directors’ attendance at meetings
held in 2012/13 13 set out on page

63 The Board also visits sites within

the Company's property portfolio, in
2013 the Board visited London to view
New Covent Garden Market, Leegate
Shopping Centre and Elephant & Castle
Shopping Centre, together with Great
Homer Street in Liverpool, Lowfield Lane
in St Helens, Vulcan Urban Village in
Newton-Le-Willows and Wythenshawe
Town Centre in Manchester
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Corporate Govemance

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board agendas are set by the Chairman in consuttation with the Chief Executive and
with the assistance of the Company Secretary, who maintainsg a 12 month rolling
programme of agenda rtems to ensure that all matters reserved to the Board and other
key I1ssues are consiclered at the appropriate time

Key actvities of the Board in 2012/2013

Standing agenda rtems mncluded
= Annuzl strateqy review

» Reports from the Chief Executive, the
Construction Director and the Group
Finance Director

» Reports on the activites of
the Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees

* Financing

= Property acquisitions and disposals
* Risk and nsk management

* Health and safety reports

« Approval of the half year and annual
results, the Annual Report, the notice
of AGM and dvidends

Investor feedback
* HRreports

+ Reports from the trustee of the
Company’s pension scheme

* Drectors' conflicts of interest

+ Actions ansing from Board
performance evaluation

Key agenda ttemns also considered inciuded

* Equrty placing which raised gross
proceeds of £40m

Entenng a development agreement

in respect of the New Covent Garden
Market sites in Nine Elms, London
(gross development value of circa £2bn)

* The Bay Campus development for
Swansea University {first phase of
£450m development)

* Disposal of the Elephant & Castle
Shopping Centre by the Company’s
KPI joint venture (sold {or £80m,
representing a yield of 4 25%)

Lease to Marks & Spencer at
Longbndge (150,000 sq ft over

45 years)

* Progress at the Baglan Bay Solar Park

* Presentations from Numis Securities
and J P Morgan Cazenove, the
Company's joint brokers, and FT1
Consultng, the Company’s financial
PR advisers

* Review of the Group’s leadership
development programme

+ Appointment of Richard Mully as
non-executive director and Senior
Independent Birector

« Appomntment of Kay Chaldecott

and John Salmon to the
Nomination Committee

« Re-appointment of Bill Shannon and
Simon Clarke

Review of fees payable to the
Chairman and non-executive directors

ALLOCATION OF TIME SPENT AT
BOARD MEETINGS IN 201213 %

CHART
REMOVED

I Strategy

B Finance and Risk
B Coperations

B Govemance
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Board and Committee meetings and attendance’
Audt Remunerabon  Nomnahon

Dwecior ManBoard  Commttes  Commites  Comitise
Charman

Bill Shannon 9/9 - 4/4 33
Execuive directors

Bill Oliver 9/9 - - -
Steve Burke 99 - - -
Michael Dunn 9/9 - - -
Non-executive directors

Kay Chaldecott? 9/9 3/3 44 2/2
Simon Clarke? 8% - - -
Lesley James4 89 3/3 4/4 3/3
Richard MulhS 3/3 11 2/2 1A
John Salmon? 99 373 4/4 2/2

Former non-exectutive directors
Dawvid Garman® 1A 0A oM
Kathenne Innes Ker? 1/ 1/1 -

1 Actual attendance/maimurn number of mestings a director could attend

2 Kay Chaldecott and John Salmon were appointed to the Nomination Commiittee with effect from
27" March 2013

3 Simon Clarke was unable to attend the Board meeting in January dus 1o a prior business cormmitment.

4 Leslay James was unabile to attend tha Board meeting in May dua to a prior personal commitment

5 Richard Mully was apponted to the Board on 1% September 2013

6 David Ganman retired from tha Board on 277 March 2013 He was unable to attend tha Remuneration
Committee meeting In January and the Nomenation Commitiee and Board maetings in February due to prior
business commitrnents.

7 Katherne Innes Ker retired from the Board on 27" March 2013 She was unable to attend the Board meeting
n February due to a pnor business commutment

2 %
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Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EFFECTIVENESS

Board composiion

Board compaosition continues to develop
and was further strengthened dunng the
year with the appomntment of Richard
Mulily as a non-executive director

in September 2013 and as Senior
Independent Directar with effect from

1= December 2013

The Board currently compnses three
executive and six nen-executive
directors, including the Charrman.

With the exception of Simon Clarke,

the Board considers that all of the
non-executive directors are independent
and s not aware of any relationship

or circumstance likely to affect the
judgement of any director

Recommendations for appointments to
the Board are madea by the Nomination
Committee The Committee follows
Board-approved procedures which
provide a framework for different types
of Board appointments on which the
Committee may be expected to make
recommendations Appointments are
made on ment and agamst objective
cnitena with due regard to diversity
{including skill, expenence and gender)
Non-executive appointees are also

Independence and a broad range of
skills, experience, knowledge and
dwversity, including gender diversity,
are represented on the Board
Biographical details of all directors are
gven on pages 56 and 57.

The Board acknowledges the
importance of diversity in all forms and
recogrises the benefits that it can bring
to both the Board and throughout the
business In terms of gender diversity,
the Company currently has 22 2%
female representation on the Board
Further information on gender diversity
throughout the Group can be found on
page 54

At the 2014 Annual General Meeting
(AGM), and 1n accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association,
shareholders will be asked to elect
Richard Mully to the Board All other
directors will seek re-election in
accordance with the provisions of
the Code

Inducton and development

The Chairman, assisted by the
Company Secretary, 1s responsible
for the induction of all new directors
On joining the Board, a director
receives a comprehensive induction

relating to membership of Board
Committees, is arranged as approprate
Major shareholders are also offered the
opportunity to meet newly appointed
directors should they express a desire
to do so This induction process was
applied following the appointment of
Richard Mully in September 2013

The Company is committed to the
continuing development of directors

in order that they may build on

their expertise and develop an ever
more detaled understanding of the
business and the markets in which

St Modwen operates Training and
development needs are discussed with
each drrector by the Gharman as part
of the annual indvidual performance
evaluation process and kept under
review Development actvities include
visits to sites within the Company’s
property portfolio, both as a Board and
indvidually, regular presentations to the
Board by regional directors and senior
management on key 1ssues and projects,
and meetings with Jones Lang LaSalle
LLP to review ther external property
vajuation reports The attendance by
members of Board Committees on
courses relevant to aspects of therr
respective Committea specialisms

required to demonstrate that they have pack which includes background i1s also encouraged
suffictent time to devote to the role information on the Company, material

on matters relating to the actvities
;h:?\lig;;?;ﬁrecso\:ﬁ;emf:ﬁ by of the Board and its Committees
recommending to the Board the and governance-related information
appontmert gf Richard Mully as a {including the duties and responsibilties

PP of directors) Meetings are arranged with

non-executive director The Gommittee

the executive directors, for briefings
also engaged the services of an external on strategy and performancs, as well
search consultant in relation to the as the external audior and v.':;luers
appointment Further information can Visits to key sites within the Company’s
ba found in the Nomination Committee hedul d
Report on pages 74 and 75. property portfolio are scheduled an

external traning, particularly on matters
DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE SKILLS TENURE OF DIRECTORS AS AT
NUMBER OF DIRECTORS NUMBER OF DIRECTORS 30" NOVEMBER 2013 YEARS

CHART CHART CHART
REMOVED REMOVED REMOVED

M Independent B Property and Operations M Lessthan3
H Non-ndependent B Fnance H3-6

M HR Mo

W Mo than 8
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Information and support

All directors have direct access to the
advice and services of the Company
Secretary, who s tasked with ensunng
that Board procedures are complied
with In addion, all directors are able

to seek independent professional advice
in the course of therr professional duhes
at the Company’s expense

The Company Secretary is responsible
for adwising the Board through the
Chairman on all governance matters
She works with the Charman to ensure
good informatton flows between the
Board and s Committees and between
senior management and non-executive
directors, as well as facilitating the
nduction of directors and assisting
with their professional development

as required All Board Committees are
supported by the Company Secretary

BOARD GENDER SPLIT

Performance evaluation

Building on the external effectiveness
review of the Board and its Committees
conducted by Dr Tracy Long of
Boardroom Review in 2012, the 2013
review compnsed the following activities

= ameeting of the nen-executive
directors led by the Chairman,

indnvidual one-to-one discussions
between the Chairman and all
directors plus the Company Secretary,

+ assessment of the Audit and
Remuneration Committees by way of
a queshonnare, which was completed
by relevant Committee members and
meeting attendees,

+ consideration of progress made
against actions arising from the 2012
review Details of the key actions can
be found in the table below, and

* observation of a Board meeting
and review of associated papers by
Dr Tracy Long

Outputs from these activities were
presented to the Board in December
2013, these remain under consideration
and key areas of focus will be agreed
by the Board [n early 2014

The indmdual performance of the
directors was evaluated through
one-to-one discussions with the
Charman John Salmon, as Intenm
Senior independent Director, led the
review by the non-executive directors of
the Chairman's performance, which took
into account the views of the executive
directors No actions were considered
necessary as a result of these
evaluations and the Charrman confirms
that the performance of each director
contmnues to be effective, that they
continue to demonstrate commitment
to therr respective roles, and that

their respective skills complement

one another to enhance the overall
operation of the Board

PROGRESS AGAINST KEY ACTIONS FROM 2012 BOARD EVALUATION REVIEW

CHART
REMOVED

* Enhanced strategic review process to accommodate directors’ collectve and

indndual requests and desired outcomes.

» Strengthening of non-executive expertise with the appomntment of Richard Mully

« Non-executive director membership of all Board Commitiees aligned

* Further engagement on leadership development and succession planming by the

Board and the Nommation Commuttee

B Men
B women

St. Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013 65

Yodsy oibayeng

9ouUEWaNoK) 8jRIndion

S|USLAIRLS [BIOUBLIY

UCHEULIOJUT [eUOIPRY




Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

ACCOQUNTABILITY

Financial and business reportng

When reporting to shareholders, the
Board aims to present a far, balanced
and understandable assessment of

the Company's position and prospects
and 1s assisted in this by the Audit
Committee This responsibility covers
the annual and half year report and
financial statements, other pnce sensitive
public reports, reports to regulators and
information required to be presented

by statute The assessment for the year
ended 30" November 2013 1s provided
in the Strategic Report set out from the
inside front cover of this Report to page
55 The responstbilities of the directors in
respect of the preparation of the Annual
Report are set out on page 102 and the
Audrtor’s Report cn pages 103 to 105
includes a statement by Deloitte about
its reporting responsibiities. As set out
on page 101, the directors ars of the
opinion that the Company I1s a going
concern The Board considers that the
Annual Report and Financial Statements
2013, taken as a whole, is faw, balanced
and understandable and prowvides the
information necessary for shareholders
1o assess the Company's performance,
business model and strategy

Risk management and internal conirol
The Board s ulhmately responsible for
maintamning scund nsk management and
internal control systems Its policy 1s to
have systems in place which optimise
the Company's ability to manage nsk

in an effective and appropnate manner
These systems also include financial
controls, controls in respect of the
financlal reporting process and controls
of an operational and compliance
nature The Board's approach to nsk

management I1s supported by an
oversight structure which includes the
Audit Committee The nsk management
and internal control systems of

St Modwen are designed to identify,
manage and, where practicable, reduce
and mitigate the effect of the nsk of
faillure to achieve business objeciives
They ara not designed to elminate such
nsk and can only provide reasonable,
not absolute, assurance agamnst matenal
misstatement or loss

System of nsk management and

mtermal control

The nsk management and internal
control system includes comprehensive
monthly reporting to the Board on all
activities through detalled portfolio
analysis, property development progress
reviews, management accounts

and a companson of committed
expenditure against available faciities
Detalled annual budgets are reviewed
by the Board and revised forecasts

for the year are prepared on a regular
basis, Including explanations for

any vanances between actual and
budgeted performance There are
clearly defined procedures for the
authonsation of caprtal expenditure,
purchases and sales of development
and investment properties, construction
activity, contracts and commitments,
together with a formal schedute of
matters, including major investment
and development decisions and
strategic matters, that are reserved for
Board approval Formal policies and
procedures are In place covenng all
elements of ant-bnbery and comruption,
fraud prevention, whistieblowing, health
and safety, employment and IT
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Whistieblowing

The Audit Commuttee oversees an
independantly operated whistleblowing
facility to enable employees to raise
concerns on a confidential basis

The Audit Committee ensures that
independent investigation of any
whistleblowing incrdents 1s undertaken

Assurance

The Audit Committee 1s responsible for
reviawing the ongoing control process
Dunng the year it considered the
effectiveness of the systems of internal
control through a detailed report from
senior management which sets out the
Group's control environment, the manner
in which key business nsks are identfied,
the adequacy of information systems
and contro! procedures and the manner
in which any required corrective action 1S
to be taken

The work of the internal audtt functien
1s focused on the controls that mitigate
the pnncipal nsks faced by the Group
Key internal contrals are reviewed by
internal audit as part of the annual audit
plan and findings are reported to and
considered by the Audit Committee

Both the Board and the Audit Comimittea
review and approve the Group Risk
Register, which 1s maintained by
executive management, on an annual
basis A summary of the pnncspal nsks
which could have a matenal impact on
the Group s given on pages 46 to 49

The Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group's systems of
nternal control and nsk management
dunng the penod covered by this Annual
Report It confirms that the processes
described above, which accord with the
guidance on internal control (the revised




Turnbull Guidance), have been in place
throughout that period and up to the
date of approval of this repert The Board
also confums that no significant falings
or weaknesses have heen identified

REMUNERATION

The primary objective of the Company’s
remuneration policy Is to attract,

retain and motivate igh-calibre senior
executives through competitive pay
ammangements which are also in the best
interests of shareholders These include
performance-related elements with
demanding targets in order to align the
interests of directors and shareholders
and to reward financial success
appropnately The pelicy 18 structured
50 as to be aligned with key strategic
pnonties and to be consistent with

a Board-approved level of business

nsk Details of the Company's policy

on remuneration and how this was
implemented for the year ended

30" November 2013 are set out In

the Directors’ Remuneration Report

on pages 76 to 97

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Dialogue with investors

The Board has a comprehensive
tnvestor relabons programme which
aims to provide existing and potential
investors with a means of developing
therr understanding of St Modwen
The programme is spht between
institutional shareholders (which make
up the majority of shareholders), private
shareholders and debt investors
Feedback 1s provided to the Board

to ensure that directors develop an
understanding of the Company's
major investors

As part of the programme, presentations
on the half year and annual results

are given In face to face meetings

and conference calls with institutional
Investors, analysts and the media
Copies of these presentations, together
with intenm management statements,
are published on the Company’s website
at www stmodwen ¢o uk In 2013 the
Company held an investor day for
institutional Investors and analysts which
included presentations on the results
and the Bay Campus development

for Swansea University, together with

a tour of the New Covent Garden
Market sites in London. Meetings with
pnncipal shareholders, including the
Clarke and Leavesley families, were

also held and the Company had regular
dialogue with its key relationship banks
The Charman is availlable to meet with
institutional shareholders and investor
representatives to discuss matters
relating to strategy and governance
Private shareholders are encouraged to
give feedback and communicate with the
Board through the Company Secretary

Annua General Meeting

The AGM provides an opportunity for all
shareholders to vote on the resclutions
proposed and to question the Board
and the Charrs of the Board Committees
on matters put to the meeting

It is proposed that resolutions for
consideration at the 2014 AGM be voted
on by way of a poll rather than by a show
of hands as the Board believes that this
Is a more transparent method of voting
as It allows the votes of all shareholders
to be counted, including those cast by
proxy The results of the poll vote will be
published on the Company’s website,
www stmodwen co uk, after the meeting
The notice of meeting for the 2014 AGM
can be found onh pages 155 to 164
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COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

This comporate governance statement,
together with the Audit Committee
Report, the Normination Commuttee
Report and the Directors’ Remuneration
Report, provide a descripion of how
the man principles of the Code have
been applied by St Modwen In 2012/13
The Code Is published by the Financial
Reporting Council and is available on its
website at www frc org uk

It 1s the Board's view that, throughout
the financtal year ended 30™ November
2013, the Company was in compliance
with the relevant provisions set out in
the Code

With the exception of disclosures
required by Rule 7 2 6 which are set
out in the Directors’ Report on pages
98 to 102, this corporate governance
statement contains the information
required by Rule 7 2 of the Disclosure
and Transparency Rules of the Financial
Conduct Authority
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Corporate Governance

Audit Committee Report

IMAGE
REMOVED

JOHN SALMON
Charr of the Audit Commitiee

ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE

The Committee’s pnmary role is to assist the Board in the prowision of effective governance over the appropriateness of the Group’s
financial reporting It 1s responsible for monitonng the integnty of the Financial Statements and considenng whether accounting
policies adopted are appropriate It also reviews the Company’s internal conirols and risk management systems, and considers the
actvibies, plans and effectiveness of both the Group's internal audit function and iis external auditor

The Commuttee’s terms of reference are available on the Company's website at www stmodwen co uk The terms of reference were
reviewed dunng 2013 to ensure that they continue to reflect accurately the Committes’s remit

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

The Commuittee's compostion is kept under review by the Nomination Commuttee, which 1s responsible for making
recommendations to the Board as to its membership

As at the date of this report, the Committee compnses the following independent non-executrve directors, all of whom served
throughout the financial year unless indicated otherwise below

Dwector Audit Commitize poston
John Salmon Charr
Kay Chaldecott Member
Lesley James Member
Richard Mullty Member (from apponitment to the Board on 19 September 2013)

Simon Clarke and Bill Shannon attend meetings of the Commuittee as observers The secretary to the Committee 1s Tanya Stote,
Company Secretary David Garman and Kathenne Innes Ker were members of the Commuttee until their retirement from the Board
on 27" March 2013

Committes mermbers® biographical details can be found on pages 56 and 57 Each member brings broad financial and business
expenence at a senior level As a former partner of PncewaterhouseGoopers LLR, John Salmon, the Committee Charr, 1s considered
by the Board to have recent and relevant financial expenence as required by the Code

Alt members of the Committee receve an appropnate induction to ensure that they have an understanding of the pnnciples of, and
recent developments in, financial reporting, key aspects of the Company's accounting policies and judgements and internal control
arrangements, as well as the role of the internal and external auditers Ongolng training is undertaken as required
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ADVICE PROVIDED TO THE COMMITTEE

The Commuttee has direct access to both the Internal Audit Manager and external audit engagement partner outside formal
Committee meetings Whilst permitted to do so, ne member of the Committee, nor the Commuittee collectively, sought outside
professional advice beyond that which was prowvided directly to the Committes by the extarnal auditor and the external valuer dunng

the financial year

COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The Commitiee met on three occasions in the financial year ended 30" November 2013, members' attendance at meetings 1s set out
in the table on page 63 Meelings wers scheduled 1o take place around key events in the Company’s financial reporting calendar

The Group Finance Director, Group Financial Controller, Internal Audit Manager, the external audit engagement partner and other
representatives of Deloitte LLP, the Group's external auditor, attended meetings of the Commuttee by imatation Representatives of
the Group’s external valuers, Jones Lang LaSalle LLP, also attended the meetings after the half year and full year valuation processes
to present therr reports Penodically the Commuttes reserves time for discussion without invitees being present

On two occasions dunng the year the Committes held private sessions with the Internal Audit Manager and representatives from the
external auditor.

ACTIVITIES OF THE COMMITTEE
Matters that were formally reviewed and discussed by the Committee dunng the year ended 30" November 2013 are set out below

Financial reporting
+ Monitored the financial reporting procass, including the review of the half year and annual results, associated commentary and

announcements and the Annual Report Following its review, the Committee has advised the Board that it 1s of the view that
the Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013, taken as a whole, Is far, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s performance, business model and strategy

* Reviewed the continuing a2ppropnateness of accounting policies and the use of estmates and jJudgements as noted in the Group
Financial Statements, and concluded that the estimates, judgements and assumptions used were reasonable based on the
information available and had been used appropnately in applying the Company’s accounting policies

» Considered independant property valuation reports prepared by Jones Lang LaSalle which detaled movements resulting from
activities undertaken by the Company and those arising from changes in the property market

* Considered a going Concern review.
« Reviewed reports prepared by the external auditor on the half year and annual resulis

Further information on the significant issues that the Committee considered in relation to the Financial Statements, and how these
1ssues were addressed, is set out on page 71
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Corporate Govemance

Audit Committee Report (continued)

ACTIVITIES OF THE COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Risk management and internal control

« Reviewed updates on corporate nsk assessment management activities and a presentation on the 1ssues and nsks ansing from
cyber security

» Considered nsk registers at both Group and subsidiary level, including appropnate mitigating actions

Considered reports on the Company’s internal control system and the Group's tax compliance posttion

Reviewed actual and potential legal claims and Itgation involving the Group

Approved the Introduction of a whistleblower hotline operated by an independent third-party specialist provider

Imternal audit
» Considered updates on the activities of internal audit, including audits on the central functions of Information Technology
and Sales Ledger to provide assurance that the control enviranment continued to operate effectively

» Assessed status reports on the implementation of internal audit recommendations.

» Considered and approved the internal audit programme of reviews of the Group’s processes and contrals, including coverage
and allocation of resource

= Reviewed the Group Internal Audit Charter which sets out the objectives, accountability and independence, authonty,
responsibilities, scope of work and standards and performance for internal audit

= Reviewed and were satisfied with the effectiveness of the internal audit function

External auditor
+ Constdered and approved the external audrt plan

= Reviewed the policy in respect of the prowvision of non-audit services by the external audror
+ Monitored the independence of Deloitte and the effectiveness of the external audit process
» Considered the changes to the regulatory framework in respect of external audn tendenng.

ALLLOGATION OF TIME SPENT
AT AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS
IN2012/13 %

CHART
REMOVED

B Financial reporting

I Vatation

M Fisk management and intemal control
B Extemnal audnt

B internal audit
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AND SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL ISSUES

The Audit Committee pays particular attention to matters it considers to be impartant by virtue of therr impact on the Group’s results,
or the level of complexaty, judgement or estimation involved in their application to the consoldated Financial Statements The man

areas of focus dunng the year are set out below

Valuation of investment property

The external valuation of the portfolio 1s a key determinant of the Group’s results and Balance Sheet. The Committee adopts
angorous approach to monttoring and reviewing the independent valuation process undertaken by Jones Lang LaSalle
Representatives of Jones Lang LaSalle attended meetings of the Commuttee at the half year and full year review of results to present
thair valuation reports, these included the methodology and outcomes of the valuation, market conditions and significant judgements
made, including estimation of remediation and other costs Jones Lang LaSalle also met with members of the Commitiee prior to the
January and June Commitiees to discuss the valuation In additton, Deloitte had direct access to the valuers, reviewed the valuations
and process and reported its findings to the Committee The Committee discussed in detad the rationale underlying significant
increases to valuations, particularly those in respect of the residential portfolio, and considered these cn a case-by-case basis as
appropnate The valuation was considered as a whole to ensure that it was appropnate for inclusion in the Financial Statements

Valuation of nventory

The Group'’s Inventory, compnsing property held for sale, property under development and land under option, 1s of significant value
Allinventory 1s camed at the lower of cost and net realisable value and appropnate allowances are made for remedtation and other
costs to complete The Commuittee reviewed whether any provision was required aganst the carrying value of inventory, either at
Group level or within any joint venture arangements The assessment process undertaken to determine net realisable value was
considered by the Committee, which includad ongoing monitormng by management as well as detailed reviews at both the haf and
full year External valuations were also provided by Jones Lang LaSalle for certain sites, typically new build units not yet sold

Bay Campus, Swansea University

The Committee considered the accounting treatrnent to be applied following the signing of a development agreement with Swansea
University in March 2013 for the first phase of the £450m Bay Campus A detalled paper was presented by management setting out
the proposed treatment in respect of revenue streams from the delivery of the campus, the investment safe of the income from the
student accommodation to a major investor and the restdual income from the accommodation Both the Committee and Deloitte
agreed that the treatment proposed, which is on the same basis as the majorty of the Company’s developments, albeit t on a larger

scale, was appropnate

New Covent Garden Market

In January 2013 the Company and VINC! PLC signed a contract with Covent Garden Market Authonty as development partner for
the New Covent Garden Market sites in London This muiti-phased project has a gross development value of approximately £2bn
‘The development agreement remans condttional upon, amongst other things, the achievement of improved planning consent, and
the Commuttee agreed (and Deloitte concurred) that it was not appropriate to recognise either an asset or lability in respect of the
development until these condrtions have been satisfied

Elephant & Castle Shopping Centre
As the sale of the Elephant & Castle Shopping Centre took place immediately before the year end, the Committee received reports
from both management and Deloitte and were satisfied that t was appropnate to recognise the sale m the financial year

Tax provisions
As a property group, tax planning ts often an integral part of transachons Where tax planning is entered into, benefits are recognised

by the Group to the extent the cutcome 1s reasonably certan Where tax planning has been challenged by HMRC, or management
believe that there 1s a nsk of such challenge, provision 1s made for the best estimate of potential exposure based on the information
avaiable at the reporting date Having considered reports from management which addressed indmdual judgements made in
respect of potential tax exposures, the Committee was satisfied (and Deloitte concurred) that the level of tax prowisioring at both

the full year and half year was appropnate
Going concem
As the going concern basis relies on forecasts, the Committee considered the assumptions and judgements applied by

management n relation to the timing of receipt and payment cash flows, the ongoing availability of funding and covenant
comphance The Committee concluded that it remains appropnate for the Financial Statements to be prepared on a going concern

basis The statement of the drectors in respect of going concern 1s set out on page 101

Further details on significant judgements, key assumptions and estimates can be found on page 114 of the Group
Financial Statements
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Corporate Govermance

Audit Committee Report (continued)

INDEPENDENCE OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Commuttee is responsible for the develepment, implementation and monitonng of the Company’s policies on external audrt
The policies, designed to maintain the objectiity and independence of the externa) auditor, regulate the appointment of former
employees of the external audit firm and set out the approach to be taken when using the external audrtor for non-audit work

During the year the Committee reviewed the policy governing the provision of non-audit services by the external auditor, Whilst it
recognises that it can ba advantageous for the external audrtor to provide non-audit services to the Group, the policy only permits
this where alternative providers do not exist or where It 1s cost effective or in the Group's interest for the external auditor to prowvide
such services The external auditar would not be invited to provide any non-audit services where it was felt that this could adversely
affect their independence or objectivity, such services would Include the provision of Iiigation support, actuarial services or internal
audit achvities

The policy sets out areas of work that the external auditor may be permutted to undertake, those areas where the involvement of the
external auditor 1s prohibited and those areas for which a case-by-case decision Is required With regard to the non-audit services
provided by the externat audrtor the following framewark is in place

» Audit-related assurance services substantially all of these services relate to the review of the half year results, which the external
audrtor 1s required to undertake by wrtue of its position

» Tax compliance services these are services that are intended to ensura that the Company complies with existing tax regulations
To date these services have been undertaken by Deloitte through a separate tax compliance team to ensure that objectmity and
independence 1s not impaired However, 1n light of the level of non-audit fees, the Committee has agreed with Deloitte that a formal
tender to appoint an alternatrve prowider of tax compliance services be undertaken by the Company

« Tax adwisory services Deloitte 1s one of a number of firms that provide tax advisory services Selection is dependent on who
1s best suted in the circumstances Tax advisory services provided by Deloitte in the year included those in relation to the Bay
Campus development for Swansea University, RAF Uxbndge and Mill Hill, and the disposal of the Elephant & Castle Shopping
Centre Given its detailed understanding of the business, Deloitte was able to provide these senices more cost efficiently
and effectively than an atternative provider who weuld not have benefitted from the same level of pre-existing knowledge of
St Modwen

« Property consutting the external auditor does not provide general consuftancy services except in certain circumstances, and
then only after consideration that it is best placed to provide the service and that its independence and objectivity would not be
compromised All property consulting services for which non-audit fees were charged in the years ended 30™ November 201 2
and 2013 were provided by Deloitte Real Estate (formerly Drivers Jonas Deloitte), whose engagement in respect of these services
pra-dated the firm’s acquisition by Deloitte

Where it Is proposed to use the external auditor for the provision of non-audit services, the policy requires advance approval of both
the Group Finance Director and the Charr of the Audit Committee if the engagement i1s anticipated to generate fees in excess of
£25,000 or where the fee Is contingent in full or in part Approval below these levels 1s required from the Group Finance Director

2013 2012

Audit and Audit and

audit-related audit-related
services Other services Total servIces Other servces Tokal
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Total audit fees 270 - 270 255 - 255
Audit-related assurance services 585 - 55 55 - 55
Other assurance senices - - - 20 - 20
Tax compliance services - 166 166 - 150 150
Tax advisory serices - 174 174 - 171 171
Property consulting - 30 30 - 47 47
Total non-audit fees 55 370 425 75 368 443
Total fees 325 370 695 330 368 698

The Committes has receved confirmation from Deloitte as to their independence and objectivity within the context of applicable
regulatory requirements and professional standards It has also reviewed the fees paxd to the Deloitte for the provision ef non-audit
services during the year ended 30% Novernber 2013 and Is satisfied that these do not compromise either their ndependence or
objectivity as the Company’s external auditor
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EFFECTIVENESS OF EXTERNAL AUDIT PROCESS

The Committee has undertaken a review of Deloitte's performance and the effectiveness of the external audit process The review
included a self-assessment camed out by Deloitte on audit objectives, leadership, qualification, quality and independence and

a review methodology developed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland on external audit effectiveness which

had been assessed by management The Committee also gave consideration to Deloitte’s expenence and experhse, the extent
to which the audit plan had been met, its robustness and perceptiveness with regard to key accounting and audit judgaments,
and the content of its audit reports

The Committes remains satisfied with Deloitte’s performance and s of the view that there i1s nothing of concern that would impact
tha effectiveness of the external audit process

APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR

‘The Audit Commuttee has responsibility for making a recommendation on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditor

The Audit Commuttee notes the changes to the Code, the recent findings of the Competition Commission and the Guidancs for
Audit Committees 1ssued by the Financial Reporting Council in the context of tendenng for the external audit contract at least every
10 years The Group's current external auditor, Delortte, was appointed in 2007 following a tender process The audit engagement
partner responsible for the Group's audit was subsequentfy rotated for the 2011/12 financial year in ine with ethical standards
published by the Auditing Practices Board and will remain in post until the 2016/17 financial year Hawving conducted a full tender
within the last 10 years, the Committee will continue to give consideration as to the timing of the next formal tender in kight of
regulatory requirements and any further changes to the regulatory framework There are no contractual obligations which would
restnct the Company’s selection of an external auditor

Hawving considered the performance of Delorite (including value for money and quality and effectiveness of the audit process), its

independence, compliance with relevant statutory, regulatory and ethical standards and objectivity, the Comrmitiee unarumously
recommended to the Board that a resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte as the Company’s external auditor be proposed

to shareholders at the 2014 AGM
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Caorporate Govemance

Nomination Committee Report

IMAGE
REMOVED

BILL SHANNON
Chair of the Nominatton Committee

ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE

The Committes I1s responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and planning its progressive refreshing
In doing so 1t evaluates the optimal level of independence and diversity of skills, kncwledge, expenence and gender required

for the Board to operate effectively The Committee also considers 1ssues of succession planning, both at Board and senior
management levels

The Committee leads the process for the identification and selection of new directors and makes recommendations to the Board In
respect of such appointments The Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on membership of its Committees and
on the re-appontment of any non-executve director at the conclusion of his or her specified term of office The Committee follows
Board-approved procedures in making rts recommendations

The Committee's terms of reference are avallable on the Company's website at www stmodwen co uk The terms of reference wera
reviewed dunng 2013 to ensure that they continue to reflect accurately the Commuttee's rermnit
COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

As at the date of this report, the Commilttee compnses the following independent non-executrve directors, all of whom served
throughout the financial year unless indicated otherwise below

Diractor Nomination Comimittee posiion
Bill Shannon Char
Kay Chaldecott Member ffrom 27" March 2013)
Lesley James Member
Richard Mully Member (from appointment to the Board on 1= September 2013)
John Salmon Member {from 27" March 2013)

Bill Shannon chairs the Committee except when the Committee is dealing with the appomntment of a successor as Charrman, when
the Senor Independent Director chairs the Committee

Simon Clarke attends meetings of the Committee as an observer The secretary to the Committee Is Tanya Stote, Company
Secretary David Garman was a member of the Committee until his retirement from the Board on 27" March 2013

Committee members’ btographical details can be found on pages 56 and 57

ADVICE PROVIDED TO THE COMMITTEE

Where necessary and appropriate, external search consultants are used by the Committee to provide support in recruting and
selecting potential candidates for appomtment to the Board Dunng the financial year ended 30" November 2013 The Zygos
Partnership was retamed by the Committee as outlined on page 75, the firm has no other connection with the Company
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ACTIVITIES CF THE COMMITTEE
The Committee met on three occasions in the financial year ended 30* November 2013, members’ attendance at meetings is set out
in the table on page 63 Matters considered by the Committee included

+ continued monitoring of the structure, size, composition and diversity of both the Board and its Committees,

+ reviewing the leadership needs of and succession planning for the Group,

+ the recruitment of a new non-executive director,

+ making recommendations to the Board on the re-appaintment of non-executive directors,

+ areview of gender diversity at both Board level and throughout the Group,

* recommending appointment procedures for approval by the Board, and

* potential approaches to the 2013 Board and Committee performance evaluation review (details of which can be found on page 65)

The Zygos Partnership was retained to assist with the search for a suntable candidate to be appolnted to the role of Senlor
Independent Director In accordance with the Committee’s appointment procedures, a number of candidates were identified, based
on an agreed profile, and interviews held Following a thorough process, and taking into account the skills and expenence required
for the role, the Board approved the Committee’s recommendation to appoint Richard Mully as non-executive director with effect
from 1= Septermber 2013 and as Senior Independent Director with effect from 1# December 2013 Details of the induction amanged

for Richard Mully are set out on page 64
In terms of Beard Commuttee composition, the Committee determined that, with the exception of the Charmman who s not a
member of the Audit Committee, it was appropnate for all mdependent non-executive directors to be appointed as members of all

Committees It therefore recommended, and the Board approved, the appomtment of both Kay Chaldecott and John Salmon to the
Committee with effect from 27% March 2013 and Richard Mully’s membership of all Board Commuittees on his appointment to the

Board on 1% September 2013

The Committee also reviewed the performance of Stmon Clarke and Bill Shannon, whose respective terms of office ended dunng
the year Noting that Simon Clarke is not deemed to be indepandent by virtue of his representation of the interests of the Clarke and
Leavesley families (who together hold 17 35% of the Company’s 1ssued share caprtal), the Committee recommended to the Board
{which unanimously approved) the re-appointment of both Simon Clarke and Bill Shannon for further three year penods

Succession planning at both Board and senior management level was considered by the Committee throughout the year

The recruitment process to identify an Audit Committee Charr to replace John Salmon, who Is nearing the end of his term of office,
has commencead

As detailed on page 100, Richard Mully will retire and offer himself for efection at the 2014 AGM All other directors will retire and offer
themselves for re-election to the Board

BOARDROOM DIVERSITY

‘The search for Board candidates I1s conducted, and appointments made, on ment against objective selection criitena Diversity,
whether in terms of skills, knowledge, expenence or gender, 1S considered by the Committee when reviewing Board composition
and making recommendations for Board appointments or re-appointments In terms of gender diversity, the Company cumently has
22 2% female representation on the Board

Whilst no formal measurable objectives for female representation at Board level have been set, the Commuttee will continus to
ensure that the Board has the optimal range of skills, expenence and diversity required and will, as part of this process, take into
consideration the recommendations of The Davtes Report on Women on Boards

ALLOCATION OF TIME SPENT AT
NOMINATION COMMITTEE MEETINGS
IN201213 %

CHART
REMOVED

W Succession planning
H Board composttion
W Admenistraton
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Corporate Governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report

IMAGE
REMOVED

LESLEY JAMES
Chair of the Remuneration Commitiee

Annual Statement

On behalf of the Board | am pleased to present the report on directors’ remuneration for the financial year ended
30™ November 2013

ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE

The pnincipal role of the Remuneration Committee is to determine and agree with the Board the policy for the remuneration of

the executive directors Within the framework of the agreed policy the Committee 1s responsible for all aspects of the executive
directors' remuneration, for setting the fee of the Chairman of the Board, for monitoning the remuneration of other senior executives
and administenng the Company's long-term incentive arrangements It undertakes a regular review of the incentive plans to ensure
that they remamn appropnate to the Company’s current circumstances, prospects and strategic prionties and that, in particular, the
remuneration policy adopted 1s aligned with and based on the creation of value for shareholders and provides appropnate incentives
for management to achieve this objective without talung inappropnate business nsks The Committee also reviews and notes
annually the remuneration trends across the Company and any majer changes i employee benefit structures

ACTIVITIES OF THE COMMITTEE
The Commitiee met on four occasions i the financial year ended 30™ November 2013 to consider the following matters

» review executive directors’ base salanes and the fee payable to the Chairman,

» set corporate and personal objectives for the 2013/14 annual bonus arangements for executive directors and an assessment
of performance aganst targets for 2012/13,

» approve the outturn of Performance Share Plan awards granted in 2011,
» approve share awards granted in 2013, ncluding the performance conditions to apply to future awards,

» raview the proposed nules to renew the current Saving Related Share Option Scheme, a resolution for which will be put
to shareholders at the 2014 AGM,

» consider investor feedback on remuneration policy,

* review executive directors’ service contracts, and ALLOCATION OF TIME SPENT AT
« consider the revised remuneration reporting regulations and prepare this report REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
on directors' remuneration MEETINGS IN 2012/13 %

Members” attendance at meetings Is set out in the table on page 63

The Committee’s terms of reference are available on the Company's websrte at
www stmodwen co uk. The terms of reference were reviewed In the year to ensure
that they continue to reflect accurately the Committee's remit

CHART
REMOVED

M Pokcy

H Implementation and performance review
H Disclosure

H Administration
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REMUNERATION IN 2012413

In the financial year ended 30% Novernber 2013 the executive directors had the opportunity to earn a bonus of up to 125% of base
salary Reflecting both the excellent corporate results for the year, which were ahead of both budget and market expectations,

and strong indvidual performance, the annual bonus awarded to each executive director for 2012/13 was 118 75% of base salary
(201112 112 5% of salary)

The performance penod for the 2011 Performance Share Plan awards ended on 30™ November 2013 Vesting of half of this award
was subject to TSR performance relative to the FTSE All-Share Real Estate Investment & Services Index, with the remaining 50%
subject to an absolute TSR condition To reflect absolute TSR growth of 110% and relatrve TSR performance of 155%, awards will
vest at 100%

REMUNERATION FOR 2013/14

We believe that the remuneration policy and incentive framework currently in place 1s working well to support the Company’s
strategy In the current economic environment, 1s helping to retam and motivate our management team and is helping to dnve strong
returns for our shareholders The structure of remuneration arrangements for 2013/14 will therefore remain largely unchanged from

that applied in 2012/13

In line with the average salary increase awarded to employees, salanes of the executive directors have been increased by 3% with
effect from 1% December 2013 Executive directors will continue to have the opportunity to earn a bonus of up to 125% of salary
and will receve long-term incentive awards to the same value

REMUNERATION DISCLOSURE

This report comphes with the requirements of the Large and Medium-Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reporls)
Regulations 2008 as amended in 2013 (the Regulations), the prnciples of the 2012 UK Corporate Governance Gode and the Listing
Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority

It s spit into two distinct sections
1 aremuneration policy report (pages 78 to 87) which provides details of the remuneration policy that we propose will apply from
12 December 2014 subject to obtaining shareholder approval through a binding vote at the 2014 AGM, and

2 the annual report on remuneration (pages 87 to 987) which descnibes how the remuneration policy was implemented for the year
ended 30" November 2013 and how we intend for the policy to apply for the year ending 30" November 2014 This report and my
annual statement will be put to an advisory shareholder vote at the 2014 AGM

I hope that you find the report helpful and informative and | look forward to recening feedback on the information presented from
our Investors in the coming months

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

Lesley James
Charr of the Remuneration Committea

3™ February 2014
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Corporate Governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

Remuneration Policy Report
HOW THE COMMITTEE SETS THE REMUNERATION POLICY

The pnmary objective of the Company’s remuneration policy 1s to attract, retain and motvate ligh-calibre sentor executives through
competitive pay arrangermnents which are also in the best interests of shareholders Remuneratton includes a significant proportion
of performance-related elements with demanding targets in order to align the interests of directors and shareholders and to reward
appropnately financial success The policy Is structured so as to be aligned with key strategic priontles and to be consistent with a
Beard-approved level of business nsk

In setting the remuneration policy for the executve directors, the Committee takes into consideration the remuneration practices
found In other UK companies of comparable size and scope and has regard to the remuneration arrangements for the Company’s
employees generally In general, the components and levels of remuneration for employees will differ from the policy for executive
directors which is set out below As a result, greater emphasis is placed on variable pay for executive directors and senior
employees, atthough maximum opportunities are reduced at levels below the Board Similarty, long-term incentives are offered only
to those anticipated to have the greatest impact on Company performance

The Committee does not directly consult with employees regarding the remuneration of directors However, when considenng
remuneration levels to apply, the Commuttee will take into account base pay increases, bonus payments and share awards made
to the Company’s employees generally

The Committee is committed to an ongoing dialogue with shareholders and seeks the views of its major shareholders when
considenng significant changes to remuneration arangements The Commuittee also censiders shareholder feedback receved
in relation to the Directors” Remuneration Report each year at a meeting following the AGM This feedback, plus any additional
feedback recenved from time to time, 1s then considered as part of the Committea’s annual review of remuneration policy

REMUNERATION POCLICY

The remuneration policy that 1s intended to apply, subject to shareholder approval, from 1% December 2014 1s set out on pages 79
to 83 Remuneration arrangements for the financial year ending 30" November 2014 will be in ine with the policy below, further
information can be found on pages 95 and 96

The Committes retains the discretion to make any payments, notwithstanding that they are not in line with the policy set out below,
where the terms of the payment were agreed (i) befcre the policy came into effect, or (ii} at a tme when the relevant indnvidual

was not a director of the Company and, in the opinion of the Committee, the payment was not in consideration of the individual
becoming a director of the Company For these purposes ‘payments’ includes the Committee satisfying awards of vanable
remuneration and, in relation to an award over shares, the terms of the payment are determined at the time the award is granted
Details of any such payments will be disclosed in the annual report on remuneration for the relevant year

The Committes will operate the annual bonus and long-term incentive arrangements according to therr respective rules and in
accordance with the Listing Rules where relevant Consistent with market practice the Committee retains certan discretions
In respect of the operation and administration of these amangements which include, but are not imited to, the following

+ the participants,

+ the timing of the grant of an award or payment,

¢ the size of an award,

= the determination of the extent to which performance measures have been met and the corresponding vesting or payment levels,
+ discretion required when dealing with a change of cantrol or restructunng of the Group,

» determination of the treatment of leavers based on the rules of the respective arrangement and the appropnate treatment chosen,
including the pro-rating of awards,

» adjustments required In certain circumstances (e g nghts issues, corporate restructuring events and special dvdends),
= the annual review of performance measures, weighting and targets from year to year; and

+ the manner in which share awards can be satisfied {ie through the use of new 1ssue, market purchased or treasury shares or
by way of a cash payment)

In addrtion, the Committea retains the ability to adjust the targets and/or set different measures f events occur (e g a matenal
acquisition and/or divestment of a Group business) which cause it to determine that the conditions are no longer appropriate and
the amendment 1s required so that the conditions achieve their onginal purpose and are not materially less difficutt to satisfy

Any use of the above discretions would ba explained in the annutal report on remuneration for the relevant year and may,
as appropnate, be the subject of consultation with the Company's major shareholders
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Element

BASE SALARY

» To attract, retain and motivate individuals of the necessary calibre to execute the
Company's strategy

+ To provide competitive non-variable remuneration refative to the external market

+ To recognise and reward performance, skills and expenence

Operation

Normally reviewed annually with changes effective from 1% December Review reflects

» indwidual and corporate performance,

+ the indmvdual’s level of skill and expenence,

+ ncreases throughout the Company (including cost of living awards),
+ Internal relatvities, and

« prevaling market conditions through penodic benchmarking for comparable roles in companies
of a similar sze and scope The Committee 1s mindful of institutronal investors' concerns on the
upward ratchet of base salanes and does not consider benchmark data in isolation

Opportunity

Salary increases will normally be {in percentage of salary terms) in ine with any general cost
of Iving increass throughout the Company However, larger increases may be awarded at the
Committee’s discretion to take account of individual circumstances such as

» changes In scope and responsibility of a rols, and

» whera a new director I1s appointed at a salary which is at a lower lave! to reflect their expenence
at that point, the Commuttee may award a senes of increases over time to achieve the desired
salary position subject to satisfactory performance and market conditions

Actual salary levels are disclosed in the annual report on remuneration for the relevant financial
year (see page 95 for those effective 1* December 2013}

Performance measures

None, although overall performance of the individual 1s considered by the Committee as part
of the annual review

Element

BENEFITS
* To provide a competitive and cost-effective benefits package

* To assist with recruitment and retention

Operation

The Company provides a range of non-pensionable benefits to executive directors which may
include a combination of a company car or car allowance, private fuel, driver, private medical
insurance, permanent health insurance, Iife assurance, holiday and sick pay, and professional
adwvice in connection with therr directorship

Other benefits such as relocation allowances may be offered f considered appropnate and
reasonable by the Committes

Opportunity

Benefits are set at a level which the Committee considers to be appropnately positioned against
comparable roles in companies of a similar size and scope and provides a sufficient level of
benefit based on the role and indmdual circumstances.

Performance measures

None
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Corporate Govemance

Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

Remuneration Policy Report (continued)

Element PENSION
+ To provide competitive post-retrement benefits in a cost-effective manner
+ To assist with recruitment and retention
Operation The Company offers an allowance (expressed as a percentage of base salary) which can be
taken as
« an employer contnbution to the defined contnbution section of the Company's pension scheme,
» a cash allowance (which 15 not bonusablg), or
+ a hlend of the two
As a result of historic contractual commitments, retirement benefits for Steve Burke are also
delivered by membership of the defined benefit section of the Company’s pension scheme which
18 closed to future accrual
The Commuttes may amend the form of any executive director's pension arrangements In response
to changes in pensions legislation or similar developments, so long as any amendment does not
increase the cost to the Company of a director’s pension provision
Opportunity 15% of base salary for all executive directors
Performance measures None
Element ANNUAL BONUS
= To incentivise and reward the delivery of stretching, near-term strategie, financial and
operational measures at Company and personal levels
= Corporate measures selected are consistent with and complement the budget and
strategic plan
= An element of compulsory investment In shares to align to shareholders’ interests in the creation
of sustainable, long-term value
Operation All measures and targets are reviewed and set annually by the Committee at the beginning of
the financial year and levels of award determined by the Committee after the year end based
on performance against the targets set
The Committes retains an overriding discretion to ensure that overall bonus payments reflect its
view of corporate performance dunng the year
Bonuses are paid in cash and are non-pensionable Directors are required to invest an amount
equat to one-third of the net bonus received in the Gompany’s shares and to retain these shares
for a mintmum penod of three years
Clawback provisions apply to all bonuses pard !
Opportunity Maximum bonus potental of 125% of salary for all executive directors On target performance
would result in a bonus payment of 75% of salary
Performance measures Performance Is assessed using the following metrics

+ up to 105% of salary will be awarded based on corporate measures, and
+ up to 20% of salary will be awarded based on personal measures 2

The specific measures that will apply for the year ending 30* Nevember 2014 are descnbed i the
annual report on remuneration on page 95 Measures for subsequent years will be summansed in
the annual report on remuneration for the relevant year

1 The Commuttes has discreton to recover some or 2ll of the value of awards of annua! bonus for a penod of four years followng the end of the bonws year n the event
that a later restaternent of accounts occurs or there is other discovered misconduct which, If known at the time, would have meant that a lower or nil bonus woukd have

been pad

2 The annual borus metncs are designed to ensura that annual performance s focused on key financial measures which support the Company's strategic targets.

These are supported by Individual

measures to ensure that executive directors am incentivised to deliver across a range of oblectives. Tagets are sat in line

performance
with the Company's budget and strategic plan for the year with a stretch element to reward substantial outperformance
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Element

LONG-TERM INCENTIVES
* To incentivise and reward the delivery of strong returns to shareholders and sustained,

long-term performance
* Aligns the long-term interests of directors and shareholders
* Promotes retention

Operation

Awards of nil-cost options are normally made annually with vesting, m norrmal circumstances,
dependent on the achievement of stretching performance conditions set by the Gommittee and
measured over a three year penod, and the director remaining in employment

The Committee has discretion to decide whether and to what extent performance conditions have
been achieved and must also be satisfied that two underpin conditions are met before permitting
awards to vest !

On the exercise of vested awards, executive directors receve an amount (in cash or shares)

equal to the dnadends pard or payable between the date of grant and the date of exercise on the
number of shares which have vested

Clawback provisions apply to all awards granted 2

Certain executive directors have vested but unexercised awards granted under the Company’s
Executive Share Option Schemes (ESOS) Other than in exceptional clrcumstances as determined
by the Commuttee, no further grants under the ESOS will be made to executive directors

Opportunity

Maximum award level permitted under the scheme rules 1s 150% of salary {or 180% in
exceptional circumstances) The normal and current annual award imit 1s 125% of salary for al}

executive directors

Awards vest on the following basis

* on target performance delivers 25% of the shares awarded, and
* maximum performance delivers 100% of the shares awarded,
with straight-line vesting between

Performance measures

Performance s measured over a three year penod with no retesting against the following metncs

s 50% of the award based on relative TSR performance, and
» 50% of the award based on absolute TSR growth 3

The specific measuras that will apply for the year ending 30® November 2014 are described in the
annual report on remuneration on page 96 Measures for subsequent years will be summansed In
the annual report on remuneration for the relevant year

1 The condtions are i that the extent of vesting under the performance conditions 8 appropnate gven the general financial performance of the Company over the
periormance penod, and {i} f no dmadend has baen pa:d on the last normal dnidend date pnor to the vesting date or If the Committea believes that no dnadend will he
paid in respect of the year n which the award vests, the award will not vest at that tme and vesting will be delayed (subject to continued employment) until dividend

payments are resumed

2 Tha Commuttes has discretion to reduce some or all of the value (calculated at vesting) of any awards granted where the value of future annual bonus cash payments
are insufficient to recover fully any clawback applicable to the annual bonus arrangements or, withun a period of four years following the end of the perforrmance penod
for an award, there 3 a matenal misstatement of the accounts or an error n the calculation of any performanca condibon winch resulted m excess awards vesting to the
participant or there 18 sther misconduct which, if known at the tme, would have meant that a lower or il awand woukd have vested

3 The Committee believes that this combination of TSR measures prowdes strong ahignment with the interests of shareholders and complements the focus on operational
performance measures i the annual bonus arangements Targets ana set to ensure that only modest awards are available for delivering on target perfarmance with
maximum rewards requinng substantial outperformance of the Comparny’s budget and strategic plans.
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Corporate Govermance

Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

Remuneration Policy Report (continued)

Element Al -EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEMES
» To encourage all employees to make a long-term mvestment in the Company’s shares in a tax
efficient way
Operation All employees, including executive directors, are entrtled to participate in a UK tax approved

all-employee share scheme

A resolution to extend the Company's current all-employee share scheme for a further 10 years
will be put to shareholders at the 2014 AGM This scheme Is substantially the same as the
Company's existing arrangements and will allow employees to make monthly savings over a
penod of three or five years linked to the grant of an option over the Company’s shares

At the end of the penod, participants can use the monies to purchase shares at a discount (up to
the masarmum permitted by HMRC) to the market value of shares on the relevant invitation date
Alternatively they may ask for their savings to be returned with any accrued interest

Opportunity Maximum participation limits are set in line with HMRC guidelines in force at the time of award
Performance measures None
Element SHAREHOLDING REQUIREMENT
» To ensure alignment of interests of executive directors and shareholders
Operation The Company operates a shareholding requirement which 1s subject to penodic review
Opportunity Executive directors are required to build up a shareholding worth 200% of base salary within five
years of appointment
Performance measures None

82 $t Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report ard Financial Statements 2013




Element

FEES PAYABLE TO CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

« To pay fees in lkine with those paid by other UK listed companies of comparable size

« Additional payments to the Serior Independent Director and Chairs of Board Committees to
reflect the additional responsibilities attached to these positions

Operation

Normally reviewed annually with changes effective from 1® December, taking into account any
cost of Iming increase applied throughout the Company Penodic benchmarking for comparable
roles in companies of a simiar size and scope Is also undertaken

Fees are structured as follows

= the Charrman 1s pald an allHnclusive fee for all Board responsibilities This fee is determined by
the Board on the recommendation of the Committes, and

= non-executive directors are paid a basic fee, plus additicnal fees for chairing Board Committees
or as Sentor Independent Director which are determined by the Board on the recommendation
of the executive directors

Fees are cumrently paid in cash

Neither the Chairman nor the other non-executive directors participate in the annual benus or
long-term incentive arrangements or in the pension scheme, nor do they receve benelfits in kind

Opportunity

Fees are set at a level which reflects the commitment and contnbution that is expected and 1s
appropnately posihonad aganst comparable roles in comparnies of a similar size and scope

Overall fees paid to directors will remain within the hmit set out in the Company’s articles
of association

Actual fee levels are disclosed in the annual report on remuneration for the relevant financial year
(see page 96 for those effective 1 December 2013}

Performance measures

None, although overall performance of the indwvidual 1s considered as part of the annual review
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Corporate Govermnance

Directors’

Remuneration Report (continued)

Remuneration Policy Report (continued)
ILLUSTRATION OF REMUNERATION POLICY

The following charts illustrate the remuneration opportunity provided to each executive director in ling with tha policy set out on
pages 79 to 83 above at different levels of performance for the 2013/14 financial year

Three scenanos have been illustrated for each executive director

1 Minimum performance

2 Ontarget performance

3 Maximum performance

compnsing the minimum remuneration recenvable (being base salary and penston allowances for

the 2013/14 financial year and benefits calculated using the 2012/13 figure as set out in the table on
page 87)

compnsing fixed pay, an annual bonus payment at 60% of the maximum opportunity (75% of salary)
and long-term incentive awards vesting at 25% of maximum opportunity (31 25% of salary)

compnsing fixed pay, 100% of annual bonus (125% of salary) and 100% vesting of long-term incentive
awards (125% of salary)

The illustrations do not take into account share price appreciation or dividends

BILL OLIVER STEVE BURKE MICHAEL DUNN
Chief Executive £'000 Construction Director £°000 Group Fmnance Drector £'000
CHART CHART CHART
REMOVED REMOVED REMOVED

M Fixedpay W Annualbonus M Long-term incentives
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RECRUITMENT ARRANGEMENTS

In the event of hinng a new executive director, the Committee will typically seek to align his or her remuneration package with the
policy set out above However, the Committee retains the discretion to offer appropnate remuneration outside of the standard policy
to facilitate the hinng of candidates of an apprapnate calibre and to meet the indvidual circumstances of the recrutment This may,

for example, include the following

s where an intenm appointment 1s made to fill an executive drector role on a short-term basis,

 exceptional circumnstances require that the Charman or a non-executive director takes on an executive function on a
short-term basis,

« an executive director is recruited at a time in the year when it would be inappropnate to provide a bonus or long-term incentive
award for that year as there would not ba sufficient ime to assess performance The quantum in respect of the months employed
dunng the year may be transferred to the subsequent year so that reward 1s provided on a far and appropnate basts,

= an executve is recrurted from a business that offered some benefits that the Committee might consider appropnate to buy out but
that do not fall iInto the definitton of ‘vanable remuneration forfeited' that can be included in the buyout element under the wording

of the Regulations, or
+ the executive recerved benefits from his or her previous employer which the Committee considers it appropnate to offer

The Committes will, however, seek to ensure that arangements are in the best interests of both the Company and its shareholders
and to not pay more than 1s appropnate

Base salary levels for new recruits will be set in accordance with the policy set out on page 79, taking into account the expenence
and calibre of the indvidual recruited Where it 1S appropnate to offer a lower salary inttially to reflect the indmdual’s expenence at
that point, the Committee may award a senes of increases over time to actueve the desired salary postion subject to performance
and market conditions Pension arrangements will be in line with the policy detaled on page 80

Unless the Committee deems 1t appropnate to tallor benefits to the unique circumstances of the appomntment, benefits will be
provided in Iine with those made avallable to other executive directors (see policy table on page 78}, with relocation allowances

offered if considered necessary

The Committee may structure a remuneration package that it considers appropnate to recogrise incentive pay or benefit
arrangements that the individual would forfeit on resigning from his cr her previous employer This may take the form of cash

and/or share awards as appropnate In doing so the Committee will take account of relevant factors including the form {e g cash or
shares), tming and expected value (i e likellhood of meeting any existing performance cntena) of the remuneration being forfetted
The Committee will generally seek to structure buyout awards on a comparable basis to awards forferted Replacerment share
awards, If used, will, to the extent possible, be granted using the Company’s existing share schemes, athough awards may also

be granted outside of these schemes if necessary and as permitted under the Listing Rules {which allow for the grant of awards

to facilitate, in unusual circumstances, the recrurtment of a director)

The Comimuttee may also apply different performance measures, performance penods and/or vesting penods for inbial awards made
following appointment under the annual bonus and/or long-term incentive arrangements, subject to the rules of the scheme, if it
determines that the circumstances of the recruitment mertt such afteration

The maxmmium level of vanable pay which may be awarded to new executive directors, excluding the value of any buy-out
amangements, will be in line with the policy set out on pages 80 and 81 (i e at an aggregate maximum of 315% of salary, comprising
125% for annual bonus and 180% for long-term incentive ammangements)

Where a poshion is fulfilled mternally, the Commuttee will honour any pre-existing remuneration obligations or outstanding vanable
pay arrangements In relation to the individual's previous role such that these shall be allowed to continue according to the onginal
terms (adjusted as relevant 1o take account of the Board appointment)

Fees payable to a newly-appointed Chairman or non-executive director will be in line with the fee policy in place at the time

of appointment
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Corporate Govemance

Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

Remuneration Policy Report (continued)
EXTERNAL APPOINTMENTS

The Board recognises the benefit which the Company can obtain if executive directors serve as non-executive directors of cther
companies Subject to review in each case, the Board's general policy 1s that an executive director ¢can accept one non-executve
directorship of another company (but not the charmanship) and can retan the fees in respect of such appointment No fees were
receved by executive directors for external appoiniments dunng the year ended 30™ November 2013

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SERVICE CONTRACTS AND PAYMENTS FOR LOSS OF OFFICE

All current executive directors have service contracts which may be terminated by the Company for breach by the executive

or with 12 months’ notice from the Company and erther 12 months (Michael Dunn) or six menths {Bill Oliver and Steve Burke)

from the indvidual None have fixed terms of service Service contracts for new executive directors will generally be imited to

12 months’ notice The dates of the executive directors’ service contracts are as follows Bill Oliver - 24™ January 2000, Steve Burke
— 1% January 2006, Michael Dunn — 9" November 2010

If notice Is served by erther party, the executive director can continue to receive base salary, benefits and pension for the duration
of therr notice period dunng which time the Company may require the individual to continue to fulfil their current duties or may
assign a penod of garden leave The Company may elect to make a payment in keu of notice equivalent in value to 12 months'’ base
salary, payable 1 monthly instalments, which would be subject to mihgation If alternative employment is taken up dunng this time
Alternatively, this payment may be paid as a lump sum In the event of termination for cause (e g gross misconduct) nerther notice
nor payment in lieu of notice will be given and the executive director will cease to perform his services iImmediately

In redundancy situations the Committes wifl comply with prevarting relevant legislation In addmion, and consistent with market
practice, the Company may pay a contribution towards the executive director’s legal fees for entenng into a statutory agreement and
may pay a contnbution towards fees for outplacement services as part of a negotiated settlement There 1s no prowision for additional
compensation on termination following a change of control Payment may also be made in respect of acerued benefits, including
untaken holiday entitlerment

The following principles will apply to annuat bonus and long-term incentive arrangements in the event of loss of office

Remuneration element ‘Good’ leavers Other leavers

Annual bonus An executive director will be treated Unless the Committee exercises Its
as a good leaver if he or she dies or discretion to treat the executive director as
ceases employment due to injury, a good leaver, no bonus will be payable

disability, retirerent with the Company’s
agreement, or sale of the business In
which he or she 1s employed

In these circumstances, the executive
director remains eligible to be paid

a bonus, subject to the applicable
performance measures Any payment
awarded may be pro-rated to reflect the
penod of ime served from the start of the
financial year to the date of termination,
but not for any penod In leu of notice

Long-term incentive awards An executive director will be treated as All awards will lapse in full where
, a good leaver if he or she dies or ceases  termination is by reason of
gjf:; ”;;OCZE h?iemg:gjv s current employment due to injury or disability summary dismissal
Unvested awards can be exercised In other circumstances unvested awards
either on date of cessation or after will lapse in full unless the Commuitiee
thres years from grant, in either case applies discretion to treat the executive

pro-rated for time employed dunng the director as a good leaver.
performance penod, achieverment of

applicable performance measures, and

having regard to such other factors as

the Committee may deem relevant

In respect of all-employee share schemes and the Company's Executive Share Option Schemes, the same leaver condttions will be
applied to executive directors as those applied to other employees
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TERMS OF APPOINTMENT

The terms of service of the Chairman and the other non-executive directors are contatned in letters of appoitment

Appointments are for a fixed term of three years, dunng which penod the appointment may be terminated by three months' notice
by erther party Non-executive directors are typically expected to serve two three year terms subject to mutual agreement and
satisfactory performance reviews There are no provisions for payment in the event of termination, early or otherwise.

The dates of the current letters of appointment for the Chairman and other non-executive directors and expiry of thelr current terms
are as follows

Non-exacutve director Data of current letter of epportiment Expry of curent term
Bdl Shannon 25/1113 31/10/16
Kay Chaldecott 22/10/12 2110115
Simon Clarke 24/0913 10/10/16
Lesley James 2411012 18/10/15
Richard Mully 16/0713 31/08/16
John Salmon 311011 16/1014

Annual Report on Remuneration
SINGLE TOTAL FIGURE OF REMUNERATION (AUDITED INFORMATION)

Pension contrbution/
Base salary/fees Benafits? Areual bonus? Share plans vestrg abowance® Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £:000 £000

2013 2012 2013 2z 2013 2012 20133 20124 2013 2012 2013 2012

Executve directors

Bill Oliver 457 448 30 29 543 502 1,085 628 69 67 27184 1672
Steve Burke 302 294 29 21 358 331 716 412 45 44 1,450 1,102
Michael Bunn 266 268 1 10 326° 301 782 - 40 40 1,425 619
Non-executive directors

Bill Shannon 135 135 - - - - - - - - 135 135
Kay Chaldecott? 40 5 - - - - - - - - 40 5
Simen Clarke 40 38 - - - - - - - - 40 38
Davd Garman® 15 44 - - - - - - - - 15 44
Kathenne Innes Ker® 13 38 - - - - - - - - 13 38
Lesley James 49 47 - - - - - - - - 49 47
Richard Mully® 10 - - - - - - - - - 10 _
John Salmon? 55 47 - - - - - - - - 55 47

1,382 1,362 70 60 1,227 1134 2,583 1040 154 151 5416 3,747

1 Al benefits for the axecutive directors (comprising manly the provision of company car/car allowance, prvate fuel and medical insurance) anse from employment with

the Company and do not form part of final pensionable pay
2 Borwus payable in respect of the relevant financial year Further information as to how the level of bonus awarded in 2013 was determined Is provided on page 88

3 Relates to the 2011 PSP awards which are due to vest and became axercisable on 212 March 2014 The share pnce used to value the awards was 328 98p, beng the
three month averaga to 30 November 2013 Further information on the awards and the performance conditions to which they wese subject can be found on page 89

4 Relates to the 2009 and 2010 PSP awards which vested and became exercisabla on 24 July 2012 and 22 February 2013 respectively The share pnce used to
value the awards was 177 75p (2009 awards) and 277.5p (2010 awards}, being the share price on the relevant vesting date Further information on the performance
condiions whuch applied 1o the awards i st out on page 90

5 Further details reqarding pension enttlements can be found on page 53

[:] E;ebgkl.:‘awdedwasbasedonannualsa[afyoftzn,msramerthansalaryeamednﬂ1eyearuh|ch,at£265.544,w-asbwerasar&sunofunpajdpa1mu1y

Ve

7 Appomnted to the Board on 22~ October 2012

8 Retired from the Board on 27" March 2013

9 Appointed to the Board on 12 September 2013

10 Fea pad n the year ended 30" Novernber 2013 reflected John Sakmon's appomtment as Intensn Senior Independent Director from 28" March 2013 untl the year end
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Corporate Governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

Annual Report on Remuneration {continued)
ANNUAL BCNUS OUTTURN (AUDITED INFORMATICN])

As % of base
On tamget Actual salary at maxymum  Bonus ewarded as
Measure performance parfomance  bonusopportunity 9% of base salary
Corporate
8% growth  11% growth Y
* Post dividend growth in shareholders’ equity net asset value per share to 270p to 279p
= |ncrease In profit before all tax £551m £82 2m
390p per 4 00p per
* Increase in total dvidend for the year share share 105% 10000%
* Gearnng levels 62% 54%
* Covenant compliance Full Full
Partally
» Achievement against a number of strategic objectives Achieved achieved )
Personal
Partially
» Achievement against a number of operational objectives Achieved achieved 20% 1875%

The executive directors’ iIndividual performance was assessed by the Committee against the measures, relying on audited
information where appropnate, and having regard to the value which has been created for shareholders Weightings were not given
to indvidual corporate measures, since they are all of key importance to the short- and longer-term success of the Company, the
Committee did not wish to distort behawviour by placing particular focus on any single element

As noted n the Strategic Report, the Company delivered an excellent set of results for the year Performance highlights include
= shareholders’ equity net asset value per share increasing by 11% to 279p per shars,

= an increase in profit before all tax of 569 to £82 2m,

+ realised property profits up by 37% to £40m,

» significant reduction in geanng to 54% following a successful equity placing,

final drvidend for the year increased by 10% to 2 67p per share, making a total distribution for the year of 4 00p per share,
+ sustained valuation gains of £42m, of which £28m was as a result of active asset management and planning gains, and
« the disposal by St Modwen's KPI joint venture of the Elephant & Castle Shopping Centre for £80m, representing a yield of 4 25%

In light of both corporate and indidual performance, the Committee determined that each executive dirsctor should receive a bonus
equal to 95% of the maximum opportunity for the year, representing 118 75% of salary

Bonus payments are conditionat upon the executive directors undertaking to invest at least one-third of the bonus received, after
payment of iIncome tax and national insurance, in the Company shares and to retamn those shares for a minimum penod of three
ysars In respect of bonuses pad for the 2011/12 financiat year, Bill Oliver and Mike Dunn satisfied this investment requirement
through the acquisition of shares i1ssued as part of the equity placing completed in March 2013 whilst Stave Burke acquired shares
both through the placing and the exercise of his 2009 and 2010 PSP awards
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LONG-TERM INCENTIVES (AUDITED INFORMATION)

Performance Share Plan (PSF)
On 8" March 2013, the following PSP awards were granted to executive directors as nil cost options

Faoe value of award % of award that would vest
Exacutve drector Bass of award 20001 Nurmber of shares for threshoid performance?
Bill Olver 125% of salary 571 231,077 25%
Stevo Burke 125% of salary 2377 152,468 25%
Michael Dunn 125% of salary £343 138,802 25%

1 Calculated using the averags share price of 247.2p which was, in accordance with the rules of the PSP, used 10 determine the number of shares to be awarded (belng
the average over the three dealing days rmmedately precedmg the date of grant)

2 The performance measures that apply to the awards mimor those proposed for the 2014 awards which ara descnbed on page 86 The performance penod started on
14 December 2012 and will end on 30" November 2015

The three year performance penod for the 2011 PSP awards ended on 30" November 2013 The performance condrions which

applied to the awards together with actual performance are summansed in the table below

Vesting of award at Viasang of award at

Threshoild threshold Maamum MMM Actual Proporbon of

Performance measure Wenghting pearformance perfommance performanca performance periormance award to vest
50% of

Ahsolute TSR growth award 20% 12 5% 50% 50% 110% 50%
TSR relative to FTSE
All-Share Real Estate 50% of Equal 120% of
Investment & Services Index award to Index 12 5% Index 50% 155% 50%

TOTAL 100%

To ensure that the level of vesting of PSP awards accurately reflected the performance of the Company during the perod, the
Committee also considered whether it was sahsfied that the two underpins (detatls of which ara set out in note 1 on page 81) had
been met In respect of the dvidend underpin, an intenm dmvidend of 1 33p per share was paid on 3™ September 2013 and the Board
1s recommending that a final dvidend for the year of 2 67p per share be paid on 4™ Apnl 2014 Furthermaore, the Committee currentty
has no reason to believe that dividend(s) will not ba paid In respect of the 2014 financial year, betng the year in which the award will
vest The Committee also considered the general financial performance of the Company over the performance pened and noted

the fallowing

Asat 1 As st 30°
Key financal ndicator Dacember 2010 November 2013 mproverment
Profit before all tax £382m £82.2m 115%
Shareholders’ equity net asset value per share 213 2p 278 7p 31%
Total dividend per share for the financial year 3 00p 4 00p 33%
Geanng 72% 54% 24%
See-through loan-to-value 39% 33% 15%

The Commuttee therefora determined that 100% of the PSP awards granted in 2011 will vest and becoms exercisable on the third
anniversary of grant (21% March 2014) subject to continued employment Further detaills can be found in the table below

Exsautve drecior Total number of shares granted Nurmber of shares to vest
Bill Olrver 315,774 319,774
Steve Burke 210,992 210,992
Michael Dunn 230,496 230496

Dvdends will be treated as accruing from the date of grant to the date of exercise, on exercise the total dvidend accrued 1s
converted into shares using the average market price for the three dealing days immediately pror to the date of exercise and
released to the director

St. Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013 89

yoday oifsieng

ouBWaACE) sjelodio?)

SIUSWISEIS [BIOUBLLY

UOIELLLOU| [EUORIPPY



Corporate Governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

Annual Report on Remuneration (continued)
All PSP awards held by the executive directors who served dunng the year, together with any mevements, are shown below

Awards held
Awards held on Awards Awards Awards on 30™ End of
1* Dacermber mada vested exercoed  Awardslapsed  November  performance
Exacutive drector Date of grant’ 2012 duingyear?  dunngyeard during year dunng year 2013 pencd?  Exercrse period
24/07M2 to
Bill Oliver 24/07/09 134,498 - — - - 134,498 N/A 230719
22/02/13 10
22/02/10 282154 - 129,480 - 152,674 129,480 NA - 21/02/20
210314 to
21/03/1 319,774 - — - - 319,774 3113 20/03/21
17/02/15 o
17/02/125 363,528 - - - - 363,529 3011/14  16/02/22
06/03/i6to
06/03/13 - 231,077 — - - 231,077 ANAS 05/03/23
1,089,855 231,077 129,480 — 152,674 1,178,358
24/07N2 to
Steva Burke 24/07/09 88,744 - - 88,7448 - - NA  23/07H9
22/02/13 1o
22/02/10 186,170 - 85433 85,4338 100,737 - NA  21/02/20
21/03/M14 to
21/03/1 210,992 - - - - 210,992 A3 20/03/21
17/02/151t0
17/02/125 239,863 - - - - 239,863 301114 168/02/22
06/03/16to
06/03/13 - 152,468 — - - 152,468 301115 05/03/23
725,769 152,468 85,433 174177 100,737 603,323
21/0314 10
Michael Dunn 24/03/11 230,496 - - - - 230,496 30/1113  20/03/21
17/02/15t0
17/02125 218,362 - - - - 218,362 3011414 16/02/22
06/03/16to
06/03/13 — 138,802 - - - 138,802 30/14/15  05/03/23
448,858 138,802 — — — 587,660

1 Awards mada n 2012 and 2013 are subject to clawback as described on page 81

2 The share pnce used to calculate the number of shares awarded, under the rules of the PSP, was 247.2p  The closing mid-market share pnce on the date of the award
was 249 1p The performance conditions for the 2013 award murror those proposed for the 2014 awards as descnbed on page 96

3 The share price used to calculate the number of shares which vested when onginally awarded, under the rules of the PSF, was 188p The cloang mid-market share prce

on the date the shares vested was 277.5p

4 Performance condibions for the 2008 and 2010 awards are descnbed [n the tabla below The performance conditions for awards made m 2011, 2012 and 2013 mirmor
those proposed for the 2014 awards as descnbed on page 98

Performance measune Weighting

Vesting of award at

Threshold performance  threshold performance

Maximum performance

Vesting of award at
maximum perfomance

Cumulatrve growth i net
asset value per share
TSR relative to FTSE 350
Real Estate Index

50% of award

50% of award

Equal to Index

5% for 2009 award/
7 5% for 2010 awarg

12.5%

125%

20% for 2009 award/
309 for 2010 award

120% of index

50%

50%

5 Awards compnse an HMRC approved option over 19,769 shares with an exercrse price of 151 75p and an unapproved award for the balance

B Awards exercised on 29> April 2013 In addiion to the shares exercised Steve Burke recenved shares representing the value of dwdends pad from the date of award to
the date of exercise for both the 2009 PSP award 3,286 shares} and 2010 PSP award (3 163 shares)
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Executive Share Option Schemes (ESOS)

ESOS awards held by the executive directors who served duning the year, together with any movements, are shown below

Optons heid Options held

on 1= Opbons Optors Opbons on 30

Decemnber granted exercsed tapsed November
Executve director Date of grant 2012 dunngyear  dunng year! g year 2013 Exemiseprce? Exercse panod
13/08/07 to
Bill Olver 13/08/04 105,610 - - - 105,610 23631p  12/A08/14
15/08/08 to
150805 102,955 — - - 102,955 37522p  14/08/15

208,565 - — - 208,565
13/08/07 to
Steve Burke 13/08/04 46,315 - - - 46,315 236 31p  12/08/14
15/08/08 to
15/08/05 39,825 - — - 39,825 37522p  14/08/15

86,140 - - - 86,140

1 All options have vested in full, having met the performarnice conditions, but have not been exercised
2 Adyusted to take account of the diutive effect of the 2009 equity 1ssue
No further grants under the ESOS will be made to executive directors other than in exceptional circumstances as determined by

the Committee

Saving Related Share Option Scheme (SAYE)

SAYE awards held by the executive directors who served dunng the year, together with any movements, are shown below

Optors held Options held

on1® Options Opons Optons on 30*

Decermnber granted exercsed lapsed November
Exacutve diractor Date of grant 2m2 during year dunng yesr dung year 2013 Exercse pnoe  Exercise penod
0171014 o
Bill Oliver 15/09/09 6,941 - - - 6,941 224p  31/03/15
01/10/16to
Steve Burke 16/08/11 9,887 - - - 9,887 156p 310317
01/1016to
Michael Dunn 16/08/11 9,887 - — - 9,887 156p  31/03/17

The closing mid-market share price on 28" November 2013 was 357 6p and the pnce range duning the year was 219 Op to 361 5p
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Corporate Governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

Annual Report on Remuneration (continued)
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDING AND SHARE INTERESTS (AUDITED INFORMATION)

The interests of the directors and therr connected persons in the 1ssued ordinary share capital of the Company are shown in the

table below
As at 30" November 2013 As at 1% December 2012
PSP awards PSP awards
Vested Vested

Ordinary but Notyet ESOS SAYE Ordinary but Not yet ESCS SAYE
Dvector shares unexercised vested  awards! awards shares  unesarcsed vasted awards! awards
Executve director
Bilt Oliver 527,469 263,978 914,380 208,565 6,941 494819 134,498 965457 208,565 6,941
Steve Burke? 364,883 - 603323 86,140 9,887 264,153 88,744 637025 86,140 9,887
Michael Dunn 96,568 -~ 587,660 - 9,887 76,168 - 448,858 - 9,887
Non-execuive director
Bill Shannon 65,000 - - - - 50,000 - - - -
Kay Chaldecott 10,000 - - - - - - - - -
Simon Clarke 4,612,657 - - - - 4612857 - - - -
Dawvid Garman 10,0007 - - - - 10,000 - - - -
Kathenne Innes Ker -3 - - - - - - - - -
Lesley James 10,000 - - - - 10,000 - - - -
Richard Mully* - - - - - - - - - -
John Salmon 30,000 - - - - 25000 - - - -

1 Awards have vested but have not been exercised
2 Exercised PSP awards granted in 2009 and 2010 The number of shares retained on exercisa foliowing the sala of sufficient shares to satisfy the tax habiity arising on

exercrsa 1s included n the nurmber of ordinary shares hekd Further detalls can be found on page S0

3 On retirement from the Board on 27 March 2013
4 Appainted to the Board on 1¢ September 2013

There were no changes In these shareholdings or interests between 30 November 2013 and the date of this report

In order to reinforce the alignment of therr interests with those of shareholders, executive directors are required to build up a holding
of ordinary shares in the Company over a five year penod worth at least 200% of their base salary (increased from 100% of base
salary with effect from 1% December 2013) As set ocut in the table below, both Bill Oliver and Steve Burke have met or exceeded
the shareholding requirement, Michael Dunn has until December 2015 to achieve the required holding

Orthinery shawes held as at Shareholding requrement as Shareholding at 30" Novermber 2013 as
Exeautve diractor 30" Novernber 2013 % of base salary % of bass salary!
Bill Olver 527460 200% 3%
Steve Burke 364,883 200% 433%
Michael Dunn 86,568 200% 126%

1 Based on the closing mid-rmarket shara pnce on 28" Navernber 2013 of 357 8p and salary as at 30" November 2013

The Committee has noted the views of an institutional investor that long-term incentive arrangements should be subject to
a munimum holding penod of five years between the date of grant of an award and the sale of the resulting shares Given the

substanhal shareholding requirement set out above, the Committee does not currently feel that such holding peniods are necessary
for the Company's PSP arrangements It will however continue to monitor developments in this area and keep the matter

under review
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PENSION ENTITLEMENTS (AUDITED INFORMATION}

All executive directors receive a pension contnbution of 15% of base salary which 1s paid either into the defined contnbution
section of the Company's pension scheme or as a cash allowance In lieu of penston contribution {or a combination of both)

No compensation is offered for any addiional tax suffered by an executive director in the event that the value of ther pension
exceeds the statutory Lifetime Allowance

For the year ended 30" Novernber 2013, Bill Oliver received a cash allowance in lieu of pension contributions which amounted

to £68,547 (2012 £66,875) The other execulive directors receved Company contnibutions to the pension scheme as follows
Steve Burke £45,228 (2012 £44,125) and Michael Dunn £39,832 (2012 £40,170)

Steve Burke is also a deferred member of the defined benefit section of the Company’s pension scheme, which was closed to
new members in 1999 and to future accrual In 2009 Benefits are based on years of credited service and final pensionable pay,
the maximum beneafit generally payable under the scheme 1s two-thirds of final pensionable pay

Information required by the Regulations in respect of defined benefit pension arrangements are set out below

Accrued Accrued increasam

pansion at pension at Increaseny  accrued penson

30" Novermber 30" November  acaued penson churing the year

Ageat 30" Nonmal retrement 20121 20131 dunng theyear (excluding nflaton)

Noverrber 2013 800 fpa £pa fpa fpa

Steve Burke 54 65 26,6712 27,2692 508 0

1 The accrued annual pension includes entitlements eamed as an employee prior to becoming an executive director as well as for qualfyng services after becoming an
executive director and s that which would be paid annually on retirement at age 65 based on service to the end of the year

2 These figures have been cakulated by applylng defemed revaluation to Steve Burke's deferred pension as at 1= September 2008, being the date that accrual ceased
under the defined benefits section of the scheme
3 The followmg is addional nformation redating to the defined benefit pension arrangements applicable to Steve Burke
= Normal retrement age s 65 years Retirement may take place at any age after age 55 subject to Company consent Pensions may be reduced to allow for ther
eatlier payment
- There are no death m service benefits payable and no additional benefits due on early retrernent

- Deferred pensions am assumed to mcrease i fine with CPI capped at 5% per annumin the penod before retirement,
Further information on the Company’s pension scheme 1s shown in note 18 to the Group Financial Statements
PAYMENTS TO PAST DIRECTORS AND FOR LOSS OF OFFICE (AUDITED INFORMATION)

No director left dunng the year and ne payments for loss of office were made No payments were made to former directors who were
not directors at the time of payment
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Corporate Governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

Annual Report on Remuneration (continued)
HISTORIC COMPANY PERFORMANCE AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION

The following information allows companson of the Company’s TSR {based on share pnce growth and dividends reinvested) with the
remuneration of Bill Oliver, Chief Executive, over the last five financial years

CHART |
REMOVED ‘

The chart 18 prepared i accordance with the Regulations It shows the Compary’s TSR and that of the FTSE 250 and the FTSE Al-Share Real Estate Investment &
Sarnces Indices based on an nrtal investment of £100 on 30™ Novemnber 2008 and values at ntervenmng financial year ends over a five year penod to 30" Novernber 2013
Smee the Company was a constituent of both the FTSE 250 and the FTSE All-Shara Real Estata Investment & Servces indices dunng the year, thesa are considered to be
appropnate benchmarks for the graph

Chist Exaoutive remuneraton for year ended 30" Novernber 2009 2010 201 2012 2013
Total remuneration (£000)! 876 202 1,049 1,672 2,184
Annual bonus awarded (as a % of maximum opportunity) 50%2 80% 95% 90% 95%
PSP vesting (as a % of maximum opportunity} 0% 0% 0% 4577%° 100%

1 Total remuneration ncludes those elements shown in the single total figure of remuneration table on page 87

2 In addition to the annual bonus, the Chief Executive was also awarded a one-off, excepbonal payment of £100 000 n refation to the successful equity rausing and
financial restructuring undertaken in the year

3 Compnses 45 64% of the 2009 PSP awards and 45.89% of the 2010 PSP awards
CHANGE IN REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE COMPARED TO EMPLOYEES

The table below show the percentage change in salary, benefits and annual bonus between the years ended 30" November 2013
and 30" November 2012 for both the Chief Executive and for all perrnanent employees of the Company

% change in basa salary % change n benafits 9% change m annual borus eamed
Chief Executive 25% 34% 82%
All permanent employees? 32% 74% 59%

1 Reflects the change n average remuneration for all parrnanent employees, excluding Bill Olver
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RELATIVE SPEND ON PAY

The table below shows the total expenditure on remuneration for all employees of the Company (including pension, vanable pay
and social secunty costs) compared to other key financial indicators as reported in the audited financiat statements for the last two
financial years Information in respect of profit and net asset value performance has been provided for context.

Year ended 30" Novernber
Relevart nota b the

Measure francial statements: 232 2013 9% ncreaso
Total spend on pay 3c £145m £15.5m 4%
Profit before all tax 2a £52 8m £82.2m 56%
Dvidends paid? 7 £6 8m £8 2m 21%
Equity attnbutable to

owners of the Company? 29 £502 6m £614.2m 22%

1 During the year a total of 20,016,057 shares were issued as part of the equity placing completed n March 2013 Dividenxds paid per share in the year ended 307
November 2013 increased by 10% to 3 75p (2012 341p)

2 Equity attnbutable to owners of the Company for the year ended 30™ November 2013 includes net proceeds of £47 9m from the equity placing completed in March
2013 Net asset value per shara for the year ended 30% Novemnber 2012 mcreased by 11% to 278 7p 2012 250 8p)

IMPLEMENTATION OF REMUNERATION POLICY FOR 2013/14

Base salary
In ine with the cost of living salary increase awarded to the Company's employses, the executive directors received an annual salary
increase of 3% with effect from 1% December 2013 Base salaries payable from this date are as follows

Executva director £
Bill Oliver 470,687
Steve Burke 310,568
Michael Dunn 282,730
Benefits and pension arangements

Benefits and penston arrangements for the financial year ending 30™ November 2014 will be consistent with the respective policies
detalled on pages 79 and 80.

Annual borus
The annual bonus arrangements for the financial year ending 30" Novermnber 2014 will operate on the same basis as for 2012/13 and

will bs consistent with the annual bonus policy detalled on page 80 (including the Committee’s overriding discretion to ensure that
payments reflect its view of corporate performance, the requirement for directors to invest an amount equal to one-third of tha net
bonus recerved In the Company’s shares and clawback provisions}

Executive directors will have the opportunity to earn a bonus of up to 125% of salary based on achievement of the following measures

Measura Proportion of salary payable
Corporate « Growth In shareholders' equity net asset value per share For on target performance 65%
* Increase in profit before all tax For maximum performance 105%

¢ Increase in totat dvidend for the year

* Geanng levels

« Covenant complance

* Achievement agamst a number of strateglc objectives

Personal Achieverment agamst a number of operational objectives For on target performance 10%
For maximum performance 20%

The measures have been selected 1o reflect a range of key financial and operational goals which support the Company’s strategic
objectives The respectiva targets have not been disclosed as they are considered by the Board to be commercially sensitive
However, retrospective disclosure of the targets and performance agalnst them will be prowded in the Remuneration Report for the
year ending 30™ Novemnber 2014 provided that they do not rematn commercially sensitive at that time

Bonus payments will not be dependent on achievement of any single target in 1solation, since the measures and targets are all of key
importance to the short- and longer-term health of the Company and the Committee does not wish to distert behaviour by focusing
on a single element The executive directors’ performance will be assessed indmdually by the Committee against the measures and
targets, refying on audited information where appropnate, and having regard to the value which has been created for shareholders
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Corporate Governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

Annual Report on Remuneration (conttnued)

Long-term ncertrves — PSP

As In 2012/13, PSP awards granted to executive directors in the financial year ending 30™ November 2014 will be over shares worth
125% of salary and will be consistent with the long-term incentives policy detailed on page 81 (including the application of the twe
underpin condrtions before awards can vest and the clawback provisions)

The Committee has undertaken a review of the TSR performance targets which will apply to the awards in order to consider changes
in the outlook for the sector and the Company It remains satisfied that the existing targets remain sufficiently challenging and intends
to apply these to the awards to be granted in 2014, these targets are set out in the table below and will be measured over the three
financial years ending on 30™ November 2016

Vesting of award at Veesting of award at
Threshoid threshold Mepamum MaimuEm
Performance measure Weaighting performance performance performance performance
Absolute TSR growth 50% of award 20% 12 5% 50% 50%
TSR relative to FTSE All-Share Real Estate Investment
& Services Index 50% of award Equal to Index 12 5% 120% of Index 50%

Vesting of awards between threshold and maximum performance will be on a straight-line basts

In calculating TSR, a three month average I1s used at both the start and the end of the performance pertod to ensure that the
calcutation 1s not iImpacted by potential volatility ansing from day-to-day share pnce fluctuations The TSR data and relative
positioning of St Modwen 1s obtained from J P Morgan Cazenove to ensure that performance is independently verfied

Charrran and non-execuiive director fees
Following a review by the Board, the annual fees payable {o the Charman and non-executive directors with effect from
1% December 2013 are as follows

Basa fee £
Charman 150,000
Non-executive directors 41,2002
Addional fees? £
Senior Independent Director 9,000
Audit Commuttee Charr 8,000
Remuneration Committeg Charr 9,000

1 The fea payable to the Charman had remained unchanged since hrs appointment in 2010 and was increased from £135,000 to reflect both performance and relative
market positioning
2 Fea increased by 3% n ne with tha cost of living salary increase awarded to employees with effect from 1% December 2013

3 The fea payable to the Senior Independent Director was increased from £6,000 with effect from 277 March 2013 No further increases have been applied to the
additional fees payable

DILUTION LIMITS

In hne with the rules of the PSP, ESOS and SAYE, the Company observes the recommendation of the Assoclation of Brtish Insurers
that the number of new shares that may be issued to satisfy awards is resticted to 10% of the issued ordinary share capital of the
Company over any rolling 10 year perod Whilst not formally within the rules of the Gompany's existing executive share schemes,
the Company also adheres to the recommended 5% n any rolling 10 year imit for its discretionary schemes

The total number of shares which could be allotted under the Company’s share schemes compared to the dilution hmits as at
30" November 2013 was as follows

Typoof schema Lt Achal
All schemes 10% 471%
Executive schemes only 5% 443%

The Company has, since 1998, satisfied awards under all schemes from market-purchased shares sourced from the
St Modwen Properties PLC Employee Share Trust (the Trust) which is administered by an external trustee The Trust cumently holds
a total of 72,582 shares In the Company (2012 215,754 shares) and has walved the nght to receive dividends paid on these shares
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COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP
The Committee’s compaosibion is kept under review by the Nomination Commuttee, which is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board as to its membership

As at the date of this report, the Committee compnses the following independent non-executive directors, all of whom served
throughout the financial year unless indicated otherwise below

Drector Rermuneration Committes pasibon
Lesley James Char
Kay Chaldecott Member
Richard Mully Member (from appointment to the Board on 1t September 2013)
John Salmen Member
Bill Shannon Member

Simon Clarke attends meetings of the Committee as an observer The secretary to the Commitiee 1s Tanya Stote, Company
Secretary Dawid Garman and Katherine Innes Ker were members of the Committee unti! therr retirement from the Board on

27 March 2013

Committee members’ attendance at meetings Is set out in the table on page 63 Their biographical details can be found on pages
56 and 57

All members of the Committee receive an appropnate Induction to ensure that they have a sound and objective understanding of the
principles of, and recent developments in, executive remuneration matters Ongoing training Is undertaken as required

ADVICE PROVIDED TC THE COMMITTEE

New Bndge Street (NBS), a trading name of Aon Hewntt Linuted (the parent company of NBS) and part of Aon ple, was appointed
by the Committee in 2010 following a tender process to provide independent advice on remuneration matters Representatives from
NBS attend Committee meetings and provide advice to the Committee Charr outside of meetings as necessary In 2012/13 NBS
provided specific advice on performance conditions for long-term incentives, the Regulations and their impact on the Directors®
Remuneration Repont, and share didution mits Fees paid to NBS in the year totalled £35,500

NBS s a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and operates voluntanly under the Group’s code which sets out the
scope and conduct of the role of executive remuneration consultants when adwising UK listed companies. On the basis that nerther
NBS nor Acn Hewitt Limited undertakes any other work for the Company, the Committee Is satisfied that the advice provided by
NBS remains objective and Independent Nonetheless, the Committee intends to review the arangements by which ot receves

independent advice dunng 2014

The Committee also recelves input from Bill Oliver, the Chief Executive, on the remuneration arrangements of the other executive
drrectors and of the Company Secretary, and adwvice from Tanya Stote, the Company Secretary, on governance matters Nerther the
Chief Executive nor the Company Secretary were present when their own remuneration was discussed

STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDER VOTING AT THE AGM
At the AGM held on 27" March 2013 votes cast in respect of directors’ remuneration wers as follows

For Aganst
Resokuton No. of votes % of vote No. of votes %olvole  Towlescast  Voteswithheld?
To approve the Directors'
Remuneration Report 165,228,138 99 08% 1,535,720 092% 166,764,858 42,382

1 A vote withheld 13 not a vote m Law and s not counted i the calculabion of the proportion of votes cast for or aganst a resclution
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Corporate Governance

Directors’ Report

STRATEGIC REPORT

The Compames Act 2006 requires the directors to prepare a Strategic Report which contains a far review of the Company’s
business and a descnption of the pnncipal nsks and uncertainties that i faced The Strategtc Report for the year ended
30" November 2013 1s set out from the inside front cover of this Report to page 55

POST-BALANCE SHEET EVENTS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

There were no post-Balance Sheet events in respect of the year ended 30™November 2013 Likely future developments are
descnbed in the Strategic Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the Financial Conduct Authonty require cerfain information to be included in a corporate
governance statement in the Directors’ Report Information that fuffils the requirements of the corporate governance statement can
be found in the Corporate Governance section on pages 59 to 97 and is incorporated into this Directors’ Report by reference

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM of the Company will be held at 12 00 noon on Friday, 28™ March 2014 at the Marketing Suite, Innovation Centre, 1 Devon
Way, Longbndge Technology Park, Birmingham B31 2TS The notice of meeting, which includes the special business to be
transacted and an explanation of all the resolutions to be considered at the meeting, i1s set out on pages 155 to 164

DIVIDEND

The drrectors recommend a final dvidend of 2 67p per ordinary share in respect of the year ended 30 November 2013, to be paid
on 47 Apnl 2014 to ordinary shareholders on the register on 7% March 2014 This, together wath the intenm dividend of 1 33p per
share paid on 3™ September 2013, brings the total dividend for the year to 4 00p per share {2012 3 63p per share)

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company has a single class of share captal which 1s divided into ordinary shares of 10p each The 1ssued share capital of the
Company 1s set out in note K to the Company Financial Statements The Company does not currently hold any shares in treasury

At the 2013 AGM, shareholders authonsed the Company to make market purchases of up to 20,036,093 ordinary shares,
representing 10% of the issued share capital at that time, and to allot up to an aggregate nominal amount of £13,357,395
These authonties expire at the 2014 AGM Duning the year ended 30" November 2013, no shares were allotted or repurchased
Resolutions to renew these authonties will be proposed at the 2014 AGM

5t Modwen operates an Employee Share Trust (Trust) to satisfy the vesting and exercise of awards of ordinary shares made under
the Company’s share-based incentive arrangements As at 30" November 2013, the Trust held 72,582 shares (2012 215,754
shares), representing 0 03% (2012 0 11%) of the Company’s issued share capltal The Trust deed contans a dvidend waiver
provision in respect of these shares Any voting or other similar decisions relating to shares held by the Trust would be taken by the
trustee, who may take account of any recommendations of the Company There were no purchases of shares by the Trust dunng
the financial year

Rights and obligations attaching to shares

The holders of ordinary shares in the Company are entitled to receive dividends when declared, to receve the Company’s Annual
and Half Year Reports, to attend and speak at general meetings of the Company, to appoint proxies and to exercise voting nghts
Full details of the deadiines for exercising voling rights 1n respect of the resolutions to be considered at the 2014 AGM are set out
in the notice of meeting on pages 155 to 164

Restnctions on the transfer of shares

As at 30" November 2013 and the date of this report, except as referred to below, there are no restnctions on the transfer of ordinary
shares in the Company, no imitations on the holding of ordinary shares and no requirements to obtain the approval of the Company,
or of other holders of ordinary shares in the Company, for a transfer of shares

The directors may refuse to register the transfer of a share in certificated form which 1s not fully paid or on which the Company has
a hen, where the instrument of transfer does not comply with the requirements of the Company's Articles of Assactation, or if the
transfer s in respect of more than one class of share or 1s in favour of more than four joint holders The directors may also refuse to
register a transfer of a certificated share, which represents an interest of at least 0 25% in a class of shares, following the falure by
the member or any other person appeanng to be interested in the shares to provide the Company with information requested under
section 793 of the Comparues Act 2006

Transfers of uncertificated shares must be camed out using CREST and the directors can refuse to register the transfer of an
uncertificated share in accordance with the regulations governing the operation of CREST

The Company I1s not aware of any agreements between shareholders that may result in restnctions on the transfer of shares or on
voting nghts
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Substantal shareholders
As at 30" November 2013, the Company had been notified of the following holdings of voting nghts in its shares in accordance with

the Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority
Dwect incirect Total % of

uoday oiberensg

Shareholder wolngnghts % of voing nghts vobngnghts % of voling nghts voting rights voting rights
Lady Clarke and connected parties

{excluding Simon Clarke) 19,962,539 9 06% - - 19,962,539 9.06%
J D Leavesley and connected parties 18,263,382 829% - - 18,263,382 8 29%
BlackRock, Inc - - 1,075,661 503% 11,075,661 5.03%
TR Property Investment Trust PLC 6,802,638 309% - - 6,802,638 3.09%

As at 3" February 2014, the Company had not been advised of any changes or additions to the interests set out above

DIRECTORS

The following served as directors dunng the year ended 30™ Novernber 2013

Name Poshon as at 30" November 2013 Service N the year ended 30" Nevernber 2013
Steve Burke Construction Director Served throughout the year
Kay Chaldecott Independent ncn-executive director Served throughout the year
Simon Clarke Non-executive director Served throughout the year
Michael Dunn Group Finance Director Served throughout the year
David Garman N/A Retired on 27* March 2013
Kathenne Innes Ker N/A Retred on 27" March 2013

Lesley James
Richard Mully?
Bill Olver
John Salmon?
Bill Shannon

Independent non-executive director
Independent non-executve director
Chief Execulive

Senior Independent Director
Charman

Served throughout the year
Appointed on 1% September 2013
Served throughout the year
Served throughout the year
Served throughout the year

1 Appointed Senior Independent Director on 1% December 2013
2 Senior Independent Director from 28™ March 2013 to 30" November 2013

The biographical details of all the directors serving at 30" November 2013, including detalls of therr relevant expenence and other
significant commitments, are shown on pages 56 and 57
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Corporate Governance

Directors’ Report (continued)

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Following his appointment tc the Board in September 2013 and in accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, Richard
Mully will retire and offer himself for election at the 2014 AGM All other directors will retire and offer themselves for re-election in
accordance with the Code

The Articles of Asscciation provide that a director may be appointed by an ordinary resolution of shareholders or by the existing
directors, either to fill a casual vacancy or as an acdditional director

The Directors’ Remuneration Report, which includes details of directors’ service contracts and ther interests in the Company's
shares, Is set out on pages 76 to 97 With the excephon of service contracts or those contracts detailed in note 22 to the Group
Financial Statements, no director had a matenal interest in any significant contract with the Company or any of its operating
companies at any time dunng the year

Copies of the service contracts of the executive directors and the letters of appointment for the non-executive directors are
avallable for nspection at the Company’s registered office dunng normal busmess hours and will be available for inspection at the
Company’'s AGM

Powers of the directors
The Board may exercise all the powers of the Company, subject to the Company's Articles of Associatton, UK legistation including
the Companies Act 2006 and any directions given by the Company i general meeting

The directors have been authonsed by the Company’s Articles of Association to issue and allot ordinary shares and to make market
purchases of the Company's own shares These powers are referred to shareholders for renewal at each AGM Further information is
set out under the heading 'share capital’ on page 98

Coriflicts of interest

Under the Companies Act 2008, directors have a statutory duty to avoid conflicts of interest with the Company As permitted by the
Act, the Company’s Articles of Association enable directors to authonse actual or potential conflicts of interest Formal procedures
for the notification and authonsation of such conflicts are in place These procedures enabled non-conflicted directors to impose
Imits or conditions when giving or reviewing authorsation and require the Board to review the register of directors’ conflicts twice
yearly and on an ad hoc basis when necessary Any potential conflicts of interest in relation to newly appointed directors are
considered by the Board pnor te appointrment

Drrectors’ labilty insurance and indemnity

The Company has arranged appropnate insurance cover in respect of potential legal action taken against its directors To the extent
permitted by law and in accordance with its Articles of Association, the Company also indemnifies the directors aganst any clams
made against them as a consequence of the execution of their duties as directors of the Company

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The Company's Articles of Association, which, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, may only be amended
by a special resolution of the shareholders, are avallable on its website www stmodwen co uk

CHANGE OF CONTROL

The Company Is party to a number of committed bank facilities which, upon a change of contral, are terminable at the bank’s
discretion Under such circumstances, awards made under the Company’s share-based incentive arrangements would normally vest
or become exercisable subject to the satisfaction of any performance conditions In addrtion, the Company’s retail bondhelders have
an option to require the Company to redeem the bonds should a change of control event occur

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group’s exposura to and management of capital nsk, market nsk, credit nsk and hquidity nsk is set out in note 16 to the Group
Financial Statements
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EMPLOYEES

St Modwen 1s commutted to regular communication and consultation with its employees and encourages employee involvemenit

in its performance News conceming St Modwen, its activities and performance 1s published on the Company’s intranet

Quarterly management meetings are held to inform senior staff about matters affecting them as employees, at which thetr feedback
I1s sought on decisions likely to affect therr interest, and where a common awareness of the financial and economic factors affecting
the Company's performance 1s developed, this information 1s then cascaded to all employees. A performance-related annual bonus
scheme and share option arrangements are designed to encourage employee involvement in the success of the Company

Employment of disabled persons
It 1s the policy of the Company to give full and far consideration to applications for employment receved from disabled persons,

having regard to therr particular aptitudes and abilties The policy includes, where practicable, the continued employment
of those who may become disabled dunng theirr employment with the Company and the provision of appropnate training
St Modwen provides the sarme oppoertunities for traning, career development and promotion for disabled as for other employees

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS

All disclosures concerning the Group's greenhouse gas emissions (as required to be disclosed under the Companies Act 2006
{Strategic Report and Directors’ Report) Regutations 2013) are cantained in the Corporate Social Responsibiity Report (which forms
part of the Strategic Report) on pages 50 to 55

POLITICAL DONATIONS

In accordance with the Company’s policy, no political donations were made and no political expenditure was incurred during
the year

GCING CONCERN

“The Group's business actmttes, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position, are set out
in the Strategic Report The directors have considered these factors and reviewed the financtal positron of the Group, including its
jont ventures and associates

The review included an assessment of future funding requirements based on cash flow forecasts extending for 18 months from the
date of signing the Financial Statements, valuation projections and the ability of the Group to meet covenants on existing borrowing
tacilities The directors were satisfied that the forecasts and projections were based on realistic assumptions and that the sensitfvities
applied in reviewing downside scenanos were appropnate

As descnbed in the Financial Review on pages 43 to 45, there are no corporate facilities that require renewal before November 2014,
when the Group's £100m facility with Lloyds Banking Group matures The directors have reviewed the options available in respect of

this and the Group's other banking faciities, together with opportunihies to ncrease the diversity and longewvity of debt facilites Asa
result the drectors are satisfied that the Group will have sufficient ongoing facilites available for the Group’s financing requrements

Based on their assessment, the directors are of the opinion that the Group has adequate available resources to fund its operations
for the foreseeable future and so determine that it remains appropnate for the Financtal Statements to be prepared on a going
concern basis

AUDITOR

The Company's auditor, Deloitte LLP has expressed a willingness to continue in office and resolutions for therr re-appointment and
to authonse the directars to determine their remuneration will be proposed at the 2014 AGM The Board, on the advice of the Audit
Commuttee, recommends therr re-appointment
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Corporate Governance

Directors’ Report (continued)

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the Financial Statements
in accordance with apphcable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare Financial Statements for each financial year Under that law the directors have
prepared the Group Finanaial Statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union and the Company Financial Statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (Unrted Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law)

Under company law the directors must not approve the Financial Statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and far
view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of their profit or loss for that period

In prepanng these Financial Statements, the directors are required to
+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
* make judgements and accounting estmates that are reasonable and prudent,

» state whether IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and apphicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any matena! departures disclosed and explained in the Group and Company Financial Staterments
respectively, and

» prepare the Financial Staterents on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue
in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s and
the Group’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and the Group
and enable them to ensure that the Financial Statements and the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act
2006 and, as regards the Group Financial Statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other iregulanties

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial infermation included on the Company's
wabsite (www stmodwen co uk) Legslation in the United Kingdom governing the preparaticn and dissemination of Financial
Statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions

Each of the directors in office as at the date of this report, whose names and functions are set out on pages 56 and 57, confirm that
to the best of therr knowledge

» the Financial Statements, prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting frameworl, give a true and farr view of
the assets, labiihes, financial poesition and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole, and

* the Directors' Report and the Strategic Report include a farr review of the development and performance of the business and
the posrtion of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description
of the pnncipal nsks and uncertainttes that they face

Each of the directors in office as at the date of this report also confirms that
» 50 far as the director 15 aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor I1s unaware, and

* the director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself/herself aware of any
relevant audit nformation and to establish that the Company's auditor 1s aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted ih accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the Compantes Act 2006

The directors as at the date of this repert consider that the Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013, taken as a whole, 1s far,
balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s and the Group’s
performance, business model and strategy

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

Tanya Stiote
Company Secretary

349 February 2014
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Financial Statements

Independent Auditor’'s Report

to the members of St Modwen Properties PLC in respect of the Group Financial Statements

Opinion on Financial Statements of
St. Modwen Properties plc

In eur cpnion

« the Financial Staternents give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the
Parent Company's affairs as at 3¢ November 2013 and of the Group's profit for the year
then ended,

+ the Group Financial Statements have been properly prepared in accordance with
Intematcnal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union,

» the Parent Company Financial Statements have been properly prepared in accordance
wrth United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

« the Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group Financial Statements, Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation

The financial statements compnse the Group Income Statement, the Group Statement of

Comprehensive Income, the Group and Parent Company Balance Sheets, the Group Cash

Flow Statement, the Group Statement of Changes in Equity and the related Group notes 1 to

22 and Parent Company notes A to P The financial reporting framework that has been applied

in the preparation of the Group Financtal Statements 1s applicable law and IFRSs as adopted

by the European Union The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the Parent Company Financial Statements 1s applicable law and Untted

Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Going concem

As required by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the directors’ statement contained within
the Directors’ Report on page 101 that the Group 1s a going concern We confirm that

« we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements 1s appropnate, and

« we have not identified any matenal uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concemn

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicied, this statementis not a

guarantes as to the Group's ability to continue as a going concermn

Qur assessment of nsks of
matenal misstaterment

Risk

The assessed nsks of matenal misstatement descnbed below are those that had the greatest
effect on our audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audrt and directing the efforts of
the engagement team

How the scope of our audit responded to the nisk

Valuation of investment property
Valuabon of rvestment property is an
area of judgement which coudd matenally
affect the Financial Staternents. The
extemal valuers make a number of key
estimates and assumphons, certam of
winch require nput from management.
These estmates and assumphons are
subyect to market forces and will change
over time.

We met with the third-party valuers, Jones Lang LaSalle LLP {JLL), appointed by management
for each element of the property portfolio and we assessed the reasonableness of the
significant judgements and assumptions apphed m thesr valuation model, including occupancy
rates, lease mcentives, break clauses and yields With the assistance of a member of the audit
team who s a chartered surveyor we tested a sample of properties through benchmarking,
understanding the valuation methodology and wider market analysis along with testing the
integnty of a sample of the data provided to JLL We venfied the integnty of a sample of
information prowided to valuers by management relating to rental ncome, cccupancy and Hfe
of the lease

Valuation of inventones

Valuahon of inventones requires
management to ensure that those
properties under construction and land
held under option are camed at the
lower of cost and net realisable value

We tested the net realisable value of inventores through testing a sample of those valued by
management fwhich 1s the majorty) using therr internal site appraisals, and those valued by
JLL to focus on those with lower margins and assessed the reasonableness of the
assumptions appled

Accounting for property
acquisthons and disposals
Accounting for property acquistions
and disposals as these can be
significant and complex transactions

Using Sale and Purchase agreements we camed out testing on purchase cost or sales
proceeds, re-calculation of profit or loss on disposal and consideration around whether the
profit or loss on disposal provides further evidence of the camying values of other assets in

the portfolio
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Financial Statements

Risk

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

to the members of St. Modwen Properties PLC in respect of the Group Financial Statements

How the scope of our audit responded to the nsk

Accounting for taxation
Accounting for taxaton to ensure
appropnate tax provisions have
been recorded

Wa tested the Group tax workings and considered the current and deferred tax implications of
property acquisitions, disposals and valuation movements which occurred dunng the year We
utiised our tax specialists to appraise the likely outcome of uncertain tax posittons and
considered the adequacy of disclosures made in the Annual Report

Covenant comphance and
hquidity disclosure

Covenant compliance and hquidrty
disclosure which are dependent on
cash management and the
associated headroom available,
property valuations and the terms of
the Group's finance facilibes

We tested compliance with loan covenants and reviewed management’s forecasts and
assumphions for ongoing covenant compliance and avallable headroom on these covenants
and existing finance faciliies We also confirmed that adequate disclosures have been made in
the Annual Report

Revenue recognition

Revenue recognition, ncluding the
tming of revenue recogrution in relation
to the sale of property, recogrution of
revenue ansing from construction
contracts and rental Income ansing
from investment properties

We camed out testing around cut off and timing of revenue recognition, the treatment of
discounts, rebates, VAT and other sales taxes or duty as well as substantive testing,
analytical procedures and assessing whether the revenue recogniton pelicies adopted
complied with IFRSs

Ths Audit Committee’s consideration of these nsks I1s set out on page 71

Our audrt procedures relating to these matters were designed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and not to
express an opinion on mdmidual accounts or disclosures  Our opinion on the Financial Statements 1s not modified with respect to any of
the nsks descnbed above, and we do not exprass an opinicn on thess mdndual matters

Our application of matenalty

We define matenality as the magnitude of misstatement in the Financial Statements that makes
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be
changed or nfluenced We use matenahity both in planning the scope of our audit werk and in
evaluating the results of our work

When establishing our overall audit strategy, we deterrmined a magnitude of uncormrected
misstatements that we judged would be matenal for the Financial Statements as a whole We
determined planning matenality for the Group to be £6 2 million, which 1s approximately 7 5%
of adjusted pre-tax profit, below 1% of equity

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit
differences in excess of £0 12 million, as well as differences below that threshold that, in our
view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds

We also report to the Audit Committee on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing
the overall presentation of the Financial Statements

An overview of the scope of
our audit

Our Group audit scope focused pnmanly on the audit work of the major ines of business of
which the Group auditor is responsible and as such there Is no component auditor reporting
into Group The Group auditor 1s responsible for the other significant ines of business where
joint venture agreements are In place, notably around the Key Property Investments (KPP} and
VSM Uxbndge (Group) bimited (VSM Uxbndge) KPI accounts for 11% of the Group’s net
assets, 9% of the Group's revenue and 25% of the Group's recumng pre-tax profit VSM
Uxbndge Group accounts for 4% of the Group's net assets, 0% of the Group’s revenue and
4% of the Group's recurnng pre-tax profit

Opinion on other matters
prescribed by the Companies
Act 2006

In our apinion

s the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 20086, and

» the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year
for which the Financial Statements are prepared 1s consistent with the Financial Statements
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Matters on which we are required
to report by exception

Adequacy of explanations receved
and accounting records

Directors’ remuneration

Corporate Govemnance statement

Qur duty to read other information
in the Annual Report

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are reguired to report to you If, in our opinion

+ we have not recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audt, or
+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or retums
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us, or
+ the Parent Company Financial Statements are not in agreement with the accounting

records and returns
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if iIn our opinion certain
disclosures of directors’ remuneration have not been made or the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited 1S not in agreement with the accounting records and
retums We have nothing to report ansing from these matters

Under the Listing Rules we are also required 1o review the part of the Corporate Govemance
statement relating to the Company’s compliance with nine provistons of the UK Corporate
Governance Code We have nothing to report ansing from our review

Under International Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland), we are reguired to report to you i,
I our opinion, information in the Annual Report 1S

» matenally inconsistent with the nformation n the audited Financial Statements, or

« apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent wath, our knowledge of
the Group acquired in the caurse of performmg our audit, or

* otherwise misleading

In particular, we are required to constder whether we have identified any inconsistencies

between our knowledge acquired dunng the audit and the directors’ statement that they

consider the Annual Report is far, balanced and understandable and whether the Annual

Report appropnately discloses those matters that we communicated to the Audit Commities

which we consider should have been disclosed We confirm that we have not identfied any

such mconsistencies or misleading statements

Respective responsibilities of
directors and auditor

As explaned more fully in the Drrectors’ Responsibilihies Statement, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the Financial Statements and for being satisfied that they
gwve a trus and farr view Our responsibility Is to audit and express an opinion on the Financial
Statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical

Standards for Auditors

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Company's members those matters we are required to state to them i an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assums responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a
body, for our audit work, for thus report, or far the opmnions we have formed

Scopa of the audtt of the
Financial Statements

, ane M“r"(

An audit mvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Financal
Statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the Financial Statements are free from
matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of
whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Greup's and the Parent Company’s
crcumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estmates made by the directors, and the overall
presentation of the Financial Statements In addiion, we read all the financial and non-financial
information in the Annual Report to identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited Financial
Staterments and to identify any information that 1s apparently matenally incorrect based on, or
matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the
audit K we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we
consider the implicattons for our report

Jonathan Dodworth (Senior Statutory Audrtor)

for and on behalf of Delortte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor

Birmingham, UK
3™ February 2014
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Financial Statements

Group Income Statement

for the year ended 30" November 2013

2013 202

Notes £m £m

Revenue 1 161.1 2181
Net rental Income 1 29.0 283
Development profits 1 24.7 224
Gains on disposal of Investments/investment properties 3.6 14
Investment property revaluation gans 8 326 64
Goodwill written off on corporate acquisiion of mvestment properties - (13)
Other net income 1 2.9 28
Profits of joint ventures and associates {post-tax) 10 218 226
Administrative expenses 3 (19 9) (18 1)
Profit before interest and tax 947 845
Finance cost 4 (23.6) (223)
Finance incorme 4 9.4 52
Profit before tax 805 474
Tax charge 5 (6 6) {51)
Profit for the year 739 423

Attnbutable to:

Equity attnbutable to owners of the Company 721 427
Non-controlling interests 1.8 04
73.9 423

2013 02

Notes pence pence

Basic earnings per share 6 335 213
Diluted ea@gs per share 6 329 212

All results are denved from continuing operations A reconciliation of non-statutory measures used in the Strategic Report 1s included
in note 2 to the Group Financial Statements
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Financial Statements
Group Balance Sheet
as at 30" November 2013
2013 2012
Notes £m £m
Non-current assets
Investment property 8 8133 7704
Operating property, plant and equipment 2] 66 68
Investments in jont ventures and associates 10 953 752
Trade and other recevables 11 176 216
9328 8740
Current assets
Inventores 12 205.9 1752
Trade and other receivables 11 59.7 485
Cash and cash equivalents 7.4 89
2730 2306
Current habihties
Trade and other payables 13 (170 2) (1556}
Borrowings 14 {62 5) {33
Tax payables 5 (3.4) {33
{236.1) (162 2)
Non-current liabilittes
Trade and other payables 13 (46.2) {4886)
Bomrowings 14 (285 6) (3716)
Deferred tax 5 {10 9) B85)
(342.7) {4287)
Net assets 627.0 5137
Caprtal and resernves
Share capital 17 220 200
Share premium accournt 102.8 1028
Retained earnings 441.4 3776
Share incentrve reserve 21 24
Own shares (0 3} {0 5)
Other reserves 46.2 03
Equity atinbutable to owners of the Company 614.2 50286
Non-controlling Interests 12.8 111
627.0 5137

Total equity

These Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 3¢ February 2014 and were signed on its behalf by Bill

Qlwer and Michael Dunn

) S

Bill Olver
Chief Executive

oot [

Michael Dunn
Group Finance Director
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Financial Statements

Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 30™ November 2013

2013 2012
Notes £m £m
Profit for the year 73.9 423
Pension fund
- Actuanal losses 18 (0.1) {01)
- Deferred tax thereon 18 - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 73.8 422
Attributable to
— Owners of the Company 72.0 426
— Non-controling interests 1.8 04
Total comprehensive income for the year 738 422
for the two years ended 30" November 2013
Equity
attnbutable
Share Share to owners Non-
Share premium Retgined incentive Own Qther ofthe controlling Total
capital account earnings reserve shares reserves Company interest equity
£ £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 30" November 2011 200 1028 3418 - {05 03 464 4 116 4760
Profit for the year atinbutable
tc shareholders - - 427 - - - 427 {04 423
Pension fund actuanal losses
{note 18) - - {01) - - - {01) - {01)
Total comprehensive income - - 426 - - - 426 {04 422
Transfer share-based payments
provision to share incentive reserve — - - 21 — - 21 - 21
Share-based payment charge - - - 03 - - 03 - 03
Dmidends paid - — {68 - - - {68) {01) 69)
At 30" November 2012 200 1028 3776 24 {0 5) 03 5026 111 5137
Profit for the year atinbutable
ta shareholders - - 721 - — - 721 18 739
Penston fund actuanal losses
{note 18) - - {O1) - — = {01) - 01
Total comprehensive income — - 720 - - — 720 18 738
Equity raise 20 - - - - 459 479 - 479
Share-based payment charge - - — 03 - - {03} - 03
Share transfers - - - - 02 - 02 - 02
Diwvidends paid - - 82 - - - 82 (0 1) 83)
At 30™ November 2013 220 1028 4414 21 (0 3) 46.2 614.2 128 627.0

On 1# March 2013 the Group completed a ‘cash box’ placing of 20,016,057 ordinary shares of 10p each at £2 45 per share
Net proceeds were £47 9m after share issue costs, of which the £2 Orm naminal value of the shares was credited to share capital

with the balance to other reserves

Own shares represent the cost of 72,582 (2012 215,754) shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust The open market value of the
shares held at 30" November 2013 was £259,553 (2012 £469,812)
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Financial Statements

Group Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 30™ November 2013

2013 2012
Notes £m £m
Operating activities
Profit before interest and tax 94.7 645
Gans on disposals of investments/investment properties (3.6) {14)
Share of profits of joint ventures and associates (post-tax} 10 (21.8) (226)
Investment property revaluation gains 8 {32 6) 64
Goodwill wntten off on corporate acquisition of investment properties - 13
Depreclation g 05 05
Impairment losses on inventones 12 17 38
{increase)/decrease in inventones (22 3) 557
Increase n trade and other recevables {(90) {40Q)
Increase/{decrease) in trade and other payables 218 (510)
Share options and share awards 01) 03
Tax pad 5¢) 4.1 22
Net cash inflow from operating activities 25.2 385
Investing activities
Investment property disposals 540 295
Investment property additions {74 5) 374)
Property, plant and equipment additions (0.4) 03
Cash and cash equivalents acquired with subsidiary - 04
Interest received - 31
Dmdends receved 17 -
Net cash outflow from investing activities (19.2) 47
Finrancing activities
Dividends paid 7 (8 2) 68
Dwvidends paid to non-controling interests {01) 1)
Interest paid (20 3) (20 6)
Receipt of funds from equity placing 47.9 -
New borrowings drawn 80 988
Repayment of borrowings (77 8) (101 4)
Net cash outflow from financing actmvities (75) {301)
{Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (1.5) 37
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 8.9 52
74 89

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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Financial Statements

Accounting Policies

for the year ended 30" November 2013

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Group's Financial Statements have been prepared In accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and as adopted by the EtJ as they apply to the Group for the year
ended 30" November 2013, applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the histoncal cost basis except for the revaluation of certain properties, denvative
financial instruments and the defined benefit section of the Group’s pension scheme

The Group's functional currency 1s pounds sterling and its pnncipal IFRSs accounting policies are set out below

BASIS OF CONSCLIDATION

The Group's Financial Statements consolidate the Financial Statements of St Modwen Properties PLC and the entities it controls
Control compnses the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the investee and 1s achieved through direct or indirect
ownership of voting nghts or by contractual agreement A list of the prnincipal entities controlled is given in note (F) of the Company’s
Financial Statements

VSM Estates (Holdings) Limited 1s 50% owned by St Modwen Properties PLC However, under the funding agreement, the Group
obtains the majanty of the benefits of the entity and also retains the majonty of the residual nsks This entity 1s therefore consolidated
in accordance with SIC 12 ‘Consolidation — Special Purpose Entiires’

All entities are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expense are eliminated on consolidation

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets that are not held by the Group and are presented
separately within equity 1n the Group Balance Sheet

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

The Group recognises its interests in jont ventures, being those entities over which the Group has joint control, using the equity
method of accounting Under the equity method, the interest in the joint venture 1s camed in the Balance Sheet at cost plus
post-acquisiion changes in the Group’s share of its net assets, less distnbutions received, less any impairment in value of ndmidual
Investments The Income Statement reflects the Group's share of the jointly controlled entities’ results after interest and tax

Financial Statements of joint ventures are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group Where necessary, adjustments are
made to bnng the accounting policies used into line with those of the Group

The Group Statement of Comprehensive Income reflacts the Group’s share of any income and expense recogmised by the jointly
controlled entities outside the Income Statement

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

The Group's iInterests in its associates, being those entities over which it has significant influence and which are neither subsidiaries
nor joint ventures, are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, as descnbed above

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

‘The acquisition method of accounting 1s used to account for business combinations The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidrary compnses the far values of the assets transferred, the habilities incurred and the equity interests 1ssued by
the Group The consideration transferred also includes the far value of any conhingent consideration arrangement and the fair value
of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred Identifiable assets acquired and liabiliies and contingent habilities assumed mna
business combination are, with imited exceptions, measured intally at ther fair values at the acquisition date

On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the
non-controling interest’s proporticnate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets

The excess of the consideration transferred and the amount of any non-contralling interest in the acquiree over the farr value of tha
Group's share of tha net identifiable assets acquired 1 recorded as goodwill If those amounts are less than the farr value of the net
identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary and the measurement of all amounts has been reviewed, the difference Is recognised
drrectly in the Income Statement as a bargain purchase

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration I1s deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to thewr present
value as at the date of exchange The discount rate used is the entity's incremental borrowing rate, which is the rate that a similar
borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and conditions

Contingent consideration Is classified either as equrty or a financial liability Amounts classified as a financial ability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in far value recognised in the Income Statement
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PROPERTIES

Investment properties

Investment properties, being freehold and leasehold properties held to earn rental income, for capital appreciation and/or for
undetermined future use, are camed at farr value following iniial recognition at the present value of the consideration payable

To establish far value, investment properties are independently valued on the basis of market value Any surplus or deficit ansing

Is recognised In the Income Staternent for the penod

Once classified as an investment property, a property remains in this category untl development with a view to sale commences,
at which point the asset I1s transferred to nventones at current valuation

Where an investment property 1s being redeveloped for continued use as an investment property, the property remains within
investment property and any movermnent in valuation is recognised in the Income Statement

Investment property disposals are recognised on completien Profits and losses ansing are recognised through the Income
Statenent and the profit or loss on disposal 1s determmned as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the asset
Investment properties are not depreciated

Inventores
Inventones principally comprise properties held for sale, properties under construction and land under option All inventones are

camed at the lower of cost and net realisable value
Cost compnses land, direct matenals and, where applicable, direct labour costs that have been ncurred in binging the inventones

to therr present location and conditton When inventory includes a transfer from investment properties, cost 15 recorded as the book
value at the date of transfer Net realisable value represents the estimated selting price less any further costs expected to be incurred

to completion and disposal

Operating property, plant and equipment
Operating property, plant and equipment 1s stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated imparment losses

Such cost Includes costs directly attnbutable to making the asset capable of operating as intended

Depreciation I1s provided on all operating property, plant and equipment at rates caleulated to write off the cost less estimated
residual value of each asset evenly over its expected useful Ife as follows

Leasehold operating properties — over the shorter of the lease term and 25 years

Piant, machinery and equipment — over two to five years

LEASES

The Group as lesses
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantiatly all the nsks and rewards of ownership

tothe lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases

Non-property assets held under finance leases are caprtalised at the inception of the lease with a corresponding lability being
recognised for the far value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments Lease payments are
apportianed between the reduchon of the lease liability and finance charges n the Income Statement so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the kability Non-property assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the
shorter of the estimated useful Ife of the asset and the lease term

Freshold interests in leasehold investment properties are accounted for as finance leases with the present value of guaranteed
munimum ground rents included within the carmying value of the property and within long-term babilites On payment of a guaranteed
ground rent, wirtually all of the cost is charged to the Income Statement as interest payable, and the balance reduces the liability

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged in the Income Staternent on a straight-line basis over the leasa term

The Group &s lessor .
Rental income from operating leases Is recognised in the Income Staterment on a straight-line basis over the lease term

INCOME TAXES

Current tax assets and habilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from, or paid to, the taxation authorthes,
based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date

The tax currently payable is based on the taxable result for the year The taxable result differs from the result as reported in the
Income Statement because it excludes tems of mcome or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and tt further

excludes items that are never taxable or deductible
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Financial Statements

Accounting Policies (continued)

for the year ended 30™ November 2013

INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)

Deferred income tax 1s recognised on all temporary differences anising between the {ax bases of assets and habiliies and therr
carrying amounts in the Financial Statements, using the rates of tax expected to apply based on legistation enacted or substantively
enacted at the Balance Sheet date, with the following exceptions

» Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and assoctates, where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and 1t I1s probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse In the foreseeable future, and
« deferred income tax assets are recogrised only to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, camed forward tax credits or tax losses can be utilised
Deferred income tax assets and liabiliies are measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply when
the related asset is realised or liability 1s settled, based on tax rates and laws substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date
Deferred tax assets and labilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets against cumrent tax
labilities and when they relate to ncome taxes levied by the same authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis

Income tax is charged or credited directly to equity if it relates to items that are credited or charged to equity Otherwise, ncome tax
is recognised In the Income Statement

PENSIONS

The Group operates a pension scheme with defined benefit and defined contribution sections The defined benefit section 1S closed
to new members and, from 12 September 2009, to future accrual

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit section 1s determined using the projected unit credit method, which
attnbutes entitlement to benefits to the current penod (to determine current service cost) and to the current and prior penods

(to determine the present value of defined benefit obligation) and 1s based on actuanal advice Past service costs are recogmised
in the Income Statement immediately if the benefits have vested

The interest element of the defined benefit cost represents the change in present value of scheme obligations resulting from the
passage of time and is determined by applying the discount rate to the opening present value of the benefit obligation, taking mnto
account matenal changes in the obligation during the year The expected return on plan assets 1s based on an assessment made

at the begmning of the year of long-term market returns on scheme assets, adjusted for the effect on the farr value of plan assets of
contributions recerved and benefits paid during the year The difference between the expected return on plan assets and the interest
cost 1s recognised in the Income Statement as other finance income or expense

Actuanal gains and losses are recogrised In full in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in which they ocour
The defined benefit pension asset or liability in the Balance Sheet comprises the present valus of the defined benefit obligation, less
any past service cost not yet recogrused and less the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be seftled directly

When a pension asset (net surplus) anses and the directors consider it 1s controlled by the Company such that future economic
benefits will be available to the Company, 1t 1s camed forward in accordance with the requirements of IFRIC14

Contnbutions to defined contnbution schemes are recognised in the Income Statement in the year in which they become payable

OWN SHARES

St Modwen Properties PLC shares held by the Group are classified in equity attnbutable to owners of the Company and are
recognised at cost

DIVIDENDS
Dnidends declared after the Balance Sheet date are not recognised as liabilities at the Balance Sheet date

REVENLIE RECOGNITION

Reverue Is recognised to the axtent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably
measured Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration received, excluding discounts, rebates, VAT and other sales
taxes or duty The following cntena must also be met before revenue 1s recognised

Sale of property
Revenue arising from the sale of property 1s recognised on legal completion of the sale Where revenue 1s earned for development of
property assets not owned, this 1s recognised when the Group has substantially fulfilled its obligations in respect of the transaction

Construction contracts
Revenue arising from construction contracts is recogrused in accordance with the Group's accounting policy on construction
contracts {see below)

Rental income
Rental tncome ansing from investment properties I1s accounted for on a straight-lne basis over the lease term
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Interest income
Interest income 1s accrued on a time basss, by reference to the pnncipal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estmated future cash receipts over the expected Ife of the financial asset to that asset's net

carrying amount

Dwdend ncome
Dmdend income from joint ventures 1s recognised when the shareholders’ nghts to receve payment have been established

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract activity at the Balance Sheet date The extent to which the contract 1s complete 1s determined by the
total costs incurred to date as a percentage of the total anticipated costs of the entire contract Varations in contract work, claims
and incentive payments are included only to the extent they have been agreed with the purchaser

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estmated reliably, contract revenue 1s recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred where it 1s probablas they will be recoverable Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the penod In
which they are incurred

When it ts probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss 1s recognised as an

expense immediately

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants relating to property are treated as deferred income and released to profit or loss over the expected useful Iife
of the assets concerned

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Group accounts for share-based payments as equity-settled Equrty-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value
at the date of grant using an appropnate option pricing model For those share options that had previously been accounted for

as cash-setiled, the far value at the date of ransiion became the far value at the date of grant for the equrty-settled share-based
options The far value at the date of grant s expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting penod based on the Group's estirmate

of shares that will eventually vest

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial llabliities are recognised on the Group's Balance Sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the nstrument The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when It transfers the financial asset and substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership of the asset 1o
another entity If the Group nerher transfers nor retains substantally all the nsks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group recogrises its retained interest in the asset and an associated llability for any amounts it may have
to pay If the Group retans substanbally all the nsks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowng for the proceeds received The Group derecognises
financial labiities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled, or expire

Trade and other recevables
Trade recevables are recogrised and camed at the lower of ther onginal mvoiced value or recoverable amount Provision 1s made
when there 15 evidence that the Group will not be able to recover balances in full Balances are written off when the probahilty of

recovery s assessed as being remote

Cash and cash equnalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances and short-term deposits with banks

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables on deferred payment terms are initially recorded by discounting the neminal amount payable to net present
value The discount to nominal value is amortised over the period of the deferred arrangement and charged to finance costs

Interest beanng loans and borrowings
Al loans and borrowings are initially recogrused at falr value less directly attnbutable transaction costs After initial recognition, loans

and borrowings are measured at amorbised cost

Gains and losses ansing on the repurchase, settlement or otherwise cancellation of liabiliies are recogrised in finance income or
finance expense as appropnate

The effective Interest rate method is used to charge interest to the Income Statement
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Financial Statements

Accounting Policies (continued)

for the year ended 30" November 2013

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)}

Denvative financial instruments and hedging

The Group uses denvatwve financial nstruments such as interest rate swaps to hedge its nsks associated with interest rate
fluctuations Such instruments are initially recognised at far value on the date on which a contract s entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at farr value The Group has determmuned that the denvative financial nstruments in use do not qualify
for hedge accounting and, consequently, any gams or losses ansing from changes in the farr value of dervatives are taken to the
Income Statement

Equity insttuments

An equity instrument 1s any contract that emdances a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all its habilities
Equity Instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds receved less direct 1ssue costs

USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

To be able to prepare Financial Statements according to generally accepted accounting pnnciples, management must make
estimates and assurmphons that affect the asset and liability tems and revenue and expense amounts recorded in the Financial
Statements These estimates are based on the Group's systems of Internal control, histoncal expenence and the advice of external
experts {including qualified professional valuers and actuares) together with various other assumptions that management and the
Board of Directors believe are reasonable under the circumstances The results of these considerations form the basis for making
Judgements about the carrying value of assets and habilihes that are not readily avallable from other sources

The areas requinng the use of estimates and critical judgements that may significantly impact the Group’s earnings and financial
posrttion are

Going concern The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis This Is discussed in the Strategic Report
and adoption of the going concern assumption 1s confirmed in the Directors’ Report

Valuation of nvestment properties Management has used the valuation performed by its Independent valuers as the far value of
its Investment properties The valuation 1s performed according to RICS rules, using appropnate levels of professional judgement for
the prevailing market conditions

Net realisable value of Inventories The Group has ongoing procedures for assessing the carrying value of inventones and
identifying where this 15 In excess of net realisable value Management'’s assessment of any resulting provision requirement is, where
apphcable, supported by independent information supplied by the external valuers The estimates and judgements used were based
on nformation available at, and pertaining to, 30" November 2013 Any subsequent adverse changes in market conditions may
result in additonal provisions being required

Estimaton of remediation and other costs to complete for both development and investment properties In making an
assessment of these costs there 1s mherent uncertainty and the Group has developed systems of internal control to assess and
review carrying values and the appropnateness of estimates made Any changes to these estimates may impact the carrying values
of iInvestment properties and/or inventones

Taxahon As a property group, tax planning s often an integral part of transactions Where tax planning 1s entered into benefits are
recognised by the Group to the extent the outcome 1s reasonably certan Where tax planning has been challenged by HMRC, or
management believe that there 1s a nsk of such challenge, provision is made for the best estimate of potential expasure based on the
information avallable at the Balance Sheet date Management's assessment of the level of provision required 1, where applicable,
supported by the Group's tax advisors If HMRC were to be successful in challenging tax planning arrangernents to a greater extent
than has been provided at the Balance Sheet date then addrtional provisions may be required

Calculation of the net present value of pension scheme habilittes In calculating this habiity 1t 1s necessary for actuanal
assumptions to be made, including discount and mortality rates and the long-term rate of return upon scheme assets The Group
engages a qualified actuary to assist with determining the assumptions to be made and evaluating these labiies

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

Standards and interpretations adopted not affecting the Financial Staterments
The following standards, amendments and interpretations have been adopted in the cument year but have had no impact on the
amounts reported or the disclosures in the Financial Statements

IAS12 {amended 2010) Deferred Tax Recovery of Underlying Assetls
IAS1 (amended 2011) Preferaton of Items of Other Comprehensive Income

In addtion, minor amendments to existing standards were made under Improvements to IFRSs {issued December 2010) which have
been adopted dunng the year
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Impact of standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective
At the date of authonsation of these Financial Statements, the following standards, amendments and interpretations which have
not been adopted in these Financial Staternents ware in1ssue but not yet effective (and in some cases had not yet been adopted

by the EU)

IAS19 (revised 2013)
IAS19 (revised 2011)
IAS27 (revised 2011)
1AS27 (amended 2012)
1AS28 {revised 2011)
IAS32 (amended 2011)
IAS36 (amended 2013)
1AS38 (amended 2013)
IFRIC20

IFRIC21

IFRS1 (amended 2012)
IFRS7 (amended 2011)
IFRSS

IFRS10

IFRS10 (amended 2012)
IFRS11

IFRS12

IFRS12 (amended 2012}
IFRS13

Defined Benefit Plans Employee Contnbutions

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investment Entities

Investments in Assoclates and Joint Ventures

Offsetiing Financlal Assets and Financial Liabiles
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-financial Assets
Novation of Dervatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting
Stripping Costs in the Preduction Phase of a Surface Mine
Levies

Government Loans

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Financial Instruments

Consolidated Financial Statements

Investment Entrties

Joint Arangements

Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities

Investment Entites

Fair Value Measurement

In addition, Improvements to IFRSs (issued May 2012 and December 2013) are the latest tranches of the Improvements to IFRSs
project and these have a number of minor amendments to existing IAS and IFRSs, which have not yet been adopted.

While the directors are still assessing the impact that the adopbon of these standards, amendments and interpretations will have
on the Financial Statements of the Group in future pancds, they do not cumrently believe that adoption will have a matena! impact
on the reported results of the Group, although amended disclosures may be required
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Group Financial Statements

for the year ended 30" November 2013

1 REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

2013
Rental Development Other Total
£m £€m £m £m
Revenue ar1 1181 59 1611
Cost of sales 81) (93.4) {30) {104 5)
Gross profit 290 247 29 566
2012
Rental Development Other Totat
m m £m em
Revenue 393 1741 57 2191
Cost of sales {i10) {1517) {29 {165 6)
Gross profit 283 224 28 535

The Group operates exclusively in the UK and all of its revenues denve from its portfolio of properttes which the Group manages
mternally, and reports to the Board, as one business Therefore, the Financial Statements and related notes rapresent the results and
financial position of the Group’s sole business segment

The Group's total revenue for 2013 was £169 0m (2012 £229 3m} and in addition to the amounts above included service charge
Income of £6 5m (2012 £6 9m), for which there was an equivalent expense and interest income of £1 4m (2012 £3 3m} In the year
ended 30% Novermnber 2013 both development revenue and cost of sales include £20 8m (2012 £60 9m) In relation to amounts
settled by the Ministry of Defence in respect of RAF Northolt under Project MoDEL.

Cost of sales in respect of rental income, as disclosed above, compnse direct operating expenses (including repatrs and
mantenance) related to the investment property portfolio and include £0 1m (2012 £0 2m) In respect of properties that did not
generate any rental income

Dunng the year the following amounts were recognised (as part of development revenue and cost of sales) in respect of
construction contracts

2013 2012

£m om

Revenue M9 777
Cost of sales (27.3) 632
Gross profit 146 145

Amounts recoverable on contracts as disclosed in note 11 compnse £10 2m (2012 £7 2m) of contract revenue recogrised and
£0 8m (2012 £0 9m) of retentions

‘There were no amounts due to customers (2012 2nil) included in trade and other payables in respect of contracts in progress at the
Balance Sheet date
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2 NON-STATUTORY INFORMATION
a Trading profit

The non-statutory measures of trading profit and profit befere all tax, which includes the Group’s share of joint ventures and

assoclates, have been calculated as set out below

2013 2012
Jont Jorit
ventures and ventures and
Group associates Total Group assocates Total
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Net rental iIncome 29.0 73 363 283 79 362
Development profit (1) 264 05 26.9 262 12 274
Gains on disposal of investments/
mvestment properties 3.6 2.3 129 14 02 18
Other income 2.9 - 29 28 - 28
Administrative expenses (19.9) {0.3) (20 2) (18 1} {05 (18 6)
Finance costs {2) (20 4) (6 5) (26 9) (188) 62 (250
Finance ncome 3) 1.4 - 1.4 11 - 11
Trading profit 230 103 33.3 229 26 255
Investment property revaluation gans {1) 30.9 1.1 42.0 13 267 280
Other finance costs ) (3.2) - 32 35) 03 ¢8)
Other finance income 3) 8.0 24 101 41 - a1
Profit before all tax 58.7 235 822 248 280 528
Taxation {6.6) {1.7) 83) {51) ()] {10 5)
Profit for the year 521 21.8 739 197 226 423

(1) Stated befora the deduction of net realisable value provisions of Group £1 7m (2012 £3 8m), joint ventures and associates £nil 2012 £0 1m) These items are
reclassified to investment property revaluations, together with goodwill wntten off on the corporate acquisition of investrent properties

(2) Stated before mark-to-market of demvatves and other non-cash tems of Group £3.2m {2012 £3.5m), joint ventures and associates £nif (2012 £1.3m) These amounts

ara reclassfied to other finance costs.

{3} Stated before mark-to-market of dervatives, loan settlement fees and cther non-cash tems of Group £8 0m (2012 €4 1m), joint ventures and associates £2 1m

{2012 €ni) These items are reclassified to other finance ncome

b Property valuations

Property valuations, including the Group's share of joint ventures and associates, have been calculated as set out below

2013 2012

Joint Jort

ventures and ventures and
Group associates Total Group associates Total
£rn £m £m £m £m £m
Investment property revaluation gains 326 11.1 43.7 51 268 319
Net realisable value provisions (17) - (17) (38) 01) 39
Property valuation gains 309 111 420 13 267 280
Added value 210 71 2841 198 278 476
Market movements 99 4.0 13.9 (18 5) {11) (196)
Property valuation gains 309 111 42.0 13 287 280

The spliit of property valuation gains between added value and market movements 1s based on an analysis of total property valuation
movements provided by the Group’s external valuers Jones Lang LaSalle LLF, Chartered Surveyors
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Financial Statements

Notes tothe Group Financial Statements connueq)

for the year ended 30* November 2013

2 NON-STATUTORY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
¢ Property portfollo

The property portfolio, ncluding the Group’s share of joint ventures and associates, 1s denved from the Balance Sheet as
detalled below

2013 2012
Joint Jourt
ventures and ventures and
Group associates Total Group assocates Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Investment properties 8133 1376 950 9 7704 1749 9453
Less assets held under finance leases (3.9) (1.2) (5.1) B9 (12 (51)
Add back lease incentives (recorded
in receivables) 56 13 69 45 18 61
Inventories 2059 36 2095 17562 75 1827
Less ‘barter’ properties and
accrued inventory® {20.4) - {20.4) (30 8) — (308)
Property portfolio 1,000 5 141.3 1,1418 9154 1828 1,098 2

{1} Represents deductions for ‘barter’ properties, pnncipally RAF Northolt as part of the Project MoDEL amangements between VSM Estates Limited and the Ministry of
Defence, and accrued inventory

As at 30" November 2013 the Group had assets of £228 6m (2012 £167 4m) included withun the Group property portfolio (excluding
Jjont ventures and associates) which were wholly owned, unencumbered and able o be pledged as secunty for the Group's
debt facilities

The Group property portfolio, including its share of joint ventures and associates, can be split by category as detaled below

2013 2012
£m £m
Retai 201.0 2402
Offices 59.4 607
Industnal 253.2 2606
Income producing 513.6 5615
Residential land 4818 3974
Commercial fand 146 4 1393
Property portfolio 1,141 8 1,098 2
d Movement in net debt
Movement in net debt as discussed in the Strategic Report 1s calculated as set out below
2013 212
£m £m
Movement In cash and cash equivalents {15} 37
Borrowings drawn {51 0) (88 8)
Repayment of borrowings 77.8 1014
Recelpt of funds from equity placing {47.9) -
Joint venture debt repaid between 30" November 2011 and acquisition as subsidiary undertakings on
31 May 2012 - 16
(Increase)/decrease m equivalent net debt {22.6) 79
Receipt of funds from equity placing 47.9 -
Joint venture debt at 30" November 2011 now consolidated - (26 8)
Decrease/(increase} in net debt 25.3 (189)

Included in the increase in net debt for the year ended 30" November 2012 1s £24 8m as a result of the Group now consclidating
both Sowcrest Limited and Holaw 462 Limited as subsidiary undertakings Pnor to 30" November 2012 these entities were
accounted for as joint ventures with net debt of £26 8m as at 30™ November 2011.
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e Trading cash flow

Trading cash flows are dernved from the Group Cash Flow Statement as set out below

2013
Operating Investing Financing

achvities activities actvities Total

£m £m £m £m

Net rent and other income 319 - - 31.9
Property disposals 1181 54.0 - 1724
Property acquistions (14 8) 87 - (23.5)
Capital expenditure (87.0) (66.2) - (153.2)
Working capital and other movements C.6 - - 06
Overheads and interest {19.5) - {20.3) {39 8)
Taxation a1) - - 1)
Trading cash flow 25.2 (20.9) {20 3) {16 0)
Receipt of funds from equtty placing - - 47.9 47.9
Net borrowings - - (26 8) (26.8)
Net dividends - 1.7 (8 3) (6 6)
Movement In cash and cash equivalents 252 {19.2) (7.5) {1.5)

amz
Operatng Investing Finanang

actvibes achvihes actvites Total

£m £m £m £m

Net rent and other income 311 - - 311
Property disposals 975 295 16 1286
Property acquisitions {107) {65 - (172)
Capital expenditure (733) 312 — (104 5)
Working capital and other movements 134 04 — 138
QOverheads and interest {173) 31 (206) (34 8
Taxation 22 — -~ 2 2}
Trading cash flow 385 47) {190 148
Net borrowings - - 226 226
Joint venture debt at 30" Novermber 2011 now consolidated - - (26 8) {26 8)
Net drvidends - - 69 &9)
Movement in cash and cash equivalents 385 47 (301) 37
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Financial Statements

Notesto the Group Financial Statements corinueq

for the year ended 30" November 2013

2 NON-STATUTORY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

f Group Balance Shest

VSM Estates (Holdings) Limited and its subsidiary undertakings (VSM) are party to a senes of contracts with the Ministry of Defence
known as Project MoDEL The property assets of VSM are subject to purchase on defemmed terms and, to increase disclosure of the
impact of these arrangements, an additional split of the Group Balance Sheet showing the proportion attributable to VSM has been
provided below

| 2013 2012
Group VSM Total Group VSM Tetal
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Investment property 744 6 687 8133 70386 66 8 7704
Other non-current assets 108.9 106 11956 880 156 1036
Inventory 1997 62 205.9 1483 269 1752
Cash and cash equivalents 32 42 74 50 39 89
Other current assets 347 25.0 59.7 269 196 465
Total assets 1,0911 1147 1,205.8 9718 1328 1,104 6
Current liabilihes {142 0) (31 6) {173 6) {1250) 339 (158 9)
Borrowings (3381) {10 0) (348.1) {344 5) (30 4) (3749
Other non-current habilities (193) {37.8) (57.1) (12 4 @47 (571)
Total habilities (499 4) (79 4) (578 8) 4819 (109 0) (590 9)
Net assets 501.7 353 6270 4899 238 5137
Equity attnbutable to owners of
the Company 5877 265 614 2 4853 173 5026
Non-controlling nterests 4.0 8.8 12.8 48 65 111
Total equity 591.7 353 6270 488 9 238 5137
g Net assets per share
Net assets per share are calculated as set out below
2013 2012
Total equity (Em) 627.0 5137
Less Non-controlling interest {12.8) {111
Equity attnbutable to owners of the Company 614.2 5026
Deferred tax on capital allowances and revaluations 205 187
Mark-to-market of interest rate swaps 127 191
Farr value of nventories 8.5 39
Diluted EPRA net assets 655.9 544 3
Shares in 1ssue {(number) 220,376,988 200,360,931
Total equity attributable to owners of the Company net assets per share (pence} 278.7 2608
Percentage Increase 11% 8%
Diluted EPRA net assets per share {pence) 2976 2717
Percentage increase 10% 9%
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h Geanng and loan-to-valua
The following table shows the calculation of

« geanng, being the ratio of net debt to total equity, and
+ |oan-to-value, being the ratio of net debt to the property portfolic (representing amounts that could be used as secunty for
that debt)
In addition ‘equivalent’ net debt and associated metrics are discussed in the Strategie Report These figures assume that the equity
placmg was in place at 30" November 2012 Adjustments to denve these figures are also detailled below

2013 o012
Jomnt Jont
ventures and verues and
Group associates Total Group assoqates Total
£m £m £m m m £m
Property portfolio (note 2¢) 1,000.5 1413 1,141.8 9154 1828 1,088 2
Total equity 627.0 N/A 6270 5137 N/A 5137
Adjustment assuming equity placed as at
30" November 2012 - N/A - 479 N/A 479
Comparable equity 6270 N/A 627.0 5616 N/A 5616
Net debt 3407 330 373.7 3660 825 4485
Adjustment assuming equity placed as at
30" November 2012 - - - @r9 - @r9)
Comparable debt 3407 330 3737 3181 825 4006
Gearing 54% 60% 71% 87%
Loan-to-value 34% 33% 40% 1%
Equivalent gearing 54% 60% 57% 71%
Equivalent loan-to-value 34% 33% 35% 36%
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Financial Statements

Notesto the Group Financial Statements coninvea

for the year ended 30" November 2013

3 OTHER INCOME STATEMENT DISCLOSURES

a Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses have been amved at after charging

2013 2012
£m om
Depreciation 0.5 05
Operating lease costs 07 10
b Audtor's remuneration
The analysis of auditor's remuneration is as follows
2013 2012
Audit and Audit and
audit-related audit-related
services Other services Total senvices Other servces Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Fees payable for the audit of the
Company’s Annual Financial Statements 120 - 120 118 — 118
The audit of subsidiary companies and
foint ventures pursuant to legisiation 150 - 150 137 - 137
Total audnt fees 270 - 270 255 — 255
Audit-related assurance services 55 - 55 55 — 55
Other assurance services - - - 20 — 20
Tax compliance senices - 166 166 - 150 150
Tax advisory services - 174 174 — 171 171
Property consulting - 30 30 — 47 47
Total non-audit fees 55 370 425 75 368 443
Total fees 325 370 695 330 368 698

The above amounts include all amounts charged in respect of joint venture undertakings Further information 1s included in the Audit
Committee Report

¢ Employees
The a\[:;zlge number of full-time employess {including executive directors) employed by the Group during the year was as follows
2013 2012
Numbar Number
Property 146 136
Leisure and other activities 63 63
Administration 46 M
Total employees 255 240
The total payroll costs of these employees were
2013 2012
£m £m
Wages and salaries 128 125
Social security costs 1.9 16
Pension costs 08 08
Total payroll costs 155 149

Details of the directors’ remuneration s grven in the Directors® Remuneration Report
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d Share-based payments

The Group has a Save As You Earn share option scheme which is open to all employees Employees must ordinanly remain in
service for a penod of five years from the date of grant before exercising their optons The option pencd ends six months following
the end of the vesting penod The Group also has an Executive Share Option Scheme and Performance Share Plan (PSP), full details

of which are given in the Directors” Remuneration Report

The following table illustrates the movements in share ophons dunng the year. As the PSP includes the grant of options at £nil
exercise pnce the weighted average pnces below are calculated including and excluding the options under this plan

2013 an2
Waighted average price Waghted average price
Al Excluding All

Number of options PSP Nurnber of options PSP

options £ £ opbons e £

Outstanding at start of year 10,930,665 1.49 190 8,623,043 157 196
Granted 1,758,696 209 297 3,021,762 125 177
Forfeited (528,823) 192 1.92 (197,768) 233 (233
Lapsed (266,239} 020 410 (360,588) {0 49) {185
Exercised (1,522,802) 165 186 (155,784) (1 66) -
Qutstanding at end of year 10,371,497 1.58 206 10,930,865 149 190
Exercisable at year end 3,324,326 1.80 206 2,672,736 201 220

Share options are priced using a Black-Scholes valuation model The fair values calculated and the assumptions used are as follows
Charge

to Income Risk-free Expected Dandend Share

Statement interest rate volatility ylald price

£m % %a % £

30" November 2013 19 04-11 37 6-56.9 11 1.23-3.20
30™ November 2012 03 04-11 376-569 16 123-200

* Basod on tha earlier of the 90 day averaga 1o 30™ November 2011 or, for options granted after thes date, the chosng shame pnca on the date of grant

The fair value of the share incentive reserve In respect of share options outstanding at the year end was £2 1m (2012 £2 4m) and
included £0 7m (2012 £0 4m) in respect of options that had vested at the year end

In armving at farr value rt has been assumed that, when vested, shares options are exercised in accordance with historical trends
Expacted volatiity was determined by reference to the histonical volatility of the Group’s share price over a period consistent with the
expected Iife of the options

The waighted average share pnice at the date of exercise was £3 00 (2012 £1 97) The executve share options outstanding at the

year end had a range of exercise prices between £1 63 and £3 75 (2012 £1 14 and £3 75) with PSP options exercisable at £nil
(2012 £nil cost Outstanding options had a weighted average maximum remaining contractual life of 9 0 years (2012 90 years)
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Finanaial Statements

Notes to the Group Financial Statements connueq

for the year ended 30" November 2013

4 FINANCE COST AND FINANCE INCOME

2013 2012
£m £m
Interestpayable onborrowsngs . . ... ___ {202 (8§
Amortisation of loan amangementfees P . IR L -
Amoerhisation of discount on deferred payment arrangements » _ 09 (11
Head rents treated as financedeases o e {0 2) 03
Interest on pensiocn scheme liabiliies (note 18) (11) {12)
Total finance cost {23.6) 223
The finance income on interest rate denvatives denves from financial labilies held at far value through profit or loss
All finance costs denve from financial habilities measured at amortised cost
2013 2012
£m £m
Interest receivable . . S &
Creditnrespect of loan settlementfees . ... .. .- ._ .2
Credit in respect of discounton defemred recervables . __ 01 02
Movement in fair value of interest rate denvatives . - 67 06
Expected return on pension scheme assets (note 18) 12 13
Total finance mcome 9.4 52
5 TAXATION
a Tax on profit on ordmary actvities
2013 2012
£m fm
Tax charge/(credit) in the Income Statement
Corporation tax
Current year tax 43 34
Adjustments in respect of previous years {©1) 19
42 53
Deferred tax
Reversal of temporary differences 27 04
Impact of current year revaluations and indexation 30 27
Net {frecogniion)/utihsation: of tax losses (1.2} 09
Change in rate for provision of deferred tax {10) {05)
Adjustments in respect of previous years {1.1) 29
2.4 02
Total tax charge in the Income Statement 6.6 51
Tax relating to tems in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
Deferred tax

Actuanal losses on pension schemes -

Tax credit in the Statement of Total Recognised Income and Expense -
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b Reconciliabon of effective tax rate

2013 202

£m £

Profit before tax 805 474
Less joint ventures and associates {21 8) {22 6)
Pre-tax profit attnbutable to the Group 587 248
Corporation tax at 23 3% (2012 24 7%) 137 61
Permanent differences 0.1 07N
Short-term timing differences 58 {17)
Impact of current year revaluations and indexation 30) 22
Difference between chargeable gains and accounting profit {6.8) 07
Change in rate used for provision of deferred tax 04) 05
Deferred tax asset recognised (16) -
Current year charge 78 61
Adjustments n respect of previous years {1.2) (10}
Tax charge for the year 6.6 51
Effective rate of tax 11% 21%

The post-tax results of joint ventures and associates are stated after a tax charge of £1 7m (2012 €5 4m) The effective tax rate for
the Group including joint ventures and associates is a charge of 10 1% (2012 18 9% charge)

The Finance Act 2013 was enacted on 17" July 2013 and included provisions which reduced the main rate of corporation tax to
219% from 1% Apnl 2014 and 20% from 1% Apri 2015 Current tax has therefore been provided at 23 3% and deferred tax at 21% for
amounts expected to reverse before 1= Apnl 2015 and 20% for amounts expected to reverse thereafter

C Balance Sheet

2013 2012

Corporation Deferred Comporation Deferred

tax tax tax tax

£m £m 2m £

Balance at start of the year 3.3 8.5 02 87
Charge/{credit) to the Income Statement 42 2.4 53 02
Net payment 41) - 22 -
Balance at end of the year 3.4 10.9 33 B85

An analysis of the deferred tax provided by the Group Is given below
2013 2012

Asset Liahility Net Asset Lisbiity Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Froperty revaluations - 18 18 - 95 95
Capral allowances - 3.5 3.5 - 36 36
Appropnations to trading stock - 07 0.7 - 0% 08
Unutiised tax losses (16) - (1.6) {01 — {01}
Other temporary differences (3.5) - {3.5) 54 - 54
{5.1) 16 0 109 (55 140 85

At the Balance Sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses In relation to 2013 and prior years of £3 2m (2012 £1 8m), of which
£16m (2012 £0 1m) has been recognised as a deferred tax asset A deferred tax asset of £1 6m (2012 £1 7m) has not been
recognised In respect of current and prior year tax losses as It is not considered sufficiently certan that there wil be taxable profits

avallable in the short-term agamnst which these can be offset.

d Factors that may affect future tax charges
Based on current capital investment plans, the Group expects to continue to be able to claim capital allowances in excess of

depreciation In future years
As a property group, tax planning i1s often an integral part of transactions Where tax planning is entered into benefits are recogrused

by the Group to the extent the outcome 1s reasonably certain Whera tax planning has been challenged by HMRC, or management
belleve that there Is a nsk of such challenge, provision is made for the best estmate of potential exposure based on the information

avallable at the Balance Sheet date
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Group Financial Statements contnueq

for the year ended 30" November 2013

6 EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of basic and diluted earmings per share i1s set out below

2013 2052

Number of Number of

shares sharas

Weighted number of shares in 1ssue 215,236,438 200145177
Weighted number of dilutive shares 4,074,926 1,534,699
219,311,364 201,679,776

2013 2012

£m £m

Profit attnbLiable to equity shareholders (basic and diluted) 721 427
2013 2012

pence pence

Basic earnings per share 335 213
Diluted earnings per share 329 212

Shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust are excluded from the above calculations

As the Group 1s pnncipally a development business EPRA earmings per share on a basic and diluted basis are not prowided
These calculations exclude development profits and would not provide a meaningful measure of the performance of the Group

7 DVIDENDS

Dnndends patd dunng the year were In respect of the final dvidend for 2012 and an intenm dividend for 2013 The proposed final
dividend 1s subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting and has not been inciuded as a liability in these Financial Statements

2012

p per share £m p per share £m
Paid
Final drvidend in respect of previous year 242 53 220 44
Intenm dividend in respect of current year 133 29 121 24
Total 375 B2 341 658
Proposed
Current year final dividend 2 67 59 242 48

The Employee Benefit Trust waives its entitlernent to dividends
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8 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Hoday 2ibsieAS

Freehold Leasehold
nvestment mvestment
properties properties Total
£m £m £m
Fair value
At 30" November 2011 5607 2880 8487
Additions - new properties 350 — 30 (9
Other additions 318 15 433 |3
Net transfers to mventones (note 12) {467 41) (60 8) g«-
Disposals (162 ©60) (22 | &
Gain/(loss) on revaluation 111 @7 64 cg
At 30" November 2012 5757 1947 7704 | 3
Additions - new properties 94 - g4 |©®
Other addibions 549 63 612
Net transfers {from)/to inventones (note 12) (107 06 (101)
Reclassification from operating properhes (note ) 01 - 01
Disposals B350 (153 {503
Gan on revaluation 211 15 326 |3
At 30" November 2013 615.5 197.8 813.3 §
B
Investment properties were valued at 30" Novermnber 2013 by Jones Lang LaSalle LLF, Chartered Surveyors, in accordance with the 2]
Appraisal and Valuation Manual of the Royal Instituton of Chartered Surveyors, on the basis of market value Jlones Lang LaSalle g—
LLP are professionally qualified independent external valuers and have recent expenence in the relevant location and category of g
the properties being valued %
Addtions — new properties include £nil (2012 £31 6m) acquired through business combinations
The histoncal cost of Investment properties at 30" November 2013 was £699 3m (2012 £680 5m)
As at 30" Novemnber 2013, £633 2m {2012 £632 8m) of investment property was pladged as security for the Group’s loan faciliies
Included within leasshold investment properties are £3 9m (2012 £3 8m) of assets held under finance leases
&
o
=
[=]
=2
B
3
g
3
o
o
=
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Financial Statements

Notestothe Group Financial Statements continueq)

for the year ended 30" November 2013

9 OPERATING PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating
Operating plant and
properties equipment Total
£m £m £m
Cost
At 30" November 2011 69 49 18
Additions 01 01 02
At 30™ November 2012 70 50 120
Additions - 04 04
Reclassiied to investment property (note 8) 1) - 01
At 30" November 2013 69 54 123
Depreciation
At 30" November 2011 07 40 47
Charge for the year 01 04 05
At 30™ November 2012 08 44 52
Charge for the year 01 04 05
At 30* November 2013 09 48 57
Net book value
At 30* November 2011 62 09 71
At 30" November 2012 62 a6 68
At 30" November 2013 60 0.6 66
Tenure of operating properties
2013 2012
£m £m
Freshold 3.4 35
Leasehold 2.8 27
60 62
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10 JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

The Group’s share of the trading results for the year of its joint ventures and associates Is

2013 2012
VSM Other VaM Cther
Key Estates joint Kay Estates jont
Property Uxbndge vontures Property Uxbndge ventues
Investments [Group} and Investments {Groun) and
Limited Limited assoclates Total Limited Lervted associates Toral
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Income Statements
Revenue 13.8 - 14 15.2 189 01 08 198
Net rental ncome 74 {01) 0.3 73 73 01) 07 79
Development profits/{losses) 0.2 - 0.3 05 13 — 02 11
Gains on disposal of Investments/
investment properties 9.3 - - 8.3 062 - - 02
Investment property revaluation
gans/(losses) 62 51 {0 2) 111 04 272 - 2688
Administrative expenses (0.2) {01) - {0.3) 03 (=) (01) {05
Profit before interest and tax 22.6 49 0.4 27.9 81 270 04 355
Finance cost {4.1} {2.3) (0.1) {6.5) 4 8) 24 03 75
Finance income 1.9 0.2 - 21 — - - -
Profit before tax 20.4 28 03 23.5 33 246 01 280
Taxation (1.6) {01) - (17 03 {5 5) 02 54
Profit/loss) for the year 18 8 27 0.3 21.8 36 181 {01) 226
Included in other jomt ventures and associates above are results from associated companies of £nil {2012 losses of €0 1m)
The Group's share of the Balance Sheets of its joint ventures and associates 1s
2013 2012
VSM Other VSM Other
Key Estates fornt Key Estates ont
Property Uxbndge ventures Property Uxbndoe venturas
Investments (Group) and Investments Group) and
Limitod bimited associates Total Lmitad Lmuted assocates Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance Sheets
Non-current assets 80.7 60.0 64 14741 1168 589 38 1795
Current assets 10.2 29 41 172 136 29 48 213
Current habilities (89) (16 0} {24) (27 3) {192 62 09 (263)
Non-current habiliies (15 2) (251) (1.4} {41.7) {62 0) {36 5) {08 993
Net assets 668 21.8 6.7 853 492 191 659 752
Equity at start of year 49.2 191 69 75.2 456 - 47 503
Transfer from joint venture to
subsidiary undertaking - - - - - - 23 23
Profit/(loss) for the year 188 2.7 03 218 38 191 01} 226
Dwidends paid (1.2) - 05 17 - - - -
Equity at end of year 66.8 21.8 67 953 492 191 69 752

Included in other joint ventures and associates above are net assets of £2 8m (2012 £2 9m) in relation to assoclated companies
These net assets compnss total assets of £3 6m (2012 £3 6m) and total habiliies of £0 8m (2012 £0 7m)
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Financial Statements

Notestothe Group Financial Statements contnues

for the year ended 30" November 2013

10 JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCGIATES (CONTINUED)

Joint venture companies and associates compnse

Name Status Interest Principal nature of business
Key Property Investments Limited Jont venture 50% Property nvestment and development
V8M Estates Uxbndge (Group) Limrted Joint venture 50% Property investment and development
VSM (NCGM) Limited Jont venture 50% Property development
Barton Business Park Limited Joint venture 50% Property development
Kilingholme Energy Limited Joint venture 50% Property development
Kilingholme Land Limited Jont venture 50% Property development
Meaford Energy Limited Joint venture 50% Property development
Meaford Land Limited Joint veniure 50% Property development
Skypark Development Partnership LLP Joint venture 50% Property development
Wrexham Land Lirmited Joint venture 50% Property development
Wrexham Power Lirmted Joint venture 50% Property development
Coed Darcy Limited Associate 49% Property investment and development
Baglan Bay Company Limited Associate 25% Property management

In the Strategic Report a senes of commercial contracts with Persimmon is referred to as the ‘Persimmon joint venture’ This 1s not
a statutory entity and the results from these commercial contracts are not included in the figures disclosed above Revenue and
profit from the Persimmeon joint venture are recognised in Group development profit on legal completion of housing unit sales to
third-party customers

Many of the shareholder agreements for joint ventures and associates contain change of control provisions, as 1s comimeon for
such arrangements

11 TRADE AND CTHER RECEIVABLES

2013 2012
£m £m
Non-current
Other debtors 11.6 156
Amounts due from joint ventures 6.0 60
17.6 216
Current
Trade receivables 2.2 49
Prepayments and accrued income 4.9 71
Other debtors 29.3 182
Amounits recoverable on confracts 11.0 81
Amounts due from joint ventures 123 82
59.7 465

IFRS 7 disclosures in respect of financial assets included above are provided in note 16
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12 INVENTORIES

2013 2012

£m £m

Properties held for sale 9.7 986
Properties under construction 177.3 1431
Land under option 189 225
2059 1752

The movemnent in inventores during the two years ended 30™ November 2013 1s as fellows

£m

At 30" November 2011 1911
Addrtions 850
Net transfers from investment property (note 8) 508
Disposals (transferred to development cost of sales) (note 1) (1517)
At 30" November 2012 1762
Additons 1140
Net transfers from investment property (note 8) 101
Disposals (transferred to development cost of sales) [note 1} (934
At 30" November 2013 205.9

The directors consider all inventories to be current In nature The operational cycle is such that a proportion of inventones will not be
realised withinn 12 months It 1s not posstble to determine with accuracy when specific inventory will be realised as this will be subject
to a number of 1gsues including the strength of the property market

Included within disposals of Inventories are net realisable value provisions made during the year of £1 7m (2012 £3 8m)
As at 30" November 2013 £43 3m (2012 £41 0m) of inventory was pledged as secunty for the Group’s lean faciliies

13 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2013 2012
£m £m
Current

Trade payables 211 204
Amounts dus to joint ventures 250 131
Other payables and accrued expenses 928 748
Other payables on deferred terms 18.5 278
Denvative financial nstruments 128 195
170 2 1556

Non-current
Other payables on deferred terms 42.3 447
Finance lease liabilities (head rents) 39 39
46.2 486

IFRS 7 disclosures in respect of financial liabtities included above are provided in note 16

The payment terms of the other payables on deferred terms are subject to contractual commitments In the nermal course of events
the payments will be made in ine with either the disposal of investment properties held on the Balance Sheet, or the commencement
of development Net cash outflows on the settlement of the deferred consideration will therefore be imited
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Group Financial Statements ortnueq

for the year ended 30" November 2013

14 BORROWINGS

2013 2012
£m £m
Current

Bank overdrafts - 33
Bank loans 625 -
625 33

Non-current
Amounts repayable between one and two years 64.0 851
Amounts repayable between two and five years 138.0 2016
Amounts repayable after more than five years 836 849
2856 3716
Total 3481 3749

Where borrowings are secured, the indvidual bank facility has a fixed charge over a discrete portfolio of certain of the Group’s

property assets
Maturity profile of committed borrowing facities

The Group’s debt 1s provided by floating rate bilateral revolving credit faciliies (providing the flexibility to draw and repay loans as
required) and an unsecured 6 25% fixed rate retall bond The matunty profile of the Group'’s committed borrowing facilities 1s set

out below
2013 22
Drawn Undrawn Total Drawn Undrawn Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Secured floating rate borrowings:
Less than one year®) 62.5 425 105.0 a3 17 50
One 1o two years 74.0 20.0 040 851 149 1000
Two 1o three years 1280 670 195.0 1203 847 2050
Three to four years - - - 813 237 1050
More than five years 36 1.0 46 49 01 50
2681 130.5 3986 2949 1251 4200
Unsecured fixed rate borrowings.
More than five years 80.0 - 800 800 - 800
34841 1305 478.6 3749 1251 5000

(1 In addition to the principal amounts included abave, £0 8m (2012 £0 9m) of mterest payable was committad at the year end These amounts all fall due within threa

maonths of the year end

No undrawn committed facilities are ring fenced for VSM Estates (Holdings) Limited (2012 £0 6m)
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Interest rate profie
The nterest rate profile of the Group’s borrowings after taking into account the effects of hedging is set out below
2013 2012

m Applicable interest rate £rn Appicable iterest rate
Floating rate bank debt 68.1 Margin + 3 month LIBOR 649 Margin + 3 month LIBOR
Fixed rate bank debt 2000 Margin + 3 34% 2300 Margin + 3 34%

weighted average swap rate welghted average swap rata

Fixed rate retal bond 800 6.25% fixed rate 800 6 25% fixed rate
At 30" November 2013 3481 3749

The average margin on the Group’s bank debt 1s 2 0% (2012 2 1%)

Interest rate swaps

The Group’s denvative financial instruments, which are classtfted as fair value through profit or loss, conslst of stering denominated
interest swaps from floating rate to fixed rate and range from 2 01% to 5 16% (2012 2 01% to 5 16%) Details of the matunty
profile of denvatve financial INstruments are given below and the change in farr value of these instruments as changed to the Income

Statement 1s disclosed in note 4

2013 2012
Earliest termnation Latest terminaticn Earfiest terminabon Latest termnabon
£m %h* £m Yt m 9% £m %
Less than one year 20.0 3.83% 100 279% 300 4 83% 100 4 65%
One to two years 70.0 3.28% 70.0 328% 600 360% 500 3 34%
Two to three years 60.0 2.99% 600 2.99% 500 291% 500 291%
Threae to four years 200 2 01% 200 201% 800 299% 600 299%
Four to five years 300 4.72% 40 0 476% 200 201% 200 201%
More than five years - - 100 432% 400 476%

2000 3.34% 200.0 3 34% 2300 334% 2300 334%

* Weighted average miterest rate.

Certain of the interest rate swaps are extendable at the bank’s option, the tables above therefore show the dates of normal
termination and extended termination The weighted average matunty of interest rate swaps to the eariest termination date i1s
2 4 years (2012 2 8 years)
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Group Financial Staterments contnued

for the year ended 30" November 2013

15 LEASING

Operating lease commitments where the Group 1s the lessee

The Group leases certan of its premises, motor vehicles and office equipment under operating leases Future aggregate minimum

lease rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

2013 2012

£m £m

In one year or less 10 08
Betwsen oneg and five years 27 29
In five years or more 0.3 01
40 38

Operating leases where the Group 15 the lessor

The Group leases out 1ts investment properties under operating leases The future aggregate minimum rentals recevable under

non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

2013 2012

£m £m

In one year or less 302 292
Between one and five years 86.8 871
In five years or more 184 2 1676
301.2 2839

Contingent rents, calculated as a percentage of turnover for a imited number of tenants, of €0 4m (2012 £0 4m) were recognised

dunng the year

Obligations under finance leases

Finance lease liabilities payable in respect of certan leasehold investment properties are as follows

2012

Mmimum Mrmum

lease lease
payments Pnncipal payments Irterest Prncipal
£m £m £m £m £m
In one year or less 02 - 02 02 -
Between one and five years 1.0 - 10 10 -
In five years or more 65.9 39 661 622 39
67.1 3.9 6873 634 39

Finance leases are for penods of up to 999 years from inception and a discount rate of 6 0% (2012 6 0%) has been used to denve
the farr value of the pnncipal amount outstanding Al lease obligations are denominated in sterling
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Categones and classes of financial assets and labilties

2013 2012
Financial assets Notss £ £m
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalenis [g)] 74 89
Trade and other recevables (n 524 461
59 8 550
2013 2012
Financial habilities Notes £m £m
Denvative financial instruments held at far value through profit or loss 2} 128 195
Amortised cost
Bank loans and overdrafts (1) 2681 2949
Retall Bond {1} 800 800
Trade and other payables {1) 872 680
Other payables on deferred terms {1} 60.8 725
Finance lease liabiliies (head rents) (1) 39 39
5128 5388

{1) The drrectors consider that the carrying amount recorded in the Financial Statements approximates their far value

{2) Denvative financial instruments are carred at far value The far value i1s calculated using quoted market prices relevant for the
term and instrument

“Trade and other recevables above comprise other debtors, trade recevables and amounts due from joint ventures as disclosed in
nate 11, for current and non-current amounts, after deduction of £8 0m (2012 £6 8m) of non-financial assets

Trade and other payables above compnse trade payables, amounts due to joint ventures and other payables and accrued expenses
as disclosed in note 13, for current and non-current amounts, after deduction of £51.7m (2012 £40 3m)} of non-financial labiibes

Far value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilties

Financial assets and financial labilities that are measured subsequent to initial recogrition at far value, are reguired to be grouped

into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to whuch the farr value 1s observable

« Lavel 1 far value measurements are those denved from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets,

» Level 2 far value measurements are those derved from inputs other than quoted pnces included wittun Levet 1 that are observable
for the asset, either directly (ie as prices) or indirectly {i e denved from pnces), and

« Level 3 far value measurements are those denved from valuation techniques that include mputs for the asset that ara not based on
observable market data (uncbservable nputs)

Denvative financial instruments held at farr value through profit or loss are the only financial instruments held by the Group

at falr value The net liability of £12 8m recognised as at 30™ November 2013 (2012 £19 5m) s categonsed as a Level 2 far

value measurement

Capital nsk

The Group manages Its capital to ensure that the entittes in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance The caprial structure of the Company consists of
debt (as disclosed in note 14), cash and cash equvalents and equity, compnsing Issued capital, reserves and retained earnings as
disclosed in the Group Statement of Changes in Equity

Market nsk
Market nsk s the potenthal adverse change in Group income or the Group net worth ansing from movements in interest rates or other

rmarket pnces Interest rate nsk Is the Group’s principal market nsk and 15 considered below

Interest rate nsk management The Group Is exposed to interest rate risk as it borrows funds at vanable interest rates The Group
uses a combination of vanable rate borrowings and interest rate swaps to manage the nsk

Interest rate sensitivity- The subsequent table details the Group’s sensitivity, after tax, to a 1% change in interest rates based on
year end levels of debt

St. Modwen Properties PLC Annuat Report and Financial Statements 2013 135

Hoday oi6s1eng

aauewWanos sjeiodion

sjusLLIBIEIS [RIoUBLI4

UOIBULIOJU| [BUOLIPPY




Financial Statements

Notestothe Group Financial Statements continea

for the year ended 30" November 2013

16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

2013 2012
1% increase in interest rates Em £m

Interest on borrowings (16) (21)
Effect of interest rate swaps 16 17

- 04

2013 2012

1% decrease in interest rates £m £m
Interest on borrowings 1.6 21

Effect of interest rate swaps (1.6) {17
- 04

Credt nsk
Credit nsk 1s the nsk of financial loss where counterparties are not able to meet their cbligations as they fall due

The credit nsk on the Group’s liquid funds and denvative financtal instruments 1s imited because the counterparties are banks with
acceptable (generally A and above) credit ratings Bank deposits are only placed with banks in accordance with Group policy that
specifies minimum credit rating and maximum exposure Credit nsk on denvatives 1s ¢closely monitored

Trade and other receivables consist of amounts due from a large number of parties spread across geographical areas The Group
does not have any significant concentrations of credit nsk as the tenant base s large and diverse with the largest individual tenant
accounting for £1 6m (2012 £1 6m) of gross rental Income

The camrying amount of financial assets, as detailed above, represents the Group's maximum exposure to credit nsk at the
reporting date

Included within trade and other recevables 1s £0 5m (2012 £0 4m) which Is provided against as it represents estimated irecoverable
amounts This allowance has been determined by a review of all significant balances that are past due considenng the reason

for non-payment and the creditworthiness of the counterparty A reconciliabion of the changes in this account during the year 15
provided below

2013 2012
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts £m £m
At start of year 0.4 05
Impairment losses recognised 0.6 04
Amounts wirtten off as uncollectable (0.3) 02
Impairment losses reversed (0.2) 03
At end of year 05 04

Trade and other recevables include £0 5m (2012 £1 Om) which are past due as at 30" November 2013 for which no provision has
been made because the amounts are considered recoverable The following table provides an ageing analysis of these balances

2013 2012
Number of days past due but not impared £m fm
1-30days 04 03
31 - 60 days 0.2 03
More than 60 days 0.2 04

0.5 10
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Licunclity Risk

Liquidity nsk 1s the nsk that the Group does not have sufficient financial resources available to meet its obligations as they fall due
The Group manages liguidity nsk by continuously monitonng forecast and actual cash flows, matching the matunty profiles of
financral assets and liabilities and through the use of fixed rate debt bilateral facilities, overdrafts and cash with a range of maturity

dates to ensure continurty of funding

The maturty profile of the anticipated future cash flows for bank loans and overdrafts is shown in note 14 The matunty profile for the
Group's other non-derivative financial liabilites, on an undiscounted basls, is as follows

Less than 1t03 3 months 1t06 More than
1 month months to 1 year years Syears Total
2013 £m £ £m £m £m £m
Trade and other payables 42.4 86 35.9 - 659 152 8
Other payables on deferred terms - - 18.6 46.3 - 649
42.4 8.6 54.5 46 3 659 217.7

Less than 103 3 months 105 More than
1 month months o1 year years Syears Total
2012 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Trade and other payables 373 19 325 38 634 1380
Other payables on deferred terms - 104 174 458 — 736
373 123 489 497 634 2128

The Group's approach to cash flow, financing and bank covenants 15 discussed further in the Financial Review section of the
Strategic Report

17 SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary
10p shares
Number £m
Equity share capital
Al start of year 200,360,931 200
Issue of share caprtal 20,016,057 2.0
At end of year 220,376,988 220

On 1% March 2013 the Group completed a ‘cash box’ placing of 20,016,057 ordinary shares of 10p each at £2 45 per share
Net proceeds were £47 9m after share issue costs, of wiich the £2 Om norminal value of the shares was credited to share capital with

the balance to other reserves
Sea note 3d for detalls of outstanding options to acquire ordinary shares
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Financial Statements

Notestothe Group Financial Statements corinueq

for the year ended 30" November 2013

18 PENSIONS

The Group operates a pension scheme with both defined benefit and defined contribution sections The defined benefit section 1s
closed to new members and, from 1= September 2009, future accrual The Income Statement includes

+ acharge of £0 2m (2012 £0 1m) for the defined benefit section, and
* acharge of £0 6m (2012 £0 6m) for the defined contnbution section

The last formal actuanal valuation of the scheme was at 5 April 2011, when the market value of the net assets of the scheme
was £33 5m, a funding level of 104% based on the Trustees’ proposed assumptions for technical provisions (these are yet to be
finalised). The valuation was performed using the 'Projected Unit Credit Method® under IAS 19 The main actuanal assumptions were

Investment rate of return pre-retirement 6 3% pa
post-retirement 48% pa
Increase In pensions 3 6% pa

The actuanal valuation of the defined benefit section, a final salary scheme, was updated to 30™ November 2013 on an IAS basis by

a qualified independent actuary The major assumplions used by the actuary were

2013 2012 2011

Rate of increase in deferred pensions 26% 20% 2 4%
Rate of increase in pensions in payment

Pra-6" Apnl 1997 benefits 30% 27% 30%

Post-5* Aprl 1997 benefits 3.4% 27% 31%

Discount rate 4 5% 43% 49%

Inflation assumption 26% 20% 24%

Following the closure of the defined benefit section to future accrual, the assumption regarding the rate of increase in salares Is no
longer applicable as retirement benefits will be based on salanes at 31% August 2009 Benefits earned up to the point of the scheme
closure will be protected and wilt be increased in ine with inflation, subject to a maximum of 5% per annum From 2010 the basis of
the inflabon assumption has been amended, in line with market practice, from the Retail Price Index to the Consumer Price Index

The mortality rates adopted are from the S1 year of birth and medium cohort tables with an underpin to future iImprovements of

1 5% to reflect the fact that medium cohort improvements will reduce over tme The resultant assumptions are, for example, male

members who are currently retired are expected to draw their pensions for 26 7 years and non-retired members for 29 0 years,

based on a normal retirement age of 60

The Group made a contribution of £0 2m to the defined benefit section of the scheme In 2013 and expects contributions to remain at

similar levels in future years

The farr values of assets in the defined benefit section of the scheme and the expected rates of return, based on market

expectations, were

2013 2012 2011

% £m % £m % £m

Equities 4.7 76 45 10 51 95
Bonds 40 14.6 42 97 48 79
Property 47 58 45 64 51 82
Cash and other assets 37 1.0 32 10 40 15
29,0 281 271
Actuanal value of labilities (28 5) 270 (24 8)
Unrecognised surplus (0 5) {11) 23)

Surplus In the scheme -

Related deferred tax hability -

Farr value of pension asset net of
deferred tax -

The cumulative amount of actuanal gans and losses (before unrecognised surplus of £0 5m) recorded in the Group Statement of

Comprehensive Income 1s a loss of £0 2m (2012 £0 1m)
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Analysis of the amount charged to operating profit

2013 2012 2011
£m £m fm
Current service cost and total operating charge (0 2) 02 02
Analysts of the amount credited to finance cosls and ncome
2013 2012 2011
£m £m Em
Expected return on pension scheme assets 12 13 15
Interest on pension scheme habilities {t1) {12) {13)
01 01 02

The actual return on pension scheme assets was a gan of £2 0m {2012 £2 4m) The expected return on pension scheme assets
was calculated assuming cash and gilts will make returns in ine with the yield on the 15 year gilt ndex and that equities and
properties will return 1 2% above this Corporate bonds have been assumed ta return in ine with the yield on the 1Boxx over 15 year

corporate bond index
Analysis of the amount recognised In the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

2013 2012 2011
£m £m fm
Difference between expected and actual return on assets 0.8 11 04
Expenence gains and losses ansing on far value of scheme habiliies {0.2) (05) {1 8)
Effects of changes in the demographic and financial assumptions undertying the far
value of the scheme liabilitres {13) (18 18
Change in unrecognised surplus 0.6 11 02
Total actuanal loss {0.1) {01 02
Analysis of the moverment in the present value of the scheme llabilies
2013 2012 20M 2000 2009
£m £m £m o £m
Beginning of year 27.0 248 247 269 236
Movement in year-
Current service cost 02 02 02 02 02
Employee contnbutions - - - - 01
Interest cost 11 12 13 14 14
Actuanal gains and losses 15 23 - (13) 37
Benefits paid (1.3} (1 5) (14) (25) {14)
Curtailment gain - - - - 07)
End of year 28.5 270 248 247 269
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Group Financial Statements cortrueq

for the year ended 30" November 2013

18 PENSIONS (CONTINUED)
Analysis of the movernent in the far value of the scheme assets

2013 212 201t 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m £m
Beginning of year 2841 271 272 271 249
Movement In year
Expected return on scheme assets 12 13 i5 15 14
Contnbutions by employer 02 02 02 02 03
Employee coninbutions - - — - 01
Actuanal gains and losses 08 10 04 09 18
Benefits paid {13) 15 {14} 25 (14)
End of year 290 281 271 272 271
Surplus in scheme at the year end 05 11 23 25 02
Unrecognised surplus (0 5) {11 23 2 5) 02
Net surplus - — = — -
History of expenence gans and losses
2013 2012 201 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m £m
Difference between expected and actual return on
scheme assets
Amount 08 11 o] 09 18
Percentage of scheme assets 28% 39% {1 5%} 33% 6 6%
Expenence gains and [osses on scheme lizbilities
Amount {0 2) {05) (18) 07 37
Percentage of far value of scheme labilities 07% 19% 73% 28% (13 8%)

18 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY

On 31% May 2012, the Company acquired the power to govern the financial and operating policies of its joint venture entihes
Sowcrest Limited (Sowcrest) and Chertsey Road Property Limited, Statedale Limted tegether with its 100% subsidiary Holaw
(462) Limited (together Holaw) These linked transactions were facilitated by entening into a sale and purchase agreement to
simultaneously acquire the remaining 50% equity Interest in each company for nil consideration The acquisitions provided the
Group with full control of Sowcrest and Holaw, enabling it to develop the second phase at Wembley Central as well as providing it
with additional rental incorme from the investment property held by those entities

As required by IFRS 3 (2008) Business Combinations, these deemed acquisiions of control resulted in the joint venture interests
being remeasured to therr farr values at the acquisitton date and net goodwill ansing This was not deemed to be recoverable, and
was written off to the Income Statement in the year ended 30" November 2012

Farr values were reported as provisional in the Financial Statements for the year ended 30" November 2012 No subsequent
amendments were made

20 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 30" November 2013 the Group had contracted capital expenditure of £12 6m (2012 £11 0m) In additton the Group's share of
the contracted capital expenditure of its joint venture undertakings was £2 8m (2012 £5 6m) All capital commitments relate to
investment properties
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21 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has a joint and several unimited liabilty with VINCI PLC and the Ministry of Defence under guarantees in respect of

the financial performance of VSM Estates (Holdings) Lirnited (VSM) This 1s a guarantee in the ordinary course of business and

would require the guarantors to step into VSM'’s place in the event of a default on Project MoDEL. Gompletion of the praject Is not
considered onerous as the forecast revenues exceed the anticipated costs and it 1s not expected that there would be any net outflow

inthis regard

The Group, together with VINCI PLC has provided a joint and several parent company guarantee in respect of the £40m bank facility
provided to VSM Estates Uxbndge Limited, a subsidiary of VSM Estates Uxbridge (Group) Limited The Group, together with VINCI
PLC, has provided a joint and several guarantee in respect of the obligations of VSM (NCGM) Limited relating to the redevelopment
of New Covent Garden Market, London This 1s a guarantes in the ordinary courses of business and would require the guarantors

to comply with the terms of the development agreement and to indemnify Covent Garden Market Authonty against any breach of
those terms

The Group, together with Salhia Real Estate K S € has provided a parent company guarantee in respect of the £135m bank facility
provided to Key Property Investments Limited The guarantee provided by the Group I1s capped at 50% of the total commitment
uncler the agreement from time to time, limiting the Group guarantee to £67 5m as at 30" Movember 2013 The Group has provided
aguarantee of up to £80m m respect of corporate obligations related to the share sale and purchase agreement facilitating the sale
of Elephant and Castle Shopping Centre Salhia Real Estate K'S C has provided a guarantee te the Group in respect of 50% of
these obligations.

St Modwen Properties PLC has guaranteed the liabilities of the following subsidianes in order that they qualify for the exemption
from audit under Section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 in respect of the year ended 30™ November 2013

Company Registration Number

Nama of subsidiary
Festival Waters Limited 04354481
Shaw Park Developments Limited 04625000
St Modwen Developments (Chorley) Limited 05727011
St Modwen Developments (Connah’s Quay) Limrted 05726352
St Modwen Developments (Hull) Lymited 05583517
St Modwen Developments (Longbndge) Limited 02885028
St Modwen Developments (Mecn Vale) Limited 05294589
St Modwen Developments (Queens Market) Limrted 05289380
5t Modwen Davelopments (Quinton) Limited 01479159
St Modwen Developments (Wythenshaws) Limited 05504275
00528657

St Modwen Investments Limited

22 RELATED PARTY TRANSAGTIONS

Transactions between the Group and its non-whally owned subsidianies, joint ventures and asscciates are all undertaken on an arm’s
length basis and are detalled as follows

Key Property Investments Limrted (KPI)
During the year the Group provided management and canstruction services to KPI for which it recerved fees tolalling £0 Sm
(2012 20 7m) The balance due to the Group at year end was £1 8m (2012 £4 3m} No interest s charged on this balance

VSM Estates Uxbndge (Group) Limited (VSM Uxbndge)

In the prior year the Group set up VSM Uxbndge as a new jont venture with VINCI PLC to hold the former RAF Uxbndge site

VSM entities holding the former RAF Uxbrdge sites were transferred to this joint venture together with the related labilities to settle
the deferrad consideration due under Project MoDEL.

VSM Uxbridge 1s funded by loan notes and short-term funding provided by the Group and VINCI PLC together with bank debt

The balance due to the Group at the year end was £13 7m (2012 £8 6m), of which £6 Om (2012 £6 0m) 1s loan notes onwhich
interest Is chargeable Interest charged in the year ended 307 November 2013 was £1 4m (2012 £0 7im)

Barton Busness Park Limited {Barton)
The balance due to Barton at the year end was £3 8m (2012 £3 8m) No interest 1s charged on this balance

Skypark Development Partnership LLP {Skypark}

During the year the Group provided funding of £0 6m to Skypark (2012 i) The balance due to the Group from Skypark at the year
end was £1 1m (2012 £0 5m), of which £1 1m (2012 £0 5m) relates to loan notes 1ssued to the Group No interest is charged on

this balance
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Financial Statements

Notesto the Group Financial Statements contrea

for the year ended 30" November 2013

22 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
Wrexham Power Lirnited (Wrexham Power)

During the year the Group provided funding to Wrexham Power of £nif (2012 £0 2m) The balanca due to the Group at the year end

was £0 2m (2012 £0 2m) No interest I1s charged on this balance

Wrexham Land Limited, (Wrexham Land)

Qunng the year the Group provided funding to Wrexham Land of £ml (2012 £0 1m) The balance due to the Group at the year end

was £0 1m (2012 £0 1m) No interest 1s charged on this balance

VSM (NCGM) Limited (VSM (NCGM))

In December 2012 the Group set up VSM (NCGM) as a new joint venture with VINCI PLC to jomitly redevelop the 57 acre New
Covent Garden Market sites in partnership with the Covent Garden Market Authonty

Dunng the year the Group provided funding to VSM (NCGM) of £1 4m (2012 £nd) The balance due to the Group at the year end

was €14m (2012 £nil) No interest s charged on this balance

St Modwen Pension Scheme

The Group occupies offices owned by the pension scheme with a value of £0 4m (2012 £0 4m) with an annual rental payable
of £0 1m (2012 £0 1m} The balance due to the Group at year end was £0 1m (2012 £0 1m)

Non-wholly owned subsidianes

‘The Company provides administrative and management services and prowides a central purchase ledger system to subsidiary
companies In addition, the Company also operatas a central treasury function which lends to and borrows from subsidiary
undertakings as appropnate Management fees and interest charged/(credited) duning the year and net balances due (to)/from

subsidiaries in which the Company has less than a 80% interest were as follows

Management fees Interest Batance
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Norton & Proffitt Developments Limited - - - - (0.2) 04)
Stoke-on-Trent Regeneration
{Investments) Limirted - - - - {0.8) o8
Stoke-on-Trent Regeneration Limited - - {0.1) 01 {3 5) {37)
Trentham Leisure Limited - - 14 14 19.5 197
Uttoxeter Estates Liruted - - - - {0.2) 04
VSM Estates (Holdings) Limited - 02 0.6 08 (17 3) (73
Widnes Regeneration Limited - - - - 2.3 24
- 02 1.9 21 {0.2) 111

All amounts due to the Group are unsecured and will be settled in cash All amounts above are stated before provisions for doubtful

debts of €nul (2012 £nil) No guarantees have been given or received from related parties

Transactons in which directors have an interest
Branston Properties Limited (Branston)

In 2010 the Group entered into an option to acquire the entire 1ssued share caprtal of Branston, a company tn which the family of
Simon Clarke has a fmancial interest, at market value The pnce paid for the option was £0 1m and exercise of this 1s contingent

on certain planning mitestones being achieved
Key management personnel

The directors are considered to be the Group’s key management persennel and therr remuneration s disclosed in the Directors'

Remuneration Report
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Financial Statements

Company Balance Sheet

as at 30" November 2013

2013 2012
Notes £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets E 05 05
Investments held as fixed assets F 6927 6504
693 2 6509
Current assets
Debtors (including amounts falling due after more than cne year of £212 6m (2012 £221 0m) G 5142 4378
Cash at bank and in hand 32 29
Current habilities
Creditors amounts falling due within one year H (296 7} (2930
Net current assets 2207 1477
Total assets less current hatnlthes 913 9 798 6
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year H (270 0) (2711)
Net assets 643 9 5275
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital K 22.0 200
Share prermum account L 1028 1028
Revaluation reserve L 4229 3806
Profit and Loss Account L 48 2 219
Share incentive reserve L 21 24
Own shares L {0.3) 05
Other reserves L 46,2 03
Equity shareholders’ funds 643.9 5275
These Financial ements were approved by the Board of Directors on 37 February 2014 and were signed on its behalf by
Bill Cliver and el Dunn

(ol st JL

Bill Olver Michae!l Dunn
Chief Executive Group Finance Drector
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Financial Statements

Notes tothe Company Financial Statements

for the year ended 30" November 2013

(A} AGCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation
The Financial Statements and notes have been prepared in accordance with applicabte UK GAAP on a going concern basis, as
discussed in the Strategic Report

The pnnecipal accounting policies are summansed below and have been applied consistently m the current and preceding year

Comphance with SSAP19 ‘Accounting for Investment Properties’ requires departure from the Compantes Act 2006 relating to
depreciation and an explanation of the departure is given below

Accounting convention
The Financial Statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention except for the revaluation of certain properties,
dervative financial iInstruments and the defined benefit section of the Company's pension scheme

Revenue recognition
Revenue Is recognised to the extent that the Company cbtains the nght to consideration in exchange for its performance
Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration receved, excluding discounts and VAT

Rental ncome
Rental income ansing from investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Interest recevable
Interest recevable I1s recognised on an accruals basis

Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
imparment losses Such cost includes costs directly attributable to making the asset capable of operating as intended

Depreciation 1s provided on all plant, machinery and equipment at rates calculated to wnte off the cost less estimated residual value,
based on pnces prevailing at the Balance Sheet date, of each asset evenly over its expected useful ife as follows

Plant, machinery and equipment ~ over two to five years
Depreciation 1s not provided on investment properties which are subject to annual revaluations

Long leasehold investment properties

In accordance with SSAP19, investment properties are revalued annually and ths aggregate surplus or temporary deficit 1s
transferred to the revaluation reserve Permanent dimmutions are recognised through the Profit and Loss Account No depreciation
1s provided in respect of investment properties

The Companies Act 2006 requires all properties to be depreciated However, this requirement conflicts with the generally accepted
accounting principle set out in SSAP19 The directors consider that, because these properties are not held for consumption but
for their investment potential, to depreciate them would not give a true and farr view and that it 1s necessary to adopt SSAP13 in
order to give a trus and far view If this departure from the Act had not been made, the profit for the financial year would have been
reduced by depreclation However, the amount of depreciation cannot reasonably be quantified because depreciation 1s only one
of many factors reflected in the annual valuation and the amount which might otherwise have been shown cannot be separately
identified or quantfied

Investment in subsidiary, jont venture and associated comparues

The investmaents in subsidiary, joint venture and associated companies are included in the Company’s Balance Sheet at the
Company's share of net asset value The valuation recegnises the cost of acquisition and changes in the book values of the
underlying net assets The surplus or deficit ansing on revaluation 1s reflected in the Company’s reserves

Current taxation
Current tax assets and habilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from, or paid to, the taxation authonties,
based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date

The tax currently payable 15 based on the taxable result for the year The taxable result differs from the result as reported 1n the
Income Statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible
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Deferred taxation

Deferred tax 1s recogrused in respect of all tming differences that have onginated but not reversed at the Balance Sheet date

where transactions or events have occurred at that date that will resutt in an obligation to pay less or to recerve more tax, with the

following excepttons

« provision 1s mada for tax on gains ansing from the revaluation (and similar far value adjustments) of fixed assets and gamns on
disposal of fixed assets that have been rolled over into replacement assets only to the extent that, at the Balance Sheet date, there

1S a binding agreement to dispose of the assets concerned However, no provision 1s made where, on the basis of all avallable
evidence at the Balance Sheet date, it 1s more Iikely than not that the taxable gain will be rolled over into replacement assets and

charged to tax only where the replacement assets are seld, and
+ deferred tax assets are recogrised only to the extent that the directors consider that it 1s more likely than not that there wall be
suitable taxable profits from whech the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted
Deferred tax is measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the penods in which timing .
differences reverse based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date

Interest
Interest paid is charged to the Profit and Loss Account on an accruals basis

Finance costs of debt are allocated over the term of the debt at a constant rate on the carrying amount

Share-based payments

The Company accounts for share-based payments as equity-settled Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at far
value at the date of grant using an appropnate option pricing model For those share options that had previously been accounted for
as cash-settled, the farr value at the date of transiion becams the fair value at the date of grant for the equity-settled share-based
options The fair value at the date of grant 1s expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting penod based on the Company’s

estimate of shares that will eventually vest

Pensions
The Company cperates a pension scheme with both defined benefit and defined contnbubion sections The defined benefit section

1s closed to new members and, from 1# September 2009, to future accrual

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit section Is determined using the projected unit credit method, which
attnbutes entitlement to benefits to the current perod (to determine current service cost) and to the current and pnor perods

{to determine the present value of the defined benefit obligation) and 1s based on actuanal advice Past service costs are recognised
in the Profit and Loss Account immediately if the benefits have vested

The interest element of the defined benefit cost represents the change in present value of scheme obligations The expected return
on plan assets Is based on an assessment made at the beginning of the year of long-term market returns on scheme assets,
adjusted for the effect on the farr value of plan assets of contnbutions received and benefits paid during the year The difference
between the expected return on plan assets and the interest cost i1s recognised in the Profit and Loss Account as other finance
INcome or expense

Actuanal gans and losses are recogrised i full in the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses in the year in which

they occur The dafined benefit pension asset or liability in the Balance Sheet compnses the present value of the defined benefit
obligation, less any past service cost not yet recogmised and less the farr value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be

settled directly

Contributions to defined contnbution schemes are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account in the penod in which they
become payabhle.

Denvatve financial nstruments and hedging

The Cormpany uses denvative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps to hedge s nsks associated with interest
rate fluctuatons Such instruments ara insially recogrised at fair value on the date on which a contract 1s entered into and are

subsequently remeasured at far value. The Cormpany has determined that the denvative financial instruments in use do not qualify
for hedge accounting and, conseguently, any gains or losses ansing from changes in the far value of denvative financial instruments

are taken to the Profit and Loss Account.
Full detaills of the Company's denvative financial instruments are given in note 16 to the Group Financial Statements
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Company Financial Statements cotnueq

for the year ended 30* November 2013

{A) ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Own shares
Shares Iin St Modwen Properties PLC held by the Company are classified i equity and are recognised at cost

Interest beanng lcans and borrowings
All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at far value less directly attnbutable transaction costs After initial recognition, loans
and borrowings are measured at amortised cost

Gains and losses ansing on the repurchase, settlement or otherwise cancellation of iabilihes are recognised respectively in finance
mncome and expense

Operating leases
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the Profit and Loss Account on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Cash Flow Statement
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption permitted by FRS1 not to present a Cash Flow Statement

(B) RESULT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

The Company has taken advantage of Sechon 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has not included its own Profit and Loss
Account in these Financial Statements The Company's profit for the year ended 30" November 2013 was £34 6m (2012 £9m loss)

(C) OPERATING EXPENSES

) Audit fees
2013 2012
Audit and Audit and
audit-related audit-relaied
services Otherservices Total servces Other serwces Total
£000 £1000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Fees paid to Deloitte LLP in respect of
Fees payable for the audit of the
Company’s Annual Financial Statements 150 - 150 137 - 137
Total audit fees 150 - 180 137 - 137
Audit-related assurance services 50 - 50 50 - 50
Other assurance services - - - - 20 20
Tax complance services - 50 50 - 50 50
Tax advisory services - 45 45 = 19 19
Total non-audit fees 50 95 145 50 89 139
Total fees 200 95 295 187 89 276

(i) Employees
The average number of full-hme employees (including executive directors) employed by the Company dunng the year were
as follows

2013 2012

Number Number

Property 146 136

Leisure and other activities 38 38

Administratton 46 41

Total employees 230 215
The total payroll costs of the employees were

2013 2012

£m m

Wages and salares 17 114

Social security costs 1.8 15

Pension costs 07 07

Total payroll costs 14 2 136
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(0) DMIDENDS

Dvidends pard dunng the year were in respect of the final dividend for 2012 and an intenm diidend for 2013 The proposed final
dvidend 1s subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a liability in these Financial Statements

2013 02
p per share £m prper share £m
Paild
Final dnidend in respect of pravious year 2.42 53 220 44
Intenm dnadend in respect of current year 133 29 124 24
Total 3.75 8.2 341 68
Proposed
Current year final dvidend 2.67 5.9 242 48
The Employee Benefit Trust waives its entitlement to dividends
(E} TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Lang Plant,
leasehold machinery
investment and
properties equipment Total
£m £m £m
Cost or valuation
At 30" November 2012 03 25 28
Additions - 02 02
At 30" November 2013 03 2.7 30
Depreciation
At 30™ Novemnber 2012 - 23 23
Charge for the year — 02 02
At 30" November 2013 - 2.5 25
Net book value
At 30" November 2012 03 02 05
At 30" November 2013 03 0.2 05

Investment properties were valued at 30™ November 2013 by Jones Lang LaSalle LLF, Chartered Surveyors, in accordance with the
Appraisal and Valuation Manual of the Royal Institutton of Chartered Surveyors, on the basis of market value Jones Lang LaSalle
LLP are professionally qualified independent external valuers and have recent expenence In the relevant location and category of the

properties being valued
Long leasehold investment properties are currently let under operating leases for the purpose of generating rental Income

St Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013 147

yoday ailfoiens

a0UBWISACD sjetoclion

SIBLUISIEIS [eraUeU]

UDIELLUIOJL) [BUCIIPPY




Financial Statements

Notes to the Company Financial Statements connes

for the year ended 30% November 2013

(F) INVESTMENTS HELD AS FIXED ASSETS

Investment Investment
in subsidiary n joint
companies ventures Total
£m £m £m
Valuation
At 30" November 2012 5650 854 6504
Revaluation of investments 233 180 423
At 30" November 2013 588.3 104.4 692.7
Cost
At 30" November 2012 2783 265 304 8
At 30* November 2013 2783 26 5 304 8

Subsidiary companies

At 30" November 2013 the principal subsidiaries, all of which were held directly by the Company, were as follows

Proportion of ordinary Principal nature
Entity name Country of incorporation shares held of business
Chaucer Estates Limited England & Wales 100% Property investment
Holaw {462) Limited England & Wales 100% Property mvestment
Leisure Living Limited England & Wales 100% Lessure operator
Redman Heenan Properties Limited England & Wales 100% Property investment
Sowcrest Limited England & Wales 100% Property development
St Modwen Developments Limnted England & Wales 100% Property development
St Modwen Properties Sarl Luxembourg 100% Property investment
St Modwen Ventures Limited England & Wales 100% Property nvestment
Stoke on Trent Regeneration Limited England & Wales 81% Property development
Uttoxeter Estates Limited England & Wales 81% Property development
Trentham Leisure Limited England & Wales 80% Lessure operator
Norton & Proffitt Developments Limited England & Wales 75% Property development
V5SM Estates (Holdings) mited England & Wales 50% Property development
Jont ventures
At 30" November 2013 the pnncipal joint ventures were
Proportion of ordinary Principal nature
Entity name Country of Incorporat:on shares held of business
Barton Business Park Limited England & Wales 50% Property development
Property investment
Key Property Investments Limited England & Wales 50% and development
Skypark Development Partnership LLP England & Wales 50% Property development
Property Investment
VSM Estates Uxbndge (Group) Limited England & Wales 50% and development

Many of the shareholder agreements for joint ventures and associates contain changs of control provisions, as 1s common for

such arrangements

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under Section 410(2) of the Companies Act 2006 by providing information
only in relation to undertakings whose results or financial position, i the opnion of the directors, pnncipally affected the Group

Financial Statements

A complete ist of subsidiary, joint venture and assoclated undertakings will be attached to the next St Medwen Properties PLC

annual return to Companies House
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(G) DEBTORS

2013 2012
£m £m
Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Amounts fallng due from subsidianes 206 6 2150
Amounts due from joint venture and associated companies 60 680
2126 2210
2013 2012
£m fm
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade debtors 03 03
Amounts due from subsidianes 2758 1965
Amounts due from joint venture and associated companies 112 68
Cther debtors 14 12
Prepayments and accrued income 32 38
Corporation tax 59 29
Deferred tax asset (ses note J) 38 53
301.6 2168
{H) CREDITORS
2013 2012
£m £m
Amounts falling due within one year:
Bank overdrafts 84 54
Trade creditors 03 12
Amounts due to subsidiaries 2577 2521
Amounts due to joint venture and associated companies 4.0 39
Other tax and social security 15 08
Other creditors 14 08
Accruals and deferred Income 106 103
Denvative financial instruments 12.3 185
2967 2830
2013 2012
£m £m
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Bank loans 1900 1911
Other loans 800 800
270.0 2711

All bank borrowings are secured by a fixed charge over the property assets of the Company and its subsidianes
Other loans compnse an unsecured 6 25% fixed rate retall bond matunng in November 2019
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Company Financial Statements contnueq

for the year ended 30" November 2013

() BORROWINGS

The maturtty profile of the bank borrowings, all of which are wholly repayable within five years, 1s as follows

2013 20:2
£m £m
Less than one year 625 54
One to two years 450 1000
Two to five years 82.5 911
More than five years 800 800
Total 2700 2765
(J} DEFERRED TAXATION
The amounts of deferred taxation provided and unprovided in the Financial Statements are
Provided Unprovided
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m

Other tming differences {38) (53} - —

@38) 53 - -
Reconcilation of movernent on deferred tax asset included in debtors

£m
Balance as at 30" Novernber 2012 53
Profit and Loss Account 15
Balance as at 30" November 2013 {3 8)
Reconciiation of deferred tax kability ncluded in penston scheme asset
£m
Balance as at 30" November 2012 -
Profit and Loss Account -
Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses -
Balance as at 30" November 2013 -
(K) SHARE CAPITAL
Ordinary
10p shares
Numbaer £m

Equity share capital
At start of year 200,360,931 200
Issue of share capital 20,016, 057 20
Atend of year 220,376,988 220

See note 3d of the Group Financial Statements for details of cutstanding aptions to acquire ordinary shares

On 1% March 2013 the Group completed a ‘cash box’ placing of 20,016,057 ordinary shares of 10p each at £2 45 per share
Net proceeds were £47 9m after share 1ssue costs, of which the £2 Om nominal value of the shares was credited to share capital

with the balance to other reserves
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(L) RESERVES
Share Profit Share

premium Revaluation andLoss  incentive Own Qther
account reserve Account reserve  shares reserves
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 30" November 2012 1028 3806 219 24 05 03
Surplus on revaluation of investments - 423 - - - -
Retained profit for the year (note B) - - 346 - - -
Equity raise — — - — - 459
Share-based payment charge - - - 03 - -
Net share disposals - - - — 02 -
Dmdends paid (note D) - — 82 - - -
Actuanal loss on pension scheme (note M) - = 01) - - -
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension asset {note J} — - - - - -
At 30* November 2013 102 8 4229 482 21 (0 3) 46 2

Own shares represents the cost of 72,582 (2012 215,754) shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust The open market value of the
shares held at 30" November 2013 was £259,553 (2012 £468,912) In addition the Employee Benefit Trust has £0 1m (2012 £0.1m)
of cash and £0 3m due to the Company (2012 £3 5m due from the Company), that can only be used for the benefit of employees

(M) PENSIONS

‘The Company’s pension schemes are the principal pension schemes of the Group and details are set out in note 18 of the Group
Financial Statements The directors are satisfied that this note, which contains the required IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ disclosures
for the Group, also covers the requirements of FRS17 ‘Retrement Benefits’ for the Company

(N) OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Operating lease commuments where the Company 1s the lessee
Annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

2013 2012
Land and Land and
buildings Other bulcings Crther
£m £m £m £m
Operating leases which expire
In one year or less - 0.2 - 01
Between one and five years 05 04 01 04
In mora than five years 01 0.2 05 02
06 08 06 o7

{C) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of contingent liabittes together with guarantees made in respect of certain subsidianes in order that they qualify for the
exemption from audit under S479A of the Comparues Act 2006 are provided in note 21 to the Group Financial Statements Further,
the Company guarantees the performance of its subsidiaries in the course of their usual commercial actvibes

{F) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions are provided in note 22 to the Group Financial Statements
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Financial Statements

Five Year Record

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
£m £m £m £m £m
Rental incomel! 335 337 355 362 363
Property profits(!1@ 76 219 238 290 398
Revaluation surplus/{defici)(’® (1223 230 339 280 420
Pre-tax profit/loss)® (120 2) 382 517 528 822
Earnings/ioss) per share {pence) (589 7) 186 217 213 335
Dividends paid per share (pence) - 100 310 34 3.75
Dwvidend cover {imes) - 186 70 62 94
Net assets per share {pence) 2001 2186 2376 2564 2787
Increase/{decrease) on prior year (20%) 9% 2% 8% 1%
Net assets employed
Investment properties 7629 8280 8487 7704 8133
Investments 413 494 503 752 953
Inventones 1927 1716 1911 1752 1955
Other net liabilihes (2771) 2973 267 0) {1411) {136 4)
Net borrowings 318 8 {3149} (3471) (366 Q) {340 7}
Minonty interests 87) (26} {116) (111) (12 8)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 3923 4272 464 4 5026 6142
Financed by
Share capital 200 200 200 200 220
Reserves 3727 4078 4449 4831 592 5
Own shares 04 06 {05) 05 03)
3023 4272 484 4 5026 614 2

{1} Including share of jont ventures
(2) Stated before net reakisable value provisions
{3) Including net reahsable value provisions

{4 Including post-tax profit of joint ventures
The figures above are all presented under IFRSs
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Additional Information

Glossary of Terms

Active management — the component of property revaluations delivered as a direct result of management actions and inhiatives e g
obtaining planning consent, achleving remediation milestones and improving lease terms

EPRA — the European Public Real Estate Association, a body that has put forward recommendations for best practice for financial
reporting by real estate companies

EPRA net asset valus (EPRA NAV) — the Balance Sheet net assets, excluding farr value adjustments for debt and related denvatives
together with deferred taxation on revaluations and capital allowances

EPRA net asset value per share — EPRA net asset value divided by the diluted number of shares at the penod end

Estimated net rental income — the passing cash rent less ground rent at the balance sheet date, estimated non-recoverable
outgoings and void costs including service charges, insurance costs and void rates

Estimated rental value (ERV) — the Group's external valuers' opinion as to the open market rent which, on the date of valuation,
could reasonably be expected to be obtained on a new letting or rent review of the property

Equivalent yield — a weighted average of the nitial yield and reversionary yield and represents the return a property will preduce
based on the timing of the income received

Gearing — the level of the Group's bank borrowing {excluding finance leases) expressed as a percentage of net assets

Gross Development Value (GDV) — the sale value of property after construction

IFRIC — Internatronal Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee

IFRSs — International Financial Reporting Standards

Iniiat yield — the annualised net rent expressed as a percentage of the valuatron

Interest — net finance costs (excluding the mark-to-market of derivative financial instruments and other non-cash items} for the
Group (including its share of joint ventures and associates)

Interest Cover Ratio — the ratio of operating ncome to interest

Land bank — the bank of property compnsing all of the land under the Group's control, whether wholly owned or through joint
ventures or development agreements

LIBOR — the London Interbank Offered Rate 1s the average interest rate that leading banks in London charge when lending to
other banks

Loan-to-value ratio (LTV} — the ratio of Group net debt to the Group property portfolio (excluding jomt ventures and assoctates)
Market value — an opinicn of the best price at which the sale of an interest in the property would complete unconditionally for

cash consideration on the date of valuation (as determined by the Group’s external valuers) In accerdance with usual practice, the
Group's external valuers report valuations net, after the deduction of the prospective purchaser's costs, including stamp duty, agent

and legal fees

Net asset value (NAV} per share — equity attnbutable to owners of the Company divided by the number of ordinary shares in issue at
the penod end

Net debt — total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents
Net rental mcome — the rental Income recevable in the period after payment of ground rents and net property outgoings

Net inttial yield — a calculation by the Group's external valuers as the yield that would be received by a purchaser, based on the
estimated net rental Income expressed as a percentage of the acquisiion cost, being the market value plus assumed actual
purchasers’ costs at the reporting date The calculation is In ine with EPRA guidance
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Additronal Information

Glossary of Terms (continued)

Occupancy rates — the ERV atinbutable to vacant units as a proportion of total ERV (including the Group's share of joint ventures
and associates)

Operating income — the total of net rental ncome, other iIncome and property profits

Operating costs/business running costs — administrative expenses plus net finance costs (excluding the mark-to-market of
denvative financial instruments and other non-cash tems) for the Group (including its share of joint ventures and associates)

Persimmon joint venture — a contractual amrangement with Persimmon te develop residential units oh agreed sites within the
St. Modwen land bank

Pre-sald projects — those projects where we are constructing bulldings that have been specrfied by, and designed for, or adapted
by, a specific chent under a specific construction contract On such projects, profit 1s recogrised using the stage completion method

Profit before all tax — profit before tax stated before the deduchon of tax payable by joint ventures and associates

Project MoDEL — Project MoDEL. onginally saw six former London-based RAF sites freed up for disposal and davelopment as the
MoD relccated to an integrated site at RAF Northolt VINCI St Modwen (VSM) was appointed by the MoD in 2006 to secure planrung
consent to redevelop the six sites of which VSM disposed of four, retaining RAF Mill HIll and RAF Uxbndge The latter was removed
from the MoD arrangement and transferred to a separate jont venture wath VINCI in 2012

Property portfolio — the proparty components of investmenit properties and inventories of the Group (including its share of joint
ventures and asscciates)

Property profits — development profit (before the deduction of net realisable value provisions) plus gains on disposals of
investments/investment properties for the Group, including its share of joint ventures and associates

Rental lease length — the weighted average lease term to the first tenant break

Rent roll — the gross rent plus rent reviews that have been agreed as at the reporting date

RICS — Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors

See-through geanng — the ratio of see-through net debt to net assets

See-through loan-to-value ratic — the ratio of see-through net debt to the property portfolio

See-through net debt — net debt of the Group together with its share of the net debt of joint ventures and associates
SIC — Standards and Interpretations Committee

Trading profit — operating ncome less operating costs

TSR — total shareholder return represents the growth 1n value of a shareholding over a specified period, assuming that dividends are
renvested to purchase additional units of stock

Voids — the ERV of vacant properties expressed as a percentage of the total ERV of the portfolio, excluding development properties

Weighted average debt matunty — each tranche of Group debt is muttiplied by the remaming penod to its matunty and the result 1s
dmded by total Group debt In i1ssue at the penod end

Weighted average interest rate — the Group loan interest and denvative costs per annum at the penod end, divided by total Group
debt in Issue at the period end
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Additional Information

Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice 1s hereby given that the seventy thrd Annual General Meeting (AGM) of St Medwen Properties PLC (the Company) will
be held at the Marketing Surte, Innovation Gentre, 1 Devon Way, Longbridge Technology Park, Bimingham B31 2TS on Friday,
28" March 2014 at 12 00 noon to consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions Resolutions 1 to 17 inclusive will
be proposed as ordinary resolutions and resclubions 18 to 20 inclusive will be proposed as special resolutions

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1 That the Annual Report and Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30" November 2013 be receved

2 That the Directors’ Remuneration Report, excluding the part contaiming the directors’ remuneration policy, set out on pages 76 to

97 of the Annual Report and Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30" November 2013 be approved

3 That the directors’ remuneration policy, the full text of which 1s set out on pages 78 to 87 of the Annual Report and Financial
Statements for the financial year ended 30" November 2013 and which will take effect from 1% December 2014, be approved

4 That a final dvidend for the financial year ended 30" November 2013 of 2 67p per ordinary share payable on 4% Apnl 2014 to
those shareholders on the register of members at the close of business on 7 March 2014 be declared

That Richard Mully be elected as a director

5

6 That Steve Burke be re-glected as a director

7 That Kay Chaldecotlt be re-elected as a director
8 That Simon Clarke be re-elected as a director

9 That Michael Dunn be re-elected as a diractor
10 That Lesley James be re-elected as a director
11 That Bill Olrver be re-elected as a director

12 That John Salmon be re-elected as a director
13 That Bill Shannon be re-elected as a director,

14 That Deloitte LLP be re-appointed as auditor of the Gompany to hold office until the conclusion of the next general meeting at
which accounts are laid before the Company

15 That the directors be authonised to determine the remuneration of the Company's auditor

SPECIAL BUSINESS

16 That the amendments to the rules of the St. Modwen Properties PLC 2004 Saving Related Share Option Scheme {including
the extension of the scheme for a penod of 10 years from the date of the AGM), as summansed and explained in Part | of
the Appendix to this notice of AGM, be approved and the directors be authonsed to do all things necessary to give effect to
the amendments

17 That, in substitution for all existing authonties and without prejudice to previous allotments or offers or agreement to allot made
pursuant to such authorties, the directors be generally and uncondrtionally authonsed in accordance with section 551 of the
Companies Act 2006 to exercise all the powers of the Company to

(a) allot shares in the Company or grant nghts to subscnbe for or to convert any secunty into shares inthe Gompany up to an
aggregate nominal amount of £7,345,899 {the Sechion 551 amount), and

{b) allot equrty secunties (within the meaning of sectian 560 of the Companies Act 2008) up to a further aggregate nominal
amount of £7,345,899 in connection with an offer by way of a nghts 1ssue to

{0 ordinary shareholders i proportion (as nearly as may be practicable) to their existing holdings, and

(il holders of other equity secunities, as required by the nghts of those securities or, subject to such nghts, as the directors
otherwise consider necessary,

subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the directors may deem necessary or expedient to deal with treasury

shares, fractiona) entitlements or legal or practical problems under the laws of, or the requirements of any regulatory body or
any stock exchange In, any country or territory,
such authonties to expire at the conclusion of the AGM of the Company to be held after the date of tha passing of this resolution
or 27 June 2015, whichever i1s the earlier, but, in each case, so that the Company may make offers and enter into agreements
before the expiry of such authonty which would or rmight require shares to be allotted or nghts to subscribe for or to convert any
secunty into shares to be granted after such expiry and the directors may allot shares or grant such nghts under any such offer or
agreement as If the authonty had not expired
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Additional Information

Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

SPECIAL BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Special resolution

18 That, in substitution for all existing powers and subject to the passing of resoluticn 17, the directors be generally empowered
pursuant to section 570 of the Companies Act 2006 to allot equity secunties {within the mearning of section 560 of the Companies
Act 2006} for cash pursuant to the authority granted by resolution 17 and/or where the allotment constitutes an allotment of
equrty secuntties by virtue of secticn 560(3) of the Companies Act 20086, in each case free of the restnchion in section 561 of the
Companies Act 2006, such power to be imited to

(@) the allotment of equity secunties pursuant to the authonty granted by paragraph (2} of resolution 17 and/or an allotment which
constitutes an allotment of equity secuntes by virtue of section 560(3) of the Companies Act 2006 {in each case otherwise
than in the crrcumistances set out in paragraph (b} of this resolution) up to a nominal amounit of £1,101,884 (the Section 561
amount), and

(b} the allotment of equity securities m connection with an offer of equity secunties (but in the case of an allotment pursuant to
the authonty granted by paragraph (b) of resolution 17, such power shall be himited to the allotment of equity secunities in

connection with an offer by way of a nghts issue only)

]

() toordinary shareholders in proportion {as nearly as may be practicable) to therr existing holdings, and

(1} to holders of other equrty secunties, as required by the nghts of those securities or, subject to such nghts, as the directors
otherwise consider necessary,

subject to such exclusions or other arangements as the directors may deem necessary or expedient to deal with treasury
shares, fractional entdlements or legal or practical problems under the laws of, or the requirements of any regulatory body or
any stock exchange n, any country or temitory,

such power to expire at the conclusion of the AGM of the Company to be held after the date of the passing of thus resolution or
27% June 2015, whichever 1s the earlier, but so that the Company may make offers and enter into agreements before the power
expires which would or rmight require equity securrties to be allotted after such power expires and the directors may allot equity
securties under any such offer or agreement as if the power had not expired

Special resolution

19 That the Company be generally and unconditionally authorised for the purposes of section 701 of the Companies Act 2006
to make market purchases (as defined in section 693 of the Companies Act 2008) of ordinary shares of 10p each in ds capital
(Ordinary Shares) on such terms and in such manner as the directors may from time to time determine provided that

(@) the maximum aggregate number of Ordinary Shares hereby authonsed to be purchased is 22,037,698,
(b) the mimimum price which may be pard for an Ordinary Share 1s 10p {exclusive of expenses),
(¢} the maximum price which may be paid for an Ordinary Share is the highest of (in each case exclusive of expenses)

() anamount equal to 105% of the average market value of an Ordinary Share for the five business days immedately
preceding the day on which the Ordinary Share is contracted to be purchased, and

i) the higher of the price of the last independent trade and the hughest current independent bid for any number of Ordinary
Shares on the London Stock Exchange, and

{d)y this authonty shall, unless previously renewed, exprre at the conclusion of the AGM of the Company to be held after the
date of the passing of this resolution or 27" June 2015, whichever is the earlier, except in relation to the purchase of any
Ordinary Shares the contract for which was concluded before the date of expiry of the authonity and which would or might be
completed wholly or partly after that date

Special resolution
20 That a general meeting other than an AGM may be called on not less than 14 clear days' notice
RECOMMENDATION

The Board confirms that, in its opirion, all of the resolutions are in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole
The directors unanimously recommend that shareholders vote in favour of each of the above resolutions, as they intend to do in :
respect of theirr own beneficial shareholdings

By order of the Board

Tanya Stote
Company Secretary

20" February 2014

St Modwen Properties PLG
Registered number 349201
Registered office Sir Stanley Clarke House, 7 Ridgeway, Quinton Business Park, Birmingham B32 1AF
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EXPLANATORY NOTES TO PROPOSED RESOLUTIONS

Resolution 1 = Annual Report and Financial Statements
Resolution 1 1s an ordinary resolution to receive the Annual Report and Financial Statements for the financial year ended

30 November 2013 Copies will be avarlable at the AGM

Resolutions 2 and 3 — Directors’ Remuneration Report
There are new requirements this year in relation to the content and approval of the Directors’ Remuneration Report following changes
made to the Companies Act 2006 In accordance with the new Companies Act 2008 provisions, the Directors’ Remuneration

Report contains

a a statement by Lesley James, Charr of the Remuneration Commitiee pages 76 — 77,

= the remuneration policy report (pages 78 —87) which provides details of the remuneration policy that will apply frem 1% December
2014, and

« the annual report on remuneration (pages 87 — 97) which descnbes how the remuneration policy was implemented for the year
ended 30" November 2013 and how the policy will apply for the year ending 30" November 2014

Resolution 2 1s an ordinary resclution to approve the Directors® Remuneration Report, other than the part containing the directors’

remuneration policy Resolution 2 1s an advisory resolution and does not affect the future remuneration paid to any director

Resolution 3 1s an ordinary resolution to approve the directors’ remuneration policy which 1s set out in the Directors’ Remuneration
Report Once the directors’ remuneration policy as approved by shareholders comes into effect, all payments by the Company to
the directors and any former directors must be made m accordance with the policy (unless a payment has been separately approved
by a sharehelder resolution) If approved, the directors’ remuneration policy will take effect from 1= December 2014 Payments will
continue to be made to directors and former directors in line with existing arrangements until that date.

Rasolution 4 — Declaration of final dvidend
Resolution 4 1s an ordinary resclution by which shareholders are asked to declare a final dividend The directors recommend a final

dividend for the financial year ended 30™ November 2013 of 2 67p per ordinary share If approved, this will be paid on 4% Anril 2014
to shareholders on the register of members at the close of business on 7" March 2014

Resolutions 5 to 13 — Election and re-election of directors
Resolutions 5 to 13 are ordinary resolutions which deal with the election and re-election of the directors

Following his appontment to the Board on 1% September 2013 and in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
Richard Mully wil retire and offer himself for election at the 2014 AGM Al other directors will retire and offer themselves for
re-election in accordance with the 2012 UK Corporate Governance Gode

Biographical detalls of all directors are set out on pages 56 and 57

The performance of the Board as a whole, as well as the contnbution made by indidual directors, has been reviewed during the
course of the year After cansidenng this evaluation, the Chairman has confirmed that the performance of every executive and
non-executive director continues to be effective, that they continue to demonstrate commitment to their respective roles, and that
therr respective skills complement one another to enhance the overall operation of the Board

Resolutiens 14 and 15 — Auditor appointment and remuneration

At last year's AGM shareholders re-appointed Deloitte LLP as audrtor of the Compariy to hold office until the conclusien of the 2014
AGM Delortte has expressed a willingness to continue in office and the Audit Commuttee has reviewed the effectiveness of the audit
process and recommends their re-appointment Therefore resoluttons 14 and 15 are ordinary resolutions to re-appoint Deloitte LLP
as auditor untd the conclusion of the next general meeting at which accounts are laid before the Company and to authonse the

directors to determine thew remuneration.

Resolution 16 - Proposed extension of SAYE option scheme and amendments

The St Modwen Properties PLC 2004 Saving Related Share Option Scheme (the SAYE Scheme) was adopted by the Company
ingeneral meeting on 6" August 2004 It is a tax-advantaged aption scheme under which employees are offered options over the
Company’s shares, linked to a savings account funded by deductions from the employees’ salary The savings are used to pay
the exercise pnce on exercise of the option, but can be withdrawn by the employee if the option Is not exercised Options must
be offered to all employees of the Group who have completed a qualifying period of employment, and the Board views the SAYE
Scheme as a useful way to mohvate the wider workforce and align their interests with those of shareholders

The SAYE Scheme Is due to terminate on 6 August 2014 The Board would like to retan the abilty to grant tax-advantaged
save-as-you-earn options, and it has been decided that it would be administratively simpler to extend the existing scheme fora
further 10 years than to adopt a new scheme Accordingly, the Board 1s seeking shareholder approval to an amendment to the SAYE

Scheme to extend it for a further 10 years
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Additional Information

Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO PROPOSED RESOLUTIONS (CONTINUED)

The opportunity is also being taken to update the rules in certam respects and make certain other changes The Finance Act

2013 made certan simplficatons and improvements to the legislative rules applicable to option schemes such as the SAYE
Scheme, and some of these provisions had the effect of automatically amending the SAYE Scheme as of 17% July 2013 The text
of the rules 15 being updated to reflect these automatic amendments The text 1s also being updated to reflect certain amendments
to statutory references ansing from the updating of tax and company law legislation these changes are not ntended to alter the
meaning of the rules The opportunity is also being taken to rename the SAYE scheme the ‘St Modwen Properties PLG Saving
Related Share Opticn Scheme’

The terms of the SAYE Scheme provide that no alteration to the rules to the advantage of option holders (except for minor
amendments to benefit the administration of the scheme and amendments to obtain or maintan favourable tax, exchange control
or regulatory treatment for option holders or any participating company) shall be made without the pnor approval of shareholders
in general meeting Part | of the Appendix to this notice of AGM summanses the proposed amendments in relation to which
shareholder approval is being sought at the AGM and explamns their effect

In addition, as it 1s proposed that the SAYE Scheme be renewed for a further 10 years, a description of the principal terms of the
SAYE Scheme as amended by the proposed amendments is set out in Part Il of the Appendix to this notice of AGM

A copy of the rules of the SAYE Scheme, showing the proposed amendments (including amendments in relation to which
sharehelder approval 1s not being sought), will be avallable for mspection at the registered office of the Company dunng normal
business hours from the date of this notice of AGM until the close of the AGM, and at the place of the AGM from 15 minutes before
the start of the meeting untl the end of the meeting

Resolution 17 — Authonty to allot shares
The authority conferraed on the directors at last year's AGM to allot shares in the Company expires at the concluston of the 2014
AGM Resoclution 17 s an ordinary resolution to renew thts authonty

The Association of Brtish Insurers (ABI) guidelines on directors’ authonty to allot shares state that ABI members will permit, and
treat as routing, resolutions seeking authonty to allot new shares representing up to cne-third of a company’s 1ssued share capital

In addition, they will freat as routne a request for authonty to allot shares representing an additional cne-third of a company’s issued
share capital provided that 1t 1s only used to allot shares pursuant to a fully pre-emptive nghts 1ssue

Paragraph (a) of resolutton 17 will, if passed, authonise the directors to allot shares up to a maximum aggregate norminal amount of
£7,345,892 which represents one-third of the Company’s 1ssued orcinary share capital as at 10" February 2014 (being the latest
practicable date prior to the publication of the notice of AGM) Paragraph (b} of resolution 17 proposes that, in accordance with
ABI gudance, an additional authonty be conferred on the directors to allot shares in connection with a nghts 1ssue up to a further
maximum aggregate nominal amount of £7,345,899

The authonities sought in paragraphs (a) and {b) of resolution 17 are in substitution for all existing authonties granted in the
Company’s Articles of Association or otherwise, and are without prejudice to previous allotments or agreesments or offers to
allot made under such existing authoritres The authornities will each expire at the earlier of the conclusion of the next AGM of the
Company and 27" June 2015

The directors have no present intention of exercising these authontres other than to fulfil the Company’s obhgations under its
share incentive schemes approved previously by shareholders, but believe that it 1s in the best interests of the Company to have
the authonties available to respond to market developments and to enable allotments to take place without the need for a general
meeting should they determine that it 1s appropnate to do so

Resolution 18 — Disapplication of pre-emption nghts
If the directors wish to allot new shares and other equity secunities company law requires that these shares are offered first to
sharehoclders in proportion to therr existing holdings

Resolution 18 1s a special resolution which seeks to renew the authonty conferred on the directors at last year's AGM to 1ssue equity
securities of the Company for cash without application of the pre-emphion nghts as provided by sectron 561 of the Companies
Act 2006

Paragraph (a) of resolution 18 will, f passed, authonse the directors to allot new shares pursuant to the authonty given in paragraph
(a) of resolution 17 for cash {j) In connection with a pre-emptive offer or nghts 1ssue or (i) otherwise up to a maximum aggregate
nominal value of £1,101,884, equivalent to 5% of the Company’s 1ssued ordinary share capital as at 10 February 2014 (being the
latest practicable date prior to the publication of the notice of AGM) In each case without the shares first being offered to existing
shareholders in propartion to their existing holdings

In hight of the ABI guidance descnbed in the explanation of resolution 17 above, paragraph (b} of resolution 18 will, if passed,
authonse the directors 1o allot new shares pursuant to the authomty given by paragraph (b) of resclution 17 for cash In connection
with a nghts 1ssue without the shares first being offered to existing shareholders in proportion to therr existing holdings

The authonties sought in paragraphs (a) and (b) of resolution 18 are In substitution for all existing authonties granted in the
Company's Articles of Association or otherwise, and are without prejudice to previous allotments or agreemenits or offers to
allot made under such existing authorities The authonties will each expire at the earlier of the canclusion of the next AGM of the

Company and 27" June 2015
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In accordance with the Pre-Emption Group's Statement of Principles dated July 2008, the directors confim their intention not to
issue more than 7 5% of the Company's issued ordinary share capital for cash other than to existing shareholders In any rolling
three-year penod without pnor consultation with shareholders

Resolution 18 - Authonty to purchase shares
Resolution 8 1s a special resolution to renew the authonty granted to the directors at last year's AGM to make market purchases of

its own ordinary shares through the market as penmitted by the Companies Act 2006 and within institutional shareholder guidelines
No shares were purchased duning the year and tha Company does not currently hold any shares in treasury

If passed, the resolution gives authonty for the Company to purchase up to 22,037,698 of its ordinary shares, which represents
10% of the Company’s 1ssued ordinary share capital as at 10* February 2014 (being the latest practicable date prior to the
publication of the notice of AGM) The resolution specifies the mimmum and maximum prices which may be paid for any ordinary
shares purchased under this authonty The authonty will expire at the eariier of the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company and
27 June 2015

The directors have no present ntention for the Company to exercise the authonty granted by this resolution to purchase its own
shares They would do so only after taking account of the overall financial position of the Company and in crcumstances where to
do s0 would be regarded by the Board as being in the best interests of shareholders generally and result in an increase in eamings
per ordinary share The Company may either cancel any shares it purchases under this authonty or transfer them into treasury (and
subsequently sell or transfer them out of treasury or cancel them)

As at 10" February 2014 (being the latest practicable date pror to the publication of the notice of AGM), the Company had options
outstanding over 10,361,137 ordinary shares, representing 4 70% of the issuad share capital on that date If the Company was to
purchase the maximum number of shares permitted pursuant to tis resolution, the options outstanding at 10" February 2014 would

represent 5 81% of the fssued share capial

Resolution 20 - Notice penod of general meetings

Resolution 20 1s a special resolution to renew an authonty granted at last year's AGM to allow the Company to hold general meetings
{other than AGMSs) on not less than 14 clear days’ notice

Changes made to the Comparies Act 2006 by The Companies (Shargholders’ Rights) Regulations 2009 increased the notice penod

required for general meetings of the Company to 21 clear days unless shareholders approve a shorter notice penod, which cannot
be less than 14 clear days This approval will be effective until the Company’s next AGM when it is Intended that a similar resolution

will be propesed

The shorter notice penod would not be used as a matter of routine for such meetings, but only where the flexibility 1s mented by the
business of the meeting and is thought to be to the advantage of shareholders as a whole AGMs will continue to be held on at least

21 clear days' notice
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Additional Information

Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

SHAREHOLDER NOTES

1. Entitlemnent to attend and vote

To be entitled to attend and vote at the AGM (and for the purpose of determining the number of votes they may cast), shareholders
must be entered on the Company’s register of members at 6 08pm on Wednesday, 26" March 2014 (or, in the event of any
adjournment, at 6 00pm on the date which Is two days before the date of the adjourned meeting) Changes to the register of
members after the relevant deadline shall be disregarded in determining the nghts of any person to attend and vote at the meeting in
respect of the number of shares registered in therr name at that ime It 1s proposed that all votes on the resoluticns at the AGM will
be taken by way of a poll

2. Appointment of proxies — general

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened by the notice of AGM 1s entitled to appaint a proxy to exercise
all or any of his or her nghts to attend and to speak and vote on his or her behalf at the meeting A shareholder may appoint more
than one proxy n relation to the meeting provided that each proxy i1s appomted to exercise the nghts attached to a diferent share or
shares held by that shareholder A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company but must attend the meeting in person

For the appointment to be effective, a proxy form (or electronic appomtment of proxy, see note 4 below)} must be received by the
Company's registrar not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting, 1 e not later than 12 00 noon on Wednesday, 26™ March
2014 The appointment of a proxy wili not prevent & shareholder from subsequently attending the meeting and voting in person if he
or she 1s entitled to do so and so wishes

3 Appointment of proxies — proxy form

A proxy form which may be used to make such appointment and give proxy instructions has been sent to shareholders If you do
not have a proxy form and believe that you should have one, or if you require additional forms to appoint more than one proxy,
please contact the Company's registrars, Equinit,, on 0871 384 2198 (calls to this number will be charged at 8p per minute plus
network extras QOverseas callers should dial +44 (0}121 415 7047 Lines are open from 8 30am to 5 30pm, Monday to Fnday)
Alternatively photocopy the proxy form which has been sent to you All forms must be signed and should be returned together in the
same envelope

The notes to the proxy form explain how to direct your proxy to vote on each resolution or withhold their vote Please note that the
vate withheld option on the proxy form is provided to enable you to abstain on any particular resolution, it 1s not a vote in law and will
not be counted in the calculation of votes for or against the resolution If you sign the proxy form and return it without any specific
directions your proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his or her discretion If you wish to appomt a proxy other than the Chairman
of the meeting, please insert the name of your chosen proxy holder In the space prowided on the proxy form If the proxy i1s being
appointed m relation to less than your full voting entitlement, please enter in the box next to the proxy holder's name the number of
shares in relation to which they are authorised to act as your proxy If left blank your proxy will be deemed to be authorised in respect
of your full voting entitlement (or If the proxy form has been issued in respect of a designated account for a shareholder, the full
vohting entitlement for that designated account)

In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior joint holder who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, in respect of the
holding will be accepted to the excluston of the votes of the other joint holders For this purpose senionty 1s determined by the
order in which the names appear in the Company’s register of members in respect of the jont holding 1n the case of a corporate
shareholder, the proxy form must be executed under its common seal or signed on its behalf by a duly authonsed officer or attorney
In the case of an individual, the proxy form must be signed by the appointing shareholder Any alterations made to the proxy form
should be inthalled

4  Appointment of proxas electronically

Shareholders who would prefer to register the appointment of their proxy electronically via the internet can do se through Equanitr's
websrte at www sharevote co uk using their personal Voting 1D, Task ID and Shareholder Reference Number (which are printed

on the proxy form) Alternatively, shareholders who have already registered with Equiniti’s online portfolto service, Shareview, can
appoint their proxy electronically by logging on to their portfolio at www shareview co uk Full detalls and mstructions on these
electronic proxy faciihies are given on the respective websites A proxy appointment made electronically will not be valid if sent to
any address other than those provided or if receved after 12 00 noon on Wednesday, 26" March 2014

5 Appointment of proxies through CREST

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxtes for the AGM, and any adjournment(s) therecf, through the CREST
electronic proxy appointment service may do so by using the procedures described in the CREST Manual CREST Personal
Members or other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members who have appointed a voting service provider(s),
should refer to therr CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s), who will be able to take the appropnate action on their behalf
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In order for a proxy appointrment or instruction made using the CREST service to be valid, the appropriate CREST message

(a CREST Proxy Instruction) must be properly authenticated In accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited's (EUD)

specifications and must contain the nformaton required for such instructions, as described in the CREST Manual (available

at www euroclear com) The message, regardless of whether it relates to the appointment of a proxy or an amendment to the
Instruction given to a previously appointed proxy must, i order te be valid, be transimutted so as to be received by Equiniti (D RA1S)
by the latest ime for receipt of proxy appontments specified above For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the ime
{as determmed by the time stamp applied to the message by the CREST Applications Host) from which Equinrh is able to retneve the
message by enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST After this time any change of instructions to proxies appolnited
through CREST should be communicated to the appointee through other means

CREST members and, where applicable, therr CREST sponsors or voting service providers should note that EUl does not make
avallable special procedures in CREST for any particular messages Normal systemn timings and limitations will therefore apply in
relation to the Input of CREST Proxy Instructions It 1s the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to take (o, if the CREST
member i1s a CREST Persenal Member or sponsored member or has appointed a voting service provider(s), to procure that hus
CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message 1s transmitted

by means of the CREST system by any parbcular time In this connection, CREST members and, where applicable, ther GREST
sponsors or voting service providers are referred, in particular, to those sections of the CREST Manual concerring practical

Iimitations of the CREST system and timings

The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)a) of the Uncertificated
Secunties Regulations 2001

6 Changing and revoking proxy instructions

To change your proxy nstruction simply submit a new proxy appointment using the methods set out above The deadline for
receipt of proxy appointments (see note 2 above) also apphes tn relation to amended instructions Where two or more vald separate
appointments of proxy are received in respect of the same share and for the same meeting, those received last by Equin will

take precedence

In order to revoke a proxy instriction, a shareholder will need to inform the Company by sending a signed hard copy notice clearly
stating his/her intention to revoke a proxy appointment to Equiniti Lirmited, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing BNS9 6DA In the
case of a corporate shareholder, the revocation notice must be executed under its common seal or signed on s behalf by a duly
authonsed officer or attorney Any power of attorney or any other authonty under which the revocation notice 15 signed (or a duly
certified copy of such power of attorney) must be ncluded with the revocation notice The revocation must be received no later than
12 00 noon on Wednesday, 26™ March 2014 If a shareholder attempts to revoke his or her proxy appointment but the revocation 1s
recened after the time specified the onginal proxy appointment will remain valid Termination of proxy appointments made through
CREST must be made in accordance with the procedures described m the CREST Manual

7 Corporate representatives

A corporate shareholder can appoint ona or more corporate representatives who may exercise on its behalf all of its powers as a
shareholder provided that they do not do so In relation to the same shares Representatives of shareholders that are corporations will
have to produce evidence of thelr proper appointment when attending the AGM Please contact Equinti for further guldance

8 Nominated persons
Any person to whom this notice 1s sent who 1s not a shareholder but 1s a person nommated by a shareholder under section 146

of the Comparnies Act 2006 to enjoy information nghts (a Nominated Person} may, under an agreement with the shareholder who
nominated timvher, have a nght to be apponted, or have someone else appointed, as a proxy for the AGM. If a Neminated Person
has no such nght or does not wish to exercise it, he/she may, under any such agreement, have a nght to give voting instructions to

the shareholder

The statement of the nghts of shareholders in relation to the appomntment of proxies set out in notes 2 to 7 above does not apply

to Norminated Persons The nghts descnbed in those notes can only be exercised by shareholders of the Company If you are a
Nominated Person it 1s iImportant to remember that your main contact in terms of your investment remains the registered shareholder
or the custodian or broker who administers the investment on your behalf

9 Shareholder participation

Any shareholder attending the AGM has the nght to ask questions relating to the business of the meeting and the Company has
an obligation to answer such questions unless (i} to do so would interfere unduly with the preparation for the meeting or tnvolve the
disclosure of confidential information, {ii) the answer has already been given on a website in the form of an answer to a question, or
{iil) 1t is undesirable In the interests of the Company or the good order of the meeting that the question ba answered

10 Avalability of information on website
A copy of this notice of AGM, and other information required by section 311A of the Companies Act 2006, can be found on the

Company’s website at www stmodwen co uk.
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Addrtional Information

Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

SHAREHOLDER NOTES (CONTINUED)

11 Website publication of audit concerns

Sharehclders satisfying the threshold requiremients in section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 can require the Company to publish |
a statement on rts website setting out any matter that such shareholder proposes to raise at the meeting relating to (a) the audt of I
the Company’s accounts (including the audttor's report and the conduct of the audit) that are to be laid before the AGM or (b} any
circumstances connected with an auditor of the Company ceasing to hold office since the last AGM The Company cannot require
the shareholders requesting the publication to pay its expenses in complying with the request Any staternent placed on the website
must also be sent to the Company’s auditor no later than the time the statement is made avalable on the website The business
which may be dealt with at the meeting includes any statement that the Company has been required to publish on its website under
section 527 of the Companies Act 2006

12 Total voting nghts

As at 10" February 2014 (being the latest practicable data prior to the publication of the notice of AGM), the Company's 1ssued share
capital consisted of 220,376,988 shares carrying one vote each Therefore the total voting nghts in the Company as at 10" February
2014 was 220,376,988

13 Documents avaiiable for inspection
The following documents are avallable for Inspection at the registered office of the Company dunng normal business hours and will
be at the place of the AGM from 15 minutes befare the start of the meeting until the end of the meeting

() copies of the directors’ service contracts with the Company,
(i} copies of the non-executive directors’ letters of appointment,
(i) a copy of the Company's Articles of Association, and

(V) a copy of the nules of the SAYE Scheme showing the proposed amendments (including amendments In relation 1o which
shareholder approval 1s not being sought)

14 Communicahon with the Company
You may not use any electronic address provided in this notice of AGM or any related documents (including the proxy form) to
communicate with the Company for any purposes other than those expressly stated
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APPENDIX - AMENDMENTS TQ THE ST MODWEN PROPERTIES PLC 2004 SAVING RELATED SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Part | of this Appendix to the notice of AGM summanses and explains the effect of the proposed amendments to the St Modwen
Properties PLC 2004 Saving Related Share Option Scheme (the SAYE Scheme) in relation to which sharehalder approval is sought at
the AGM Part Il of this Appendix contains a descnphion of the pnncipal terms of the SAYE Scheme, amended as proposed

A copy of the rules of the SAYE Scheme, showing the proposed amendments (including amendments in relation to which
shareholder approval is not bemng sought), will be avaifable for inspection at the registered office of the Company during normal
business hours from the date of this notice of AGM unte! the close of the AGM, and at the place of the AGM from 15 minutes before

the start of the meeting unti! the end of the meeting

Part | - Summary and explanation of the effect of amendments to the SAYE Scheme in relation to which shareholder approval Is
sought at the AGM

1 Extension of term of SAYE Scheme

The SAYE Scheme (as currently drafted) i1s due to tenminate on 6% August 2014, without prejudice to existing options No new
options may be granted under it after that date It1s proposed that the SAYE Scheme be extended so that it will terminate on the
tenth anniversary of the date of the AGM, 1 e 28 March 2024, and options may be granted until that date The termination would,
agamn, be without prejudice to options which have already been granted by that date For a descnption of the pnancipal terms of the
SAYE Scheme, amended as proposed, see Part [l of this Appendix

2 Afowing three year options to be granted

The legislation governing option schemes such as the SAYE Scheme allows erther three year or five year options to be granted,
linked to savings contracts with either 36 or 60 monthly savings contnbutions respectively The SAYE Scheme 1s currentty drafted
on the basis that only five year options will be granted It is proposed that the SAYE Scheme be amended to facilitate invitations to
apply for the grant of ether or both three and five year ophions, at the discretion of the Board This will give added flexibility and 1s
expected that it may increase participation in the SAYE Scheme by employees

3 Allowing exercise pnces at a discount of up to 20% to market vaiug

The legisiation governing option schemes such as the SAYE Scherne allows options to be granted with an exercise price which 1s no
less than 80% of the market value of the shares at the time of grant {or such earlier time as may be agreed with HMRC) The SAYE
Scheme as currently drafted allows an exercise pnce which 1s no less than 90% of the market value of the shares at the date of

the invitation it is proposed that this 1s amended to 80%, to give more flexibility and to allow the SAYE Scheme to be made more
attractive to participants If invitations are issued with an exercise pnce of 80% of market value, rather than 90% of market value, this
would enable parheipants to acquire more shares for the same savings, and accordingly may increase the overall number of shares

used In the SAYE Scheme

4 Amendments to SAYE Scherme lmits

The SAYE Scheme (in existing Rula 5 1) currentty imits the nurmber of new shares which may be 1ssued or made 1ssuable pursuant to
the grant of options under the scheme in any 10 year period to 12,077,395, or, if lower, the number of shares which represents 10%
of the 1ssued share capital of the Company from time to time It 1s proposed that this imit be removed Such a it is not required

by guidelines 1ssued by the Association of Brtish Insurers (there 15 & 10% bmit in 10 years for all share schemes established by the

Company, In existing Rule 5 2, and this wall remain)

Tha SAYE Scheme also (in existing Rule 5 3) currently lmits the number of new shares which may ba issued or made issuable
pursuant to the grant of ophions under the scheme in any five year perod, when combined with shares issued or made 1ssuable
pursuant to grants under other share schemes established by the Company, to 5% of the 1ssued share capital of the Company at
the date of grant Such a mit used to be required by the guidelines issued by the Association of British Insurers, but no longer s tis
therefore propesed that this imit be removed, for consistency with other share schemes operated by the Company

5 Grant penods
The SAYE Scheme provides that options under the scheme may normally only be granted dunng a ‘Grant Pened® A Grant Penod 1s

defined as the penod of 42 days following the publication of the annual or half yearly results of the Company, or the date on which
the SAYE Scheme was onginally approved by HMRC It is proposed that the penod of 42 days following the date of the AGM at
which the proposed amendments are approved be added as a Grant Penod In addstion, itis proposed that the wording of the
existing rules be amended to clanfy that it s the 13sue of invitations, rather than the grant of options, under the SAYE Scheme that
may normally only be made dunng a Grant Period This appears to have been the intention of the original wording

Part Il - Descnption of the pnncipal terms of the SAYE Scheme, amended as proposed

1 Inviatons

Dunng the penod of 42 days following the publication of the Company’s annual and intenm results, and after the date of the AGM
at which the proposed amendments are approved, the Board may, If it so decides, mvite eligible employees to apply for the grant of
options to them In exceptional circumstances invrtations may be 1ssued outside such penods
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Additional Information

Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

APPENDIX - AMENDMENTS TO THE ST MODWEN PROPERTIES PLC 2004 SAVING RELATED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

2 Hgbilty

People who have been employees of the Group for a qualifying penod will be eligible to participate in the SAYE Scheme In addrtion,
the Board has discretion to allow participation by employees who do not meet all the eligibility requirements The invitabions offered
to different people may only vary according to the lengths of service or salary of the individual eoncerned, or other similar factors

3 Acceptance and indmdual lrmits

To accept an invitation, the apphcant will be required to sign and return to the Company the savings confract proposal form and to
state his or her propesed monthly saving contnbution This will be subject to the statutory masamum {which will be £500 per month
from 6™ Apnl 2014) or such lower amount as may be set by the Board The applicant must sign an authonty to allow the chosen
amount of contnbution to be deducted from his or her salary

4 Grant of options and option exercise pnce

The applicant will be granted an ophion to acquire with the amount of money that will be due to the employee at the end cf the
savings contract term, the largest whole number of shares that could be acguired at the date of grant of the option for a price per
share that 1s not less than 80% of the market value of an equivalent share on the relevant inwitation date

Market value on any day means, while shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange, the average of the middle market quotations
of a share as denved from the Daily Offictal List of the London Stock Exchange for the three immediately preceding dealing days

5 Restnctions on the nurmnber of new shares in respect of which options may be granted

The number of shares 1ssued or made issuable by the Company pursuant to options granted under the SAYE Scheme and any other
share option schemes operated by the Company, excluding lapsed options, dunng the 10 year penod ending on any date of grant
under the SAYE Scheme shall not, when added to any shares i1ssued or made issuable in the same penod under any other share
scheme operated by the Company, exceed the number of shares that represents 10% of the ordinary share capdal of the Company
in 1Issue on the relevant date of grant

6 Exercise and lapse of options

Options may normally only be exercised dunng the six month penod immediately following the termination of the savings contract
Special provisions govern the exercise and lapse of options in particular circumstances, such as where the option holder dies, leaves
the Company, or i the Company 1s taken over or goes into hquidation

The rules of the SAYE Scheme state that former employees shall not be entitled by way of compensation for loss of office, or
otherwise, to compensation for loss of any actual or prespective nght or benefit accrued or anticipated under the SAYE Scheme

7 lssue of shares

Any shares 1ssued pursuant to the SAYE Scheme will rank pan passu in all respects with other ordinary shares already in 1ssue, save
that they will not rank for any dividend or other distnbution of the Company announced or paid by reference to a record date that 1s
pnor to the date of exercise of the relevant option

8 \Vanation of shara capral

In the event of certain adjustments to the share capital of the Company, for example as a result of a nghts issue or subdivision of
share caprtal, adjustrments necessary to maintan the value of the option will be made to the number of shares subject to the option
and/or the option exercise pnce and/or the maximum number and/or the nominal value of shares avallable for issue under the SAYE
Scheme These adjustments will be subject to confirmation from the Gompany's auditors that they are fair and reasonable, and to
HMRC approval where required

9 Alterations

The SAYE Scheme provides that the scheme cannot be amended to the advantage of participants without the prior approval of

shareholders in general meeting {except for minor amendments to benefit the adrmiristration of the scheme and amendments to
obtain or maintain favourable tax, exchange control or regulatory treatment for parhicipants in the scheme or for the Company or
members of the Group)

10 Adrministration
The SAYE Scheme will be administered by the Board who will resolve any disputes relating to the scheme or uncertainty as to the
meaning of the scheme rules The Board may delegate their powers n relation to the SAYE Scheme to a comnmuttee

11 Termination

The SAYE Scheme shall terminate on the tenth anniversary of the date of the AGM at which the proposed amendments are
approved, or earher if the Board so resolves Termination of the SAYE Scheme shall be without prejudice to the subsisting rights of
option holders No options shall be granted under the SAYE Scheme after the date of termination
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Additional Information

Information for Shareholders

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Ordinary shares quoted ex-dwvidend 5% March 2014
2012/13 final dwvdend record date 7" March 2014
AGM 28" March 2014
2012/13 final dvidend payment date 4™ Apri) 2014
Announcement of 2014 half year results 1# July 2014
Announcement of 2014 final results February 2015
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM will be held on Friday, 28" March 2014 at the Marksting Sutte, Innovation Centre, 1 Devon Way, Longbndge Technology
Park, Brmingham B31 2TS, commencing at 12 00 noon The notice of meeting, together with an explanation of the resolutions be
considered at the meeting, is set out on pages 155 to 164

WEBSITE

Information about St Modwen, including this and pner years' Annual Reports, half year reports, results announcements and
presentations, together with the latest share price information, s avatable on our website at www stmodwen co uk/investor-relations
SHARFEHOLDING ENQUIRIES AND INFORMATION

Al general enquines concerning holdings of shares in St Modwen should be addressed to our registrar

Equinitr

Aspect House

Spencer Road

Lancing

West Sussex

BN93 6DA

Telephone 0871 384 2198* (+44 {0)121 415 7047 from outside the UK)

A range of shareholder information 1s available online at Equiniti's website www shareview co uk. Here you can also view information
about your shareholding and obtain forms that you may need to manage your shareholding, such as a change of address form ora
stock transfer form

DIVIDEND MANDATE

If you are a shareholder who has a UK bank or building soctety account, you can arrange to have dividends pad direct via a bank or
bullding society mandate There Is no fee for this service and a tax voucher confirming details of the dmidend payment will be sent to
your registered address Please contact Equmnit on 0871 384 2198 or go to www shareview co uk for further mformation

OVERSEAS DIVIDEND PAYMENT SERVICE

If you are resident outside the UK, Equiniti (by arrangement with Citbank Europe PLC) can prowide dividend payments that are
automatically converted into your local currency and paid direct to your bank account, For more information on this overseas
payment service please contact Equiniti on +44 (0)121 415 7047 or download an application form at www shareview co uk

SHARE DEALING SERVICE

If you are UK resident, you can buy and sell shares in St Modwen through Shareview Dealing, a telephone and internet based
service provided by Equiniti Financial Services Ltd For further details please visit www shareview co uk/dealing or call Equiniti on
08456 037037 Equint Financial Services Ltd s autherised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authonty Other brokers and
banks or building societies also offer share dealing facilites

ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS

As an alternative to receiving documents in hard copy, shareholders can elect to be notified by email as soon as documents such
as our Annual Report are published This notification includes details of where you can view or download the documents on our
webste Sharehotders who wish to register for email notification can do so via Equiniti’s website at www shareview co Uk

*Calls 1o this number cost 8p per minute plus network extras Lmes are open 8.30am to 5.30pm, Monday to Fnday
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Additional Information

Information for Shareholders (continued)

SHAREHOLDER SECURITY

Shareholders are adwised to be very wary of unsolicted mail or telephone calls offening free investment adwvice, offers to buy shares
at a discount or sell shares at a premium, or offers of free company reports Such contact is typically from overseas based ‘brokers’
who target UK shareholders through operations commonly known as ‘botler rooms® These 'brokers’ can be very persistent and
extremely persuasive and often have websites to support ther actvities

To avoid share fraud

» Keep in mind that firms authonsed by the Financial Conduct Authonty (FCA) are unfikely to contact you out of the blue with an offer
to buy or sell shares

* Do not get into a conversation, note the name of the person and firm contacting you and then end the calf

¢ Check the Financial Services Regster at www fca org uk to see If the person and firm contacting you 1s authonsed by the FCA

¢ Beware of fraudsters claming to be from an authonised firm, copying its website or giving you false contact details

+ Use the fim’s contact details listed on the Register if you want to call it back

+ Call the FCA on 0800 111 6768 If the frm does not have contact details on the Register or you are told they are out of date

* Search the list of unauthonsed firms to avoid at www fca org uk/scams

= Consider that if you buy or sell shares from an unauthonsed firm you will nct have access to the Financial Ombudsman Service or
the Financial Services Compensation Scheme

» Think about getting independent financial and professional advice before you hand over any money
* Remember If it sounds too good to be true, it probably is!

If you are approached by fraudsters please tell the FCA using the share fraud reporting form at www fca org uk/scams, where you
can find out more about investment scams You can also call the FCA Censumer Hefpline on 0800 111 6768

If you have already pad money to share fraudsters you should contact Action Fraud on 0300 123 2040
SHAREHOLDER ANALYSIS
Holdings of ordinary shares as at 30" November 2013

Sharsholders Shares

Numnber % Number %
By sharehoider
Indwviduals 3,286 8080 12,576,068 571
Directors and connected persons 36 083 38,287698 1737
Insurance companies, nominees and pension funds 678 1667 169,073,878 7672
Other lmited companies and corperate bodies 67 165 438,344 020

4,067 100.00 220,376,988 100.00

Sharcholders Shares

Nurnber % Number %
By shareholding
Up to 500 1,062 2587 257,777 012
501 to 1,000 696 17H 539,369 024
1,001 to 5,000 1,421 3494 3,315,166 150
5,001 to 10,000 349 858 2,623,662 115
10,001 to 50,000 321 789 6,986,781 317
50,001 to 100,000 70 172 5,152,324 234
100,001 to 500,000 89 218 22,390,251 1016
500,001 to 1,000,000 27 067 19,402,248 880
1,000,001 and above 42 103 159,809,410 7252

4,067 100 00 220,376,988 100.00
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Additional Information

Shareholder Notes
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Additional Information

Shareholder Notes (continued)
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Disclaimer

This Annual Report and Financial Statements has been prepared for the members of St Modwen
Properties PLC and should not be relied upon by any other party or for any other purpose The
Company, its directors and employees, agents and adwsars do not accept ¢r assuma responsibility
to any other person to whom this document is shown or nto whoss hands it may come and any such
rasponsbility or liability 1s expressly disclamed

The Annual Report and Financial Statements contans certain forward looking statemants which,

by thelr nature, involva nsk and uncertainty because they relate to future events and clrcumstances
Actual outcomes and results may differ matenally from any outcomes or resulis expressed or imphed
by such forward looking statements Any forward Jooking staternents made by or on behalf of the
Company arg made m good faith based on the Information avatlable at the time the statement 18
made, nc representation or warranty 1s gven In relation 1o them, Including &s to their completeness
or accuracy or the basis on which they were prepared The Company doas not underiake to update
torward looking staternents to reflect any changes in its expectations with regard thereto or any
changes In events, conditions or circumstancas on which any such statement 13 based Nothing n
this Annual Report and Financial Statements should be construed as a profit forecast

Photography

Steve Townsand — front cover, pages 3, 4,5 8, 10, 22, 24, 25, 26,28 31,34
Craig Holmes — pages 12, 31, 37

Matthew Nichol — pags 14

The paper used in this report is elemental chlonne free and 1s FSC accredited

It is pnnted to 1SO 14001 environmental procedures, using vegetable based inks
The Forest Stewardship Council {FSC) is an international network which promotes
responsible management of the world’s forests Forest certification 1s combined with
a system of product labelling that allows consumers to readily Identify timber based
products from certified sources

Designed and produced by Radley Yeldar www ry com
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